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State of Tennessee 
Treasury Department 

State Capitol 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

December 31, 1995 

To the Governor, Members of the General Assembly, 
and Gtizens of the State of Tennessee: 

Letter of Transmittal 

l welcome the opportunity to present to you the annual financial report of the 
Treasurer's Office for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. During the nine years I have 
served as State Treasurer, assets under the management of the Treasurer have grown 
from $7 billion to $17 billion. Our goal is to manage these assets on behalf of the state in 
a highly professional manner designed to preserve principal and achieve a superior 
return while maintaining sufficient liquidity to react to the changing environment and 
to meet obligations in a timely manner. 

Our investment performance has been exceptional, helping the Tennessee 
Consolidated Retirement System achieve its status as one of the most strongly funded 
public plans in the country. During the year. TCRS also received the Public Pension 
Principles Achievement Award from the Public Pension Coordinating Council in recog­
nition of the professional standards it has instituted as well as the Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance 
Officers Association for its comprehensive annual financial report. Other successes 
and activities of the Treasury Department are detailed on the following pages. 

lam fortunate to have an outstanding staff of committed public servants work­
ing in the Treasury Department. My thanks go to each of them for all they do to serve 
Tennesseans. l also wish to thank the members of the General Assembly for their 
support of this department's commitment to applying new methods and technologies to 
effectively serve the changing needs of the citizens of the state. 

Most certainly, the days ahead will be filled with more challenges as we contin­
ue the task of providing professional financial management, providing benefit pro­
grams responsive to the needs of public employees as well as the taxpayers of the state, 
and improving services for the citizens of our state. We look forward to meeting those 
challenges. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Steve Adams 
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T he 1995 Treasurer's Report contains reports on various programs 
administered by the Treasury Department, including Investments, 
the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System, the Deferred Com­

pensation Program, the Flexible Benefits Plan, Clain1s Administration, Risk 
Management, the Unclaimed Property Program, and the Chairs of Excellence 
Program. The following comments represent a brief recap of the purpose and 
operations of each program administered by the department. The remainder 
of this report gives detailed data regarding these programs' activities during 
the 1994-95 fiscal year. 

The Investment Division has the responsibility for investing all funds under 
management of the Treasury Department 

State Cash Management-This section manages the State Pooledlnvestmem 
Fund which includes the state's cash, the various dedicated reserves and trust 
funds of the state, and the Local Government Investment Pool. Investments 
during 1994-95averaged $2.14 billion, produang$113.76million in income for 
an average rate of return of 5.34%. Local governments participating in Lhe 
Local Government Investment Pool received $70.4 million in interest at a net 
rate averaging 5.41 %. The State Trust of Tennessee allows the Treasury 
Department to use the Federal Reserve Wire Transfer System to transfer funds 
on a limited basis. 

Pension Fund Investments - This section manages the investments of the 
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) which at June 30, 1995 
totaled $13 billion at book value (an increase of $928 million fo r the year) and 
$14.l billtonat market value. For the yea r, investments produced $930 million 
in income fora realized rateofreturnof 7.60% on book value. This section also 
manages investments for the Chairs of Excellence Trust which at June 30. 1995 
totaled $140 million at book value. 

The Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System provides retirement cov­
erage to state employees, higher education employees, teachers. and employ­
ees of political subdivisions that have elected to participate in the plan. As of 
June 30, 1995, there were 173,778 active TCRS members: 43,010 state employ­
ees; 55,976 K-12 teachers; 54,712 political subdivision employees; and 20,080 
higher education employees. As of June 30, 1995, there were 62,090 retirees. 
TCRS paid out $443.4 million in benefits during fiscal year 1994-95. The state 
of Tennessee is responsible for the pension liability for state employees, 
teachers, and higher education employees while each political subdivision is 
responsible for the liability of its employees. Activities during 1994-95 
included a record 4,560 retirements, 4,788 refunds, approximately 8,500 
estimates provided to members, and approximately 5,200 requests to pur­
chase pnorservice. TCRS received ils sixth consecutive Certificate of Achieve­
ment for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance 
Officers Association for its June 30, 1994 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. 



The State of Tennessee Deferred Compensation Program offers state 
employees the opportunity to accumulate supplemental retirement income 
on a tax deferred basis. By making salary reduction contributions to the 457 
plan and I or the 401 (k) plan offered under the program, employees are able 
to postpone income taxes on contributions and earnings until the funds are 
withdrawn. Participants may direct the investment of their deferred salary 
into a variety of investment products contracted for the program. Since the 
first of the program's two plans was implemented in 1981 , state employees 
have deferred over$139 million in salary. As ofJune30, 1995, 11,706stateand 
university employees had accounts m the program. The market value of 
accumulated account balances totaled $198.7 million, an increase of $37.2 
million during the year. 

The State of Tennessee Flexible Benefits Plan is an optional benefit plan 
which enables state employees to pay for certain expenses with before-tax 
dollars. Employees may use the plan to pay group medical and dental 
insurance premiums, out-of-pocket medical expenses, and dependent care 
expenses. The majority of state employees use the plan to pay medical 
premiums or dental premiums. In addihon, 2,456 state employees used the 
medical expense reimbursement account and 368 used the dependent care 
reimbursement account at June 30, 1995. The plan generated over $2.1 
m11lion in F.I.C.A. savmgs for the state during the 1994-95 fiscal year. 

The Division of Claims Administration is responsible for investigating 
and making determmattons on claims made against the state for workers' 
compensation by state employees, employee property damage, tort liability, 
and criminal injury compensation. Staff support from the Division of Claims 
Administration also assists the Defense Counsel Commission and the Board 
of Claims. The Division of Claims Administration received 6,836 claims for 
tort, employee property damage, and workers' compensation. The Board of 
Claims took action on 13cases, and 1,702 victims of criminal injury and drunk 
driver claims were approved for payment. The Defense Counsel Commis­
sion heard 31 requests for representation. Payments made during the year 
fo r workers' compensation, tort, and employee property damage claims 
totaled $15.7 million. Payments made to victims of criminal injuries and 
drunk drivers totaled $6.2 million. Since the first payments were issued m 
1982. over $73 million has been paid to crime victims. 

The Division of Risk Management is responsible for administering the 
state's Property / Casualty Insurance Program, including the procurement 
of boiler insurance and employee fidelity bond coverage. All state-owned 
buildings and contents are provided all-risk, replacement cost coverage for 
the ltmits of liability listed in the state's Property lnsurance Schedule. On 
JuJy 1, J 9Q4, the total scheduled values were $7.2 billion. The State Reserve 
for Casualty Losses, in the amount of $5 million, provides a self-insured 
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retention for the payment of property claims. Excess property coverage is 
procured from an independent insurance carrier to provide claim pay­
ments in excess of the retention, shouJd losses exceed $5 million in a given 
fiscal year. A $5,000 per occurrence deductible is assumed by the depart­
ment, agency, or institution experiencing a loss. In fiscal year 1994-95, the 
premium cost for total property coverage without the $5 milUon retention 
was estimated to be $7.6 million. The actual cost of the program for the 
same period was $1 .1 million, providing a savings to the state of approxi­
mately $6.5 million. 

The Unclaimed Property Division is responsible for the administration 
of the state's Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act. Under this 
act, the state provides one central 1zed lo ca ti on for the owners of abandoned 
property, or their heirs, to turn to when searching for forgotten assets. The 
types of property covered by this act are primarily cash property such as 
bank accounts, insurance policies, utility deposits, etc. During the fiscal 
year, $12.1 million of unclaimed property was turned over to the Treasurer 
and $4.7 million was returned to owners or their heirs. Since the program 
began in 1978, over$98.1 million in unclaimed property has been reported 
to the Treasurer and over $26 million of that property has been returned to 
the owners or their heirs. 

The Chairs of Excellence Trust is a nonexpendable trust fund authorized 
in 1984 to further the cause of education in Tennessee. The funding of the 
program is provided through contributions made by a private donor and 
a matching amount by the state, thus, creating a chair. Income from the 
chair is used to offset the cost of retaining a nationally or regionally 
recognized scholar at a state college or university who teaches in a specified 
academic area. During the 1995 fiscal year, six chairs were created with 
matching contributions totaling $2.6 million. Since 1984, a total of 92 chairs 
have been created. The Trust totaled $140 million book value at June 30, 
1995 and produced income of $7.8 million during the year. 

The Treasurer has been appointed Refunding Trustee for the Tennessee 
Loca 1 Development Authority (TLDA) in connection with the sale of bonds 
issued to refund, in advance of matunty, bonds previously issued by the 
TLDA. The Treasurer has established a Refunding Trust Fund for the 
benefit of the holders of the refunded bonds. A portion of the proceeds of 
the refunding bonds were used to acquire direct general obligations of the 
United States of America or obl igations the payment of the principal and 
interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 
America. The assets of the Refunding Trust Fund totaled $217,550 at book 
value on June 30, J 995. 
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Treasury Numbers at a Glance 
Fiscal Year 1994-95 

Number of Positions 174 
Payroll Expenditures $ 6,071,775 
Other Expenditures $ 3,489,884 

Total Administrative Expenditures $ 9,561,659 

General Fund Earnings $ 29,111 ,131 
LGlP Earnings $ 71,191,471 
Restricted Fund Earning~ $ 13,459,268 

Total Cash Management Earnings $ 113,761,870 

Retirement Benefits $ 443,406,956 
Number of Retirees 62,090 
Number of Active Members 173,778 
Retirement Contributions $ 458,809,661 
Retirement Investment Earnings $ 930,425,055 
Retirement Refunds $ 20,914A96 

Workers· Compensation Payments $ 11,786,925 
Workers' Compensation Claims Filed 4,541 
Employee Property Damage Payments $ 28,305 
Employee Property Damage Clauns Filed 273 
Tort Claims Payments $ 3,856,410 
Tort Claims Filed 2,022 
Criminal Injury Payments $ 6,249,335 
Criminal Injury Claims Filed 2,053 
Defense Counsel Payments $ 392,985 
Claims Award Fund Revenue $ 14,595,339 

Property Values Insured $ 7,2441879,500 
Total Cost of Program $ 1,147,455 
Savings to the State over Private Insurance Rates $ 6,459,668 

Deferred Compensation Contributions $ 18,818,921 
Deferred Compensation Participants 11,706 
Flexible Benefits Plan Payment!) $ 3,031,347 
FICA Savings Generated from Flex Plan $ 2,141,935 
Unclaimed Property Revenues $ 12,143,929 
Unclaimed Property Payments $ 4,689,118 

Chairs of Excellence Contributions $ 2562,409 
Chal!S Of Excellence Investment Eanungs $ 7,794,730 
Total Number of Chairs of Excellence 92 
Chairs of Excellence Expenditures $ 5,630,874 

Retirement Trust Fund $14,293,461,375 
Chairs 0f Excellence Trust Fund $ 149 ,156,438 
State Pooled lnvestrnent Fund $ 2,275,941 ,486 
Deferred Compensation (outside managers) $ 198,734,299 
Bond Refunding Trust $ 124,538 

Total Assets Under Management $16,917,418,136 
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Moving Toward the Future 

• Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

During the 1994-95 fiscal year. the division developed a new 
pre-retirement planning program designed to help members 
of the system prepare for the practical as well as the emo­
tional changes that come with retirement. The program 
features presentations on Social Security benefits, TCRS 
benefits, financial planning, estate planning and wills, health 
and leisure activities. 

Approximately 1,500 members participated in 46 seminars 
across the state. The department also distributed statements 
with benefit estimates and service histories to TCRS members. 

Right: Pre-Retirement Plannmg Supervisor Sandra Sewell and Retirement Counselor Jim Cotey conduct a 
pre-retirement planmng seminar for teachers. 

+ Deferred Compensation Program 

To further help state employees improve their retirement income planning, the Deferred Com­
pensation Program developed and distributed a personalized statement for participants which 
projects their account balance and their potential monthly income at retirement based on their 
current account balance, their current savings rate, and th~ date of birth. 

The program also held a series of investment senunars around the state to explain investment concepts 
and the investment options available in the program. In addition to the nine funds already offered, the 
Treasury Department added three new funds to the Deferred Compensation Program effective January 
1, 1995· Fidelity Investments' Contrafund, Asset Manager Fund, and International Growth and Income 
Fund. The program expects to see many more state employees begin saving for rehrement during the 
next year as a result of the 401(k) match authorized by the General Assembly during the 1994-95 fiscal 
year. Initially, the match will be funded from savings generated by state employees' use of the Flexible 
Benefits Plan. 

• Workers' Compensation Program 

f:> Treasurer !:> Report 

To ensure a high quality of care for injured workers and 
to enable the worker~· compensation program to better 
manage medical costs, the department contracted with an 
orgaruzabon to establish and implement a workers' 
compensation medical provider network for state em­
ployees mjured on the job. The network is made up of 
physicians and facilities specializing in the treatment of 
occupational injuries and illnesses. 

Left: Susan Clayton, Director of Claims Admimstratron, and 
Anne Adams, Claims Supervisor, helped to create a network of 
medzcnl providers spedalizing zn treating ocwpatiorral in1u­
nes. 



Moving Toward the Future 

+ Risk Management Program 

Effective July 1, 1994, the Division of Risk Management moved to the Treasury Department from the 
Department of Finance and Administration. The division plans to begin automating its recordkeeping 
and working on a building inspection process. The division will also work with the workers' compen­
sation program to develop saiety and loss control programs to prevent accidents and reduce workers' 
compensation costs. 

+ Unclaimed Property Program 

The unclaimed property division has been working with other states' 
unclaimed property offices to exchange property held by another state 
for individuals with a last known address in Tennessee. This coopera­
tive effort will increase the division's chances of returning property to 
the rightful owners or their heirs. Since this project s tarted, the divi­
sion has exchanged property with 35 states and is working on agree­
ments with the other states. 

left: Unclaimed Property Manager Kim Morrow set up rec1protal 
agreements with 35 other states. 

+ Careers NOW Internship Program 

Beginning in January 1996, Tennessee's three constitutional offices 
(Treasurer, Secretary of State, and Comptroller) will offer students from 
Tennessee's colleges and universities an opportunity to work in one of 
the three offices for a semester. Initially, twelve students per semester 
will be accepted into the program. In addition to their daily work 
responsibilities, the students will attend a series of seminars, visit other 
state agencies, and engage in other opportunities to increase their 
overall understanding and knowledge of Tennessee state government 

Right: Program Coordinator Diana Collins oversees the new Careers Now 
lnlernship Program designed to provide students the apportunity to develop 
career apportumlles in state government. 

+ Investment Division 

A new portfolio inventory and accounting system was installed in the Investment Division on Novem­
ber 1, 1994. The system is a real time, on line system which allows much more flexibility to the portfo­
lio managers. Reports can be viewed on screen, and can be run at any time by the user. The system has 
also been utilized to transmit trade information to the custodian bank, thus increasing accuracy and 
Improving efficiency. A more sophisticated pncmg service was implemented at the same time, allow­
ing the division to more accurately value assets and collateral . 

The department implemented a batch wire system for the Local Government Investment Pool program 
which increases the accuracy and efficiency of processing withdrawal requests .from the LGIP. The 
department also :implemented a voice response system for use by pool participants. 

Treasurer's Report 7 



State Cash Management 

T he state of Tennessee receives rev­
enues from many sources such as 

taxes, licenses, fees, and the federa l 
government. As these monies are 

collected, they are deposited into one of the 175 
financial institutions in Tennessee that have 
contracted with the state to serve as deposito­
ries. Under the state Constitu tion, the state 
may not spend more money on its programs 
than it has collected in revenues. Conse­
quently, at any p oint in time the state has a 
sizable sum of money collected but not yet 
spent. These morues are invested by the 
Treasury Department until needed to pay for 
state expenses, payroll, or benefit program 
disbursements. 

During the 1994-95 fisca I year, the average 
balance of short term investments in the 
Treasurer's Cash Management program was 
$2, 177,771,341 per month and interest income 
of $113,761,870 was earned. This includes 
deposits in the Local Government Investment 
Pool administered by the Treasury Depart­
ment. 

The State Funding Board sets the investment 
policy for the state. The State Funding Board is 
composed of the Governor, Commissioner of 
Finance and Administration, Comptroller, 
Secretary of State, and Treasurer. The foremost 
investment objective of the State Pooled Invest­
ment Fund is safety of prmcipal, followed by 
liquidity and then y'1eld. 

Up to 20 percent of the portfolio or 
$300,000,000, whichever is less, may be invest­
ed for maturity greater than one year but less 
than five years. Funds may be invested in 
collateralized certificates of deposit with autho­
rized Tennessee finandal institutions; bills, 

8 Treasurer's Report 

notes and bonds of the U.S. Treasury; other 
obligations gut1ranteed as to principal and 
interest by the United States or any of its 
agencies; and repurchase agreements against 
obligations of the United States or Hs agencies. 
Securities underly ing repurchase agreements 
must be book-entry and delivered to the State 
Trust of Tennessee. Funds may also be invest­
ed in prime commercial paper, and prime 
banker's acceptances. 

Since 1991, the State Pooled Investment 
Fund has been used as a liquidity facility for 
lhe state's General Obligation Bond Anticipa­
tion Note Program (final maturity June 1, 1996). 
The State Pooled Investment Fund is commit­
ted to buy any state of Tennessee General 
Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes that fail to 
be remarketed by the remarketing agent as an 
investment until such time as the notes can be 
resold. 

The policy allows for the yield on such 
obligations to be equal to or greater than the 
yield of other obligations in which the state 
could invest at the time of the purchase. Up to 
$150,000,000 is covered by the State Pooled 
Investment Fund pursuant to the note resolu­
tion. By providing its own liquidity facility, the 
state is able to save up to $300,000 a year on 
these outstanding notes. 

At June 30, 1995, investments had an average 
maturity of 136 days, and an average weighted 
yield of 5.98%. The total balance in the State 
Pooled Investment Fund at June 30, 1995 
($2,284,062,000 par value) was allocated as 
follows: U.S. Treasury government and agency 
securities, 31.76%; repurchase agreements, 
8 82%; collateralized certHicates of deposit, 
36.36%; and commercial paper, 23.06%. 



State Cash Management 

State Cash Management Comparative Returns 

In order to ensure that state investment returns reflect current market conditions, several market 
indicators are carefully monitored. Among these are rates reported daily m the Wall Street Journal, 
rates on U.S. Treasury securities and institutional money market funds. The following table 
illustrates state returns compared with two of these indicators. 

Fiscal 1Total Pool 1Merrill Lynch JNew Pool •90 Day T reaswy 
Year Funds Institutional Fund Funds (CD Equivalent Yield) 

1994-95 5.34% 5.33% 5.47% 5.45% 
1993-94 4.04 3.30 3.41 3.42 
1992-93 4.39 3.29 3.21 3.11 
1991-92 6.15 4.66 4.76 4.53 
1990-91 7.91 7.03 7.15 6.66 

1lnvestment return on total portfnlio. 
2Thi5 index most closely resembles the structures and objectives of the total cash portfolio. 
3lnvestment return on funds invested during the year. 
4This approximates the reinvestment period for new funds. 

Administration of Authorized State 
Depository Accounts 

The Cash Management Division is respon­
sible for the administration of the state's bank 
accounts in Tennessee financial institutions 
designated as authorized state depositories. 
Taxpayers and state agencies can deposit 
certain tax funds due to the state directly to any 
TreasUier's account at any authorized state 
depository. 

The four most significant functions of 
administering the accounts are: (1) authorizing 
the state depository to accept state funds; 
(2) cash concentration; (3) collateralizing 
deposits; and (4) monitoring collateral and 
deposits. Financial institutions' requests to 
become authorized state depositories are 

received in Cash Management, reviewed, and 
forwarded to the appropriate state officials for 
consideration and approval. 

The Cash Management Division is responsi­
ble for the cash concentration and management 
of all state depository accounts. Cash Manage­
ment staff inquire on the balances of bank 
accounts and concentrate available funds into 
the State Trust to meet liquidity and invest­
ment needs. Account balances are drawn to 
the floor and concentrated by Fed Wlfe or 
Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) transactions. 
The account floor is the minimum amount 
required by the financial institution for that 
particular account to earn mterest. All of these 
state accounts are interest bearing. 

Changes in branch banking laws and bank 
ownership due to mergers and acquisitions 

Treasurer's Report 9 



State Cash Management 

have brought about a need to quickly identify 
the parent bank, h olding company and affiliate 
truslee custodians for ~tate depositories. The 
abiuty to access and update this information on 
a database enhances the ability to monitor 
deposits and collateral based on appropriate 
bank ownership. 

This same database is accessed for current 
account information for balance inquiry and 
cash concentrJ t10n. ft automates the link from 
balance mquiry to cash concentration by gener­
ating an ACH transaction. This automation 
provides more time to inqu ire on more ac­
counts. The accou nt balance floors are auto­
matically compared to the balances entered to 
calculate ACH transaction amounts. 

State Collateral Program 

Collateral is required to secure state deposits 
held in authorized state depository institutions 
Statute sets the required collateral level at a 
market value o f 105 percent of the value of the 
deposit secured, less the amount secured by 
the Federa l Depos1l Insurance Corpora hon. 
However, if the slate depository is operating 
with a capital-to-asset ratio of less than five 
percent, additional collateral wi th a market 
value of $100,000 is required . The types of 
investment instruments which are eligible to be 
pledged as colla teral are l1~te<l in this report. 

The s tate of the economy and the financial 
environment has increased the importance of 
monitoring collateral. Cash Management staff 
review collateral daily, weekly, and monthly. 
Any collateral deficiencies at authorized s tate 
depository institutions are reported to the 

IO Trea-,urnr's Report 

Funding Board monthly. Reasons for under­
collateralization include market price volahlity 
of the security pledged, unexpected high 
deposits to an account, interest accruals, capi­
tal-to-asset ra tios falling below five percent, 
and principal paydowns on asset backed 
securities which have been pledged as collateral. 

Legislation was passed in 1990 which per­
mitted ou t-of-state banks to apply to become 
trustee custodians fo r securities pledged to the 
state of Tennessee. In addition to the normal 
considerations, two major agreements a re 
required of such out-of-state institutions: (1) 
they must agree to be subject to the laws of the 
state of Tennessee and (2) they must be 
designated to hold collateral for the federal 
Treasury. Tax and Loan accounts. 

8-5-110 Collateral 

Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 8-5-1l0 
designates the Treasurer as the custodian of all 
collateral, securities, bonds and other valuable 
papers deposited with the state or any depart­
ment thereof, and requires the Treasurer to be 
exclusively responsible fo r the safekeeping 
thereof. 

Cash Management personnel work directly 
with the personnel of the state agencies to 
accept and release collateral held in accordance 
with their specific instructions. Other state 
agencies cooperating with the Treasurer in this 
regard include the Department of Health, the 
Department of Environment and Conservation, 
the Department of Commerce and Insurance, 
the Department of Transportation, a nd the 
Department of Financial Institutions. Reports of 
collateral transactions, holdings, and maturities 
are regu larly shared with these departments. 



Collateral Pool 

Legislation passed in March 1990 - "The 
Collateral Pool for Public Deposits Act'' -
authorized the formation of a collateral pool 
for banks. 

To minimize the risk to participating banks, 
the pool system operates under the jurisdiction 
of a Bank Collateral Pool Board. 

While bank participation in the pool is 
voluntary, participatton is subject to applica­
tion and approval by the Bank Collateral Pool 
Board, which has established minimum finan­
cial perfonnance levels to ensure that only 
healthy banks are permitted to participate. 

The board is comprised of seven members 
and is administered by the Treasurer's office. 
Four of the board members are bankers ap­
pointed by the Treasurer from nominations 
submitted by the Tennessee Bankers Associa­
tion. The remaining three members represent 
state and local government divisions. 

All funds are collateralized based on the 
total amount of public funds held. Individual 
public fund accounts are accumulated, and the 
cumulative total is collateralized and pledged. 

State Cash Management 

Target collateral pledge levels a re based on 
average ba lances in the public fund accounts. 

All collateral transachons for the pool are 
centralized and processed through the Treasury 
Department once a month, using uniform state­
wide procedures. 

The Bank Collateral Pool staff will monitor 
the pool through monthly, quarterly and annual 
bank reports of deposits and financial pertor­
mance of the pool members. In addition, the staff 
regularly reviews collateral pledge levels. 

Specific rules have been promulgated by 
the Bank Collateral Pool Board to guide the 
administration of the Bank Collateral Pool. The 
rules are included in a Bank Collateral Pool oper­
ations manual available to banks upon request. 

The staff of the Treasurer's office has 
worked with the Board to develop a program 
that is efficient, less costly, and provides a high 
level of risk reduction in the collateralization of 
public funds. In addition, the s taff has created 
a system that both banks and local government 
officials will find is easy to understand and 
administer. 

The Bank Collateral Pool was implemented 
on Novemberl, 1995with 13 banks participating. 

Treasurers Report 11 



State Cash Management 

Securities Acceptable as Collateral for State Deposits 

1. lJ.S. Treasury Buis 

2. u S Treasury Notes & Bonds 

3. Federal Housing Administration (FHA) debentures 

4. Government National Mortgage Associiltions (CNMA)• 

5. Farm Credit System (FCS) 
a. Federal Land Bank Bond (FLBB) 
b. Farm Credit Systemwide Bonds (FCSB) 
t. Farm Credi t Systemwide Discount Notes (FCDN) 
d . Farm Credit Systemwide Floating Rate Notpc; (FCFR) 

6. Federal Home Loan Banks 
a. Bonds (FHLB) 
b. Discount Notes (FHDN) 
c Floating Rate Notes (FHFR) 

7. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)• 
a. Mortgage-Backed Participation Certificates and Adjustable Rate Securities (FMPC, 

FMAR) 
b. Discount Notes (FMDN) 

8. Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMAY 
a. Bonds, Debentures, Secondary Market Debt Obligations (FNSM) 
b. Discount Notes (FNDN) 
c. Floating Rate Notes (FNFR) 
d. Mortgage-Backed Pass-Through Certificates (FNRF) 
e Residential Financing Securities (FNRF) 
f. Adjustable Rate Mortgage-Backed Bonds (FNAR) 

9 Stud ent Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) 
a. Discount Notes (SLDN) 
b. Fixed Rate Notes (SLMN) 
c. Floating Rate Notes (SLFR) 
d. Bonds (SLBD) 

10 Tennessee Valley Authority Bonds and Notes (TV A) 

11 Collateralized Morlgclge Obligations (CMOs) and Real Estate Mortgage Investment Con­
duits (REMJCs) that are direct obligations of a U.S. agency or FNMA/ FHLMC, except that 
the "residual'' class/ tranche of such securities will not be acceptable. Sufficient excess 
securities shoukJ be pledged to allow for the periodic reduction of principal. 

12. Certain Tennessee MurucipaJ Bonds as specified in T.C.A. Section 9-4-103. 

13. Surety Bonds issued by insurance companies meeting certain requirements. including 
licensure under the Jaws of Tennessee. 

• Pass tltrougli sccunt1es must rrflect curm1t paid down values and be kept up to date. 

12 Trci\ t>\.J rcr'-, Report 



Fiscal Year 

1494-45 
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State Cash Management 

Historical Analysis of State Cash Investments 

Avernge Amo1111t hmested Amount Earned 

Collateralized Time Deposits 

$ 743,203,083 $ 39.498,384 
524,944,000 18,544,812 
3n7,934,460 14,855,742 
287,1199,57q 16,274,530 
374,849,439 28,926,573 

Repurchase Agreements 

$ 172,311 ,500 $ 9,375,039 
154,941,333 5,181,537 
222,356,48'l 7, 138,186 
213,768,838 9,768,005 
204,465,829 15,081,792 

Commercial Paper 

$ 533,771,250 $ 29,866,669 
3TI ,247,833 13,478,983 
351,223, 148 11 ,857,182 
218,552,117 11 ,206,751 
204.276,091 15,752,444 

U.S. Government Securities 

$ 692,287.167 $ 34,534,311 
1,082,046,750 47,245,264 
1,022,595,573 49,207,450 

903,627, 136 60,499,203 
736,959,nl 1 60,114,144 

Securities Lending Income 

N/ A $ 487,467 
N/A 1,525, lll 
N IA 1,425,030 
NIA 1,070,580 
NIA 7%,026 

Total Funds 

Avcragr Total Total Cash 
Fumis J1mestcd Ma11ageme11 t Enmfoxs 

$2,141,573,000 $113,761.870 
2,133,1i9,916 85,975,707 
] ,964, 109 ,670 84,483,590 
1,623,1)47,670 98,819,069 
1,520,550.970 120,670,979 

Rate of Return 

5.34% 
3.54% 
4.03% 
5.603 
7.75% 

5.46% 
3.31% 
3.17% 
4.67clt, 

7 17o/c 

5.60% 
3.64% 
3.38% 
5.07% 
7.65% 

5.07% 
4.54'* 
5.07% 
6.72% 
8.17% 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
N/A 

Composite Weighted 
Avernge Rate of Retur11 

5.34% 
4.(.14% 
4.39% 
6.15% 
791 'X 
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State Cash Management 

Cash Management Investments 
Composite Weighted Average Rate of Return 1986-1995 
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Analysis of State Cash Earnings 1986-1995 
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Current 
lnve::.tment 

Date Y1eld 

07/94 4.41 % 
08/94 -1.62% 
09/94 4.78% 
10/ 94 4.85% 
11;q4 5.36% 
12/94 5.64'1o 
01 /95 5.65% 
02/95 6.02% 
03/95 6.07% 
04/95 6.06% 
05/95 6.05% 
06/95 6.07% 
Dollar 

S tate Cash Management 

Total 

Cash Management Portfolio Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995 

Portfolio Comp_osition 
Portfolio Avg. Days Time Repurchase U.S. Treasury 

Yield to Maturity Deposits AgTeements Notes 

4.47% 167 31.16% 6.02% 23.57% 
4.58% 163 32.96% 4.67% 26.34% 
4.68'k 154 32.01% 3.95% 27.77% 
4.85% 158 31.60% 9.67% 27.24% 
5.04% 153 30.95% 9.93% 20.76% 
5.26o/,, 145 28.20% 7.83% 21.68% 
5.54% 133 35.01% 8.34% 11.20% 
5.85% 133 33.47% 16.17% 11.64% 
5.92% 131 30.18% 9.61% 11 .77% 
5.95% 128 32.09% 5.13% 10.73% 
5.99% 138 38.63% 12.61 % 8.92% 
5.q7% 144 36.36% 8.82% 9.39% 

U.S. Commercial 
Agencies Paper 

16.28% 22.97% 
15.93% 20.10% 

9.59% 26.68% 
9.50% 21.99% 
5.66% 32.70% 

12.45% 29.8491-
14.62% 30.83% 
15.69% 23.033 
22.05% 26.39% 
17.82% 34.23% 
17.00% 22.84o/c 
22.37% 23.063 

w e1ghted 
Avg. 5.47% 5.34% 146 32.73% 8.56% 17.58% 14.91 % 26.22% 

General Fund LGIP Other Restricted 
Date Average Percent Average Percent Average Percent Total fnvested 

07/94 $ 658,833,454 27.95% $1, 148,656,803 48.72% $ 550,006,615 23.339' $ 2,357,496,872 
08 / 94 667,546,773 27.80% 1, 194,763,593 49.76% 538,822,817 22.44% 2,401,133,183 
09/94 554,144,223 24.16% 1,213,448,984 52.91% 525,799 ,777 22.93% 2,293,392,984 
10/94 430,793,110 19.72% 1,216,704,462 55.70% 537,017,060 24.58~ 2,184,514,632 
11 /94 312,301 ,874 15.11 <ft, 1,201?69,098 58.12% 553,552,568 26.77% 2,067,623,540 
12/ 94 254,341,326 12.86% 1,167,323,292 59.03'70 555,962,890 28.11 % 1, 977 ,627 ,508 
01/95 189,775,263 9.11% 1,343,801,663 64.51 % 549,40q,s41 26.38% 2,082,986,467 
02/95 85,077,987 4 21% 1,363,652,896 67.54% 570,277,343 28.25% 2,019,008,226 
03/95 ( 19,697,510) ( 0.96%) 1,546,272,839 75.09% 532,561,m 25.87o/r 2,059,137,106 
04;q5 201,408,524 9.18% 1,462, 153,625 66.623 531,260,028 24.20% 2, 194,822,177 
05/95 403,353,334 17.75% 1,331,299 ,020 58.57% 538,227,845 23.68% 2,272,880, 199 
06 / 95 324,786,971 14.61 % 1,349,116,164 60.70% 548,730,064 24.69% 2,222,633, 199 

Avg. $ 338,555,444 15.13% $1,294,913,537 59 .77% $ 544,302,360 25.10% $ 2,177,771,341 

No1e: The average General Fund balance for the year would have been $635.904.849 if General Fund Balances had not 
been required ro cover an average annual defic11 balance of $297.349.405 m Lhe Education Trust Fund. 
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State Cash Management 

Local Government Investment Pool 

Tennessee mumopn.lities, counties, school 
distncts, utility districts, community health 
agencies, local government units. and political 
subdivisions can deposit monies with the 
Trea~urer to be invested in the state cash 
management investment pool. Of course. these 
local governments can invest their monies 
dlfectly 1n the money market if they so desire. 
However, by allowing their doUars to be invest­
ed by the state they eliminate the complexities 
of managing day to day investment and collat­
eral relationships with banks and / or securities 
dealers. 

This allows cash managers who have 
previously been Limited either by the relatively 
small amount of funds available for investment 
or the complexities of today's investment 
environment to take advantage of the volume 
and expertise of the Treasurer's cash manage­
ment program. 

The Local Government Investment Pool 
began operations in November of 1980. Partici­
pation in the LGIP program currently stands at 
624 actJVe accounts, representing 233 local 
government umts. An additional 251 accounts 
are active in the Department of Transportation 
program as well. 

Local governments which enter into 
agreements with the Department of Transpor­
tation (DOT) often establish an LGTP account to 
fund the local matching portion of a highway 
project grant These DOT accounts are avail­
able to provide the local match to the specific 
highway project in a timely manner while 
earning interest for the local government. In a 
similar fashion, the Tennessee Board of Regents 
schools provide their matching portion of 
Capital Projects funds while earning interest 
for the benefit of the Board of Regents school. 

16 Treasurer's Report 

The Treasurer's Office has installed a facsim 
ilecopy machine to ass 1st participants of the LGIP 
in communicating their instructions regarding 
deposits, transfers or withdrawals.of funds. Thus, 
parhc1p.mts have the choice of communicating 
these instructions by telephone or telecopier. 

In addition, voice mail telephone service 
has been provided to permit LGIP participants 
to give telephone transaction instructions while 
staff is busy on other telephone lines Voice 
mail pemtits an increase in productivity while 
holding costs constant. During the year, the 
department developed a voice response system 
for u se by participants, giving them the abil ity 
to obtain account information and to initiate 
transactions. 

LGIP reports mailed to participants in­
clude monthly statements and transaction 
confirmations. Monthly statements detail all 
debits and credits to the account during the 
month, the account's average daily balance, 
and interest credited. A transaction confirma­
tion is mailed to the parlicipant each time a 
deposit or withdrawal is made. Many partici­
pants rely on this documentation for daily and 
weekly reconciliations. 

Participants earn interest on LGIP deposi ts 
based on the average rate of interest earned on 
the investments acquired for the entire cash 
management pool each month. This average 
earnings rate is reduced each month by six one 
hundredths of one percent (.06%) as an admin­
istrative fee for participating in the LGI P 
program. During the 1994-95 fiscal year, the 
average rate participants earned on their 
deposits after the fee reduction was 5.41 %. 

Other activity is shown on the foUowing 
schedulE> by participant group. 



Cities 

Counties 

Commitments 
to D.0 .T. 

Educational 
In~titutions 

Community 
Health Agencies 

Restncted 
Accounts 

Other 

TOTAL 

State Cash Management 

$ 

Local Government Investment Pool 
Schedule of Activity by Entity Type 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995 

Account Net Net Interest 
Balance Activity Credited 
7/1194 FY 1994-95 FY 1994-95 

313,446,883 $ (69,140,047) $ 17,837 ,576 

403,237,132 111,371,141 23,641 ,060 

23,876,764 (2,824,898) 1,305,251 

278,207,711 7,791 ,188 20,096,637 

2,762,794 2,486,7~6 283,515 

963,440 (58,618) 51 ,634 

114,661 ,832 22,356,545 7,199,266 

$ l ,137,156,556 $ 71,982,097 $ 70,414,939 

Account 
Balance 
6/30/95 

$ 262,144,412 

538,249,333 

22,357,11 7 

306,095,536 

5,533,095 

956,456 

144,217,643 

$ 1,279 ,553 ,592 
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State Cash Management 

State Trust of Tennessee 

The State Trust of Tennessee, a not-for­
profit corporation, 1..vas chartered in the state of 
Tennessee on April 20, 1979 and began opera­
ti ons in Decemberl980. TheStateTruslhas 
enabled the Treasury Department to gain 
limited membershjp in the Federal Reserve 
Bank System. Being a limited member of the 
Federal Reserve gives the Treasury Department 
access to the Federal Reserve Wire System, 
which is used to send, receive, transfer and 
control funds movement expediently under the 
Treasurer's management. 

Due to restnctions imposed upon state­
ovmed trust companies by the Federal Reserve 
Board, the State Trust of Tennessee is illnited in 

the number of daily outgoing wire transfers 
and can no longer settle ACH transacbons 
through its account at the Federal Reserve_ 

The restrictions required the State Trust of 
Tennessee to contract with an agent bank to 
execute these transactions. SunTrust Bank in 
Nash ville began serving as the Trust's agent 
on July 1, 1994. 

The State Trust became an associate mem­
ber of the Nashville Cleannghouse on 
April 1, 1994. Approximately 85% of all check 
items presented for redemption are processed 
through the clearinghouse. 

State Trust Of Tennessee Federal Reserve Bank Transactions 

Fiscal Year 1994-95 

Transaction Type 

(1) Wire Disbursements 
(2) Wire Receipts 
(3) Security Disbursements 
(4) Security Receipts 
(5) Check Redemptions 

TOTAL 

Explanation of Transaction Types: 

Number 

832 
7,290 
2,887 
4,060 

5.879,283 

5,894,352 

Amount 

$ 1, 572,217,539 
11,722,368,213 
41,683,022,240 
41 ,768,478,397 

6,377,965,879 

$ 103,124,052,268 

(1) Disbur!)ements nf cash for the purpose of non-Fed eligible securities, settlement wires to agent 
bank, and other non-recurring wires. 

(2) Receipt of cash for payment of interest and pnncipal for non-Fed eligible securities, concentration 
of C'1Sh depo~ited in local banks, drawdown of Federal funds, and Local Government Jn vestment 
Pool (LGI P) depo::.its. 

(3) D1sbursement of Cdsh against the receipt of Fed eligible securities (U.S. Government securities 
held in book-entry form by the Federal Reserve Bank). 

(4) Receipt of cash against tl1e disbur::.ement of Fed eligible secunties. 
(5) Redemphon of warrants, draft!>, and check::. issued by the state. 
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I nvestment objectives for the TCRS 
investment Division are to obtain the 
highest available return on mvestments 
consistent with the preservation of 

principal, while maintaining sufficient liquidity 
to react to the changing environment and to 
pay beneficiaries in a timely manner. 

TCRS Investment Division's policies and 
strategies serve to benefit plan members in 
several ways. The emphasis on conservative 
and high quality securities and allocations 
helps to ensure the soundness of the system 
and the ability to provide the needed funds 
upon a member's retirement. 

Funds in the retirement system are actively 
managed with a diversified portfolio of high­
quality domestic and international bonds, 
domestic and international stocks, mortgages, 
and money market instruments. Investment 
policy for TCRS funds JS subject to the approval 
of the Board of Trustees. 

An Investment Advisory Council was 
established by the Consolidated Retirement Act 
of 1972 to provide policy guidance to the Board 
of Trustees and the investment staff. The 
current Advisory Council is comprised of five 
senior investment professionals from within 
the state of Tennessee. All five members hold 
the Chartered Financial Analyst designation_ 
The Advisory Council's combined investment 
management experience totals over 160 years. 

TCRS Investments 

Initiatives 

Effective July 1, 1994, Boston Safe Deposit 
and Trust Company began providing Master 
Trust Custodial services. The master custodian 
provides safekeeping, accounting and securi­
ties lending services. Previously, accounting 
services for investment activity were per­
formed internally. 

The investment portfolio accounting 
system was replaced effective July 1, 1994 in 
coordination with the change to the new 
custodian. The new internal investment 
portfolio system serves as a securities invento­
ry control system and a control for the receipt 
of investment income. The securities recorded 
on the securities inventory control system are 
reconciled monthly to the securities held by 
the custodial bank. 

The Board of Trustees gained authorization 
to designate the countries in which interna­
tional equity mvestments may be made. The 
division also gained authorizahon to use 
external international equity ma nagers. The 
number of countries in which TCRS may 
invest will be expanded with the designation 
of external international equity managers. 
Five styles of external international equity 
management will be employed November 1. 
1995. The five s tyles include Europe-Value, 
Europe-Growth, Pacific Basin-Value, Pacific 
Basin-Growth, and Emerging Markets. 
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T C RS In vestments 

Summary of Retirement Fund Investments 

j1111e 30, 1995 fune 30, 1994 

Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value 

Domes/ 1c Srcurihe:.· 
Gcwemmcnl Bonds $ J.668,148,128 $ 3,930,20.'1,081 5 3, 147,297,369 $ 3,188,693,196 
C1rporatL· Bvnd!:i 3,038,098,538 3,110,967,317 3 ,043 ,382,314 2,977,248,%9 
Corpl1rate St0ck::. 3 ,500 ,(,()5 ,826 4,165,908,786 2,801 ,050,246 3, 106,385,423 

--
Total Dmnestic Secunties $ 10,21-1,852,492 $ 11,207,081,184 $ 8,991,729,929 $ 9,272,327,588 

/11tenwtio11a/ Secunties: 
Gov~rnmcnt Bonds $ 634,253,596 $ 683,428,051 $ 615,971 ,021 $ 621,233,866 
Corporate• Bonds 338,581,133 367 ,596,792 192,778,906 201,034,372 
Corporate Stocks 804,317,178 841.ln ,442 655,057,348 733,538,681 

~encan Dep0!.1tory Receipt!> 55,583,509 70,256,688 9,152,098 20,092,439 

Tvtal 111/emahonal Secunhes $ 1,832,735,416 $ 1,962,452,973 $ 1,472,959,373 $ 1,575,899,358 - --
Short Tenn Sccunties $ 968.231,409 $ 968,197,966 $ 1,622,722,260 $ 1,619,110,937 
-- ---
Total lnueshnents $ 13,015,819,317 $ 14,137,732,123 $ 12,087,411,562 $ 12,467,337,883 

Distribution of International Investments 
June 30, 1995 

Stocks Fixed Income Total 

Book Market Book Market Book Market 
Country Value Value Value Value Value Value 

Australia $ 24,568,767 $ 31,272,297 $ 36, 119,759 $ l5,806,618 $ 60,688,525 $ 67,078,915 

Canada il,458,773 68,392,875 262,516,220 261,585,891 333,974,993 329,978,i66 

France 64,300.805 69,495,631 €{),842,520 6.3,258, 167 125,143,325 132,753,798 

japan 340,175,610 324,544,627 139,591,383 175~,482 479166,993 499,829,109 

Nl'llll'T"iand~ 114.024,™7 130,025,073 223,920, 129 251,327,131 337,944,176 381,.352,2(» 

Swi t:zerland 27,054,389 31,671,975 4,334,647 4,770,{U) 31,389,()36 36,441,975 

Unitro Kin~dom lRS)W0,754 214,550,()22 154,971,616 165,991,305 340 ,812,370 380,.541,327 

Gcrmany 32,477,512 41,475,630 90,538,455 93t.()1,244 123,015,997 134,476,879 

----
Tuta/ $ 859,900,687 s 911,428.130 $ 972JfJ4,n9 $1,ffiI,!l'24,843 $ 1)332,735,416 $1,962,452,Q73 
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TCRS Performance Summary 
Fiscal Years 1985-86 Through 1994-95 

TCRS Investments 

£xclucling Gains and Losses focluding Gaitis and Losses 

Average Percentage Average Percentage 
fiscal Amount Amount Earned on Amount Amount Earned on 
Year Invested Earned Book Value Invested Ea med Book Value 

1994-95 $ 12,347,068,826 $ 730,338,058 5.92% $ 12,247,025,328 $ 930,425,055 7.60% 
1993-94 11,307,342,174 639, 183,089 5.65 11,012,091,947 1,229,683,543 11.17 
1992-93 10, 108,497,939 634,818,640 6.28 9,857,173,789 1,137,466,939 11 54 
1991-92 9,026,797,509 627,814,872 6.96 8,847,594,762 986,220,366 11.15 
1990-91 8,134,018,497 583,497,298 7.17 8,049,275,637 752,983,018 9.35 
1989-90 7,285,571,828 527,470,999 7.24 7,154.949,468 788,715,719 11.02 
1988-89 6,492,258,416 474,648,937 7.31 6,454,807,817 549,550,134 8.51 
1987-88 5,790,721,402 412.547,763 7 12 5,710,292,216 573,406, 134 10.04 
1986-87 4,918,934.167 366,812,760 7.46 4,802,008,843 726,663,408 15.13 
1985-86 4, 159,389,303 342,666,987 8.24 4,048,574,353 564,296,889 13.94 

NOTE: The formula US('d to calculate the above figures has been dev1sed consistent with authoritative 
sources ab~ent specific generally accepted accountmg principle!'> promulgating such and IS as fo llows: 

"''HERE 

{A + 13 - I)/2 
I =Current eamingc; plus discount mmu!> premium 
A= Total as-;ct-. Iese; current liabili ties at beginning of year 
B =Total assets lec;s current liabilities a1 end of year 

Rates are computed where I includes and excludes gains and losses on !>ale., of investments. 

1994-95 

1993-94 

1992-93 

1991-92 
~ 
Q.I 1990-91 >---~ 

1989-90 l.J 

"° .... 
j..t., 

1988-89 

1987-88 

1986-87 

1985-86 

2 0, 
/ 0 6 0/ 

, () 

D W 1th Cams and Losses 

II Without Gains and Losses J 

8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 
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TCRS Investments 

TCRS Investments Benchmark Analysis 

'Public Fund 31ncome Yield 4Yield To 
Fiscal Index Median 2TCRS On Average Maturity 
Year Total Return Total Return Available Funds New Bonds 

---
1994-95 15.4Gfr 12 8~ 4.76% 7.3 1 ~ 

1993-l/4 1.t> (l.5 4.81 5.9 1 
1992-93 13.2 15.1 5.16 6.48 
1991 -92 12. l 13.7 5.44 8.22 
l 990-C)l 7 .9 7.8 5.97 8.05 
1989-QO 10.4 1 l.6 6.03 9.01 
1988-89 14.2 15.3 6.35 9.36 
1987-8H 1.9 2.0 5.49 9.21 
1986-87 10.f< 10.3 5.53 8.50 
1985-86 25.2 27.7 5 .21 9.67 

1Th1'- index mo..,t closely rc:~embles the !-tructure and objective~ 1)t TCRS. 

2Thi.~ 1s the ti me wc1ghtt>d method med to calculate retur n& a nd 1s the most accurate way to measure pcr­
Jcirmanc(' 

1Th1., 1~ tht> to t.:i I J1 v1dend and intere:.t 111come earned in one year and expressed as a percentage of average 
hmd& available tu invc~t al amorhLed cost. It does not include discount amortizahon of bonds or lending tees 

'Thi" 1s the yiuld to maturity on bonds acquired with new funds during each fo;ca l year 

Fiscal Year 

1994-95 
IY93-94 
1992-93 
1991-92 
1 YY0-91 
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Summary of Investment Program Earnings 
Fiscal Years 1990-91Through1994-95 

Cash 
Ma nagement TCRS Portfolio Total 

Earnings Earnings Earnings 

$ 113,761,870 $ 930,425,055 $ 1,044,186,925 
85,975,707 1,229,683,543 1,315,659 ,250 
84,604,170 1, 137,466,939 1,222,0il ,1 oq 
99,055,579 986,220,366 1,085,275,945 

121,066,041 752,983,01~ 874,049,059 



Tennessee Consolidated Retiren"\ent System 

T he Tennessee Consolidated Retire­
ment System (TCRS) was established 

July 1, 1972. Prior to this date, there 
were seven different public employee retire­
ment systems. The TCRS, a defined benefit 
plan which is qualified Wlder 401(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC), is a retirement 
system for state employees, higher education 
employees, teachers, and local government 
employees. 

Membership 

Membership in the retirement system is a 
condition of employment for full-time state em­
ployeesI teachers, general employees in higher 
education, and the employees of local govern­
ments that participate in TCRS. Membership is 
optional for certain part-time employees. Faculty 
employees in higher education may participate in 
either TCRS or an Optional Retirement Program 
(ORP), wh1ch is a defined contribution plan 
designed for faculty employees in institutions of 
higher education. When an employee jams TCRS, 
he receives an mtroductory letter and membership 
pamphJet outlimng various aspects of retirement 
membership. 

State employees and teachers become vested 
after five years of service. Poli tical subdivision 
members attain vested status upon completion 
of 10 years unless five year vesting has been 
authorized. A vested member is guaranteed a 
retirement benefit once the age requirements 
are met. 

As of June 30, 1995, there were 173,778 
active members of TCRS and 10,128 higher 
education employees participating in the ORP. 

Since July 1, 1976, all new members of the 
TCRS except state judges have been classified 
as Group I members. State judges have been 
permitted to eruoll in Group N since Septem­
bt r 1, 1990. From July 1, 1972 to June 30, 1976, 
all employees were classified as Group I, with 
the exception of state policemen, wildlife 
officers, firemen and policemen who were 
classified as Group 11, and judges and elected 
officials who were classified as Croup ill. 
Members of seven superseded systems are 
permitted to retain their original rights and 
benefits. 

Active Members Fiscal Years 1991-1995 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Contributions 

The funding of retirement benefits is 
financed by member contributions, employer 
contributions, and the earnings of the invested 
assets. Effective] ul y 1, 1981, the employee 
contributions of certain state employees and 
higher education employees were assumed by 
the state. l.ocal governments can also adopt 
these noncontributory provisions for their 
employees. Group I K-12 teachers and contrib­
utory local government employees contribute 
to TCRS at the rate of S°/., of gross salary. 
Employee contribution rates vary for supersed­
ed classifications. 

Effective January 1, 1987, all state employees 
and teachers who contnbute a portion of their 
income to the retirement system became cov­
ered by Section 414(h) of the Tntemal Revenue 
Code. Under 414{h), payment of federal in­
come tax on an employee'~ retirement contri­
butions is deferred until these contributions are 
withdrawn m the form of a refund or monthly 
benefit payments. Political subdivisions may 
pas!:> a resolution adopting Section 414(h) 
coverage for their employees. 

Upon termination of employment, a mem­
ber may elect to withdraw his contributions 

and accumulated interest from the retirement 
system in a lump swn. By obtaining a lump 
sum refund, a member waives all rights and 
benefits in the retirement system. A vested 
member may leave his account balance in 
TCRS and apply for benefits upon meeting the 
age requirements. A non-vested member who 
terminates employment may only leave his 
account balance in TCRS for up to seven years 
During the 1994-95 fiscal year, 4,788 refunds 
totaling $20.9 million were issued. 

The contribution rate for the employers 
participating in the retirement system is deter­
mined by a biennial actuarial valuation per­
formed by an independent actuarial firm. The 
contribution rates include funding for the basic 
benefit, the cost-of-living increase provisions, 
and amortization of the accrued liability over a 
40 year period which began in July of 1975 
The employer contribution rates for the year 
ending June 30, 1995 were as follows: 

Noncontributory State and 
Higher Education Employees 6.33% 

K-12 Teachers 8.51% 
Political Subdivisions Indiv1dually 

Faculty Members Electing 
to Participate in the ORP 

Deterouned 

10.00~o• 

., 1 % for salary above the social secunty wage ba::.e. 

Retirement Contributions Fiscal Years 1986-1995 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Retirement Benefits 

The benefits provided by TCRS are de­
signed, when combined with the benefit pay­
able from social security, to allow career em­
ployees to maintain their standard of living at 
retirement. 

As of June 30, 1995, 62,090 retirees were 
receiving monthly benefit payments. This 
represents an increase of 2,376 retirees since 
June 30, 1994. 

Group I state employees and teachers 
become eligible to retire from the TCRS at age 
60 with five years of service or at any age with 
30 years of service. State employees and 
teachers become vested after five years of 
service. Political subdivision members attain 
vested status upon completion of 10 years 
unless five year vesting has been authorized. 
Retirement benefits are based on the average of 
the member's five highest consecuhve years of 
salary and the years of creditable service. A 
reduced retirement benefit is available to 
vested members at age 55 or upon completion 
of 25 vears of service. 

Disability benefits are available to active 
members with five years of service who be­
come disabled and can not engage in gainful 
employment. There is no service requirement 
for disability benefits paid to active members 
whose disability is a result of an accident or 
injury occurnng while the member was in the 
performance of duty. 

Cost-of-living ad1ustments after retirement 
are based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI). 
If there is an increase or decrease in the CPI of 
as much as 1 % in any calendar year, the retired 
member's base benefit will be adjusted by an 
amomlt equal to the increase or decrease in the 
CPI, not to exceed 3%. 

Certain death benefits are ava1 lable to the 
beneficiary(s) of a member who dies prior to 
retirement. At retirement, a member can select 
an optional benefit which 1s actuarially reduced 
so that his beneficiary may continue to receive 
a benefit after his death. 

Benefits paid in fiscal year 1994-95 totaled 
$443.4 million, an increase of MS.2 million over 
1993-94 benefit payments. 

Annual Benefit Payments Fiscal Years 1986-1995 
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Tennessee Consolidate d Retirement System 

Tennessee's Retirement Program 

TCRS and Social Security Benefits 

Sample Calculations for Calendar Year 1995 

Five Year AFC 20 Years 25 Years 30 Years 

$15,000 TCRS $ 4,725 $ 5, 906 $ 7,088 
Social Secu rity 7,836 7,836 7,836 

Total $ 12,561 (83.7%) $ 13,742 (9] .b'lo) $ 14,924 (99.5%) 

$20,000 TCRS $ 6,300 $ 7,875 $ 9,450 
Social Security 9,468 9,468 ~ 

Tnt;i l $ 15,768 (78.8%) $ 17,343 (86.7%) $ 18,918 (94H7t) 

$25,000 TCRS $ 7,896 $ 9,870 $ 11,844 
Socinl Security 11,112 11,1 12 11.1 12 

Tntal $ 19,008 (76.0%) $ 20,982 (83.9%) $ 22,956 (91.8%) 

$30,000 TCRS $ 9,734 $ 12,167 $ 14,600 
Social Security 12,552 12,552 12.552 

Total $ 22,2~6 (74.3%) $ 24.719 (82.4%) $ 27,152 (90.5%) 

$35,000 fCRS $ 11,571 $ 14,464 $ 17,357 
Social 5ecunty 13,092 13,092 13,092 

Total $ 24,663 (70.5%) $ 27,556 (78.7%) $ 30,449 (~7.0%) 

$40,000 TCRS $ 13,-+09 $ 16,761 $ 20,113 
Sonal Security 13,488 13,488 13,488 

Tota l $ 26,897 (67.2%) $ 30,249 (75.6%) $ 33,601 (84.0%) 

$45,000 TCRS $ 15,246 $ 19,058 $ 22jl69 
Soci.11 Security 13,848 13,848 13.848 

Toti!l $ 29,094 (64.7%) $ 32,906 (73.1 %) $ 36,717 (81.6%) 

nus ch11rl is basr•d 011 a date o( retire111e11t in 1995. Social Security benefits have been calc11lated by Brya11, 
f>e11dl1?to11, Swats & McAllister, act11anal co11s11/ta11ts for the TCRS, 11tili:i11g the following assumptions: (1) retire-
1111mt took place at age 65 m 1995; (2) the retiree worked a full career (TCRS plus other employers, if necessary) of 35 
year:> or 111ure, and, (3) c;a/ar~ i11cr11Ast'S throughout the retiree's cart'erfvllowed the same pattem as Nntio11al Azierage 
Ear11111~:. 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Actuarial Valuation 

An actuarial valuat10n of the TCRS is 
performed by an independent actuarial firm 
every two years. The purpose of the valuation 
is to determine the funding requirements for 
the employers participating in the TCRS. The 
latest valuation was performed June 30, 1995 to 
establish employer contribution rates for the 
two year period beginning July 1, 1996. The 
system's accrued liability is $56. l mil lion. The 
accrued liability is being amortized over a 40 
year period which began in 1975. 

In addition to the biennial actuarial valua­
tion, an experience study is conducted every 
four years for the purpose of establishing 
actuarial and economic assumptions to be used 
in the actuarial valuation process. Following 
are the assumptions used in the June 30, 1995 
actuarial valuation of the plan: 

Economic Assumptions 
(1) 8% annual return on investments 
(2) 7% salary increases annually 
(3) 6% annual mcrease in social security 

wage base 

Actuarial Assumptions 
(1) Pre-Retirement mortality based on age 

and sex 
(2) Post-Retirement mortality based on age 

and sex 
(3) Disability rate based on age 
(4) Turnover rate based on age and length 

of service 
(5) Retirement age distribution based on age 

and service 

The pension benefit obligation (the present 
value of pension benefits, adjusted for proJect­
ed salary increases, estimated to be payable in 
the future as a resuJt of employee service to 
date) totaled $12.1 billion at the June 30, 1995 
actuarial valuation date. Net assets of $13-2 
billion, equaling 108.5% of the pension benefit 
obligation (PBO), were available for benefits. 
This overall ratio indicates that the TCRS is 
among the most strongly funded systems in 
the nation. 

Political Subdivisions 

Political subdivisions may participate in 
the TCRS if the chief governing body passes a 
resolution authorizing coverage and accepting 
the liability associated with the coverage. Each 
political subdivision is responsible for the 
retirement cost of its employees and, in addi­
tion to employer contributions, pays the TCRS 
a fee for the administration of its plan under 
TCRS. 

Political Subdivision Participation 
as of June 30, 1995 

Cities 123 
Counties 83 
Uulity Districts 29 
Speoal School Districts 20 
joint Ventures 22 
Mjscellaneous Organizations 16 
Regional Libraries 12 
911 Emergency Commumration Districts 19 
Housing Authont1es 10 
Development Agencies -11 

Total 346 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Major Legislative Improvements 

1972 TI1v benefit fonnula wa., improved from 1.12% of 
sal<lry up tP the Sona I SL'CUrilv Integration Level 
(SSJL) to l.5% of salMy ·up to the SSIL. 

1973 An annual cost-of-lh·ing increase, based on the 
Consumer Pnce Index (CPI) with a cap of 1.5% was 
ddopted for retirees. 

1974 Disability retirement eligibility requirement 
wris reduced from 10 years to five years of service. 

The mm1mum benefit wa~ incrcaSl'd from $5.34 to 
$7.00 per month per year of t-ervice. 

Thi:.' maximum annual cost-of-living increase was 
ra1S(-d from 1.5% to 3%. 

A provision was made to increase retirees' benefits 
whenever the benetit formula is improved. 

Service credit WtJ:>auU1onzt.'CI for unused accumu­
lated sick leave. 

1976 Service retirement l:.'hgibility requirements were 
reduced from age 6.5 or 35 years of service to age 
60 or 30 yt:ars of service. 

Farly retirement eligibility requirements were r~ 
duced from age 60 or 30 years of service to age 55. 

1978 A bonus cu::;t-of-li ving increase wa5t granted 
to retirees at a lump-sum cost of $15.3 million. 

An optiomil retirement plan wall establi!>hed for 
teacher:. 1n the Board of Regents system. 

1980 Death benefit~ for members dying in-service 
with 10 years of service was improved by offenng 
a Hl0% joint and survivor annwty of the member's 
accrued benefit for the spouse. 

1981 Non-contributory retirement for state employees 
and higher education employees wall adopted. 
The employees' contribubons-up to 5%-wereas­
sumed by the state. Sa lanes of employees in active 
sen•1ce on the date the!.e prov1s1ons were adopted 
were indexed by 3.6%. Subsequent leg1~lat1on has 
continued this mdexing each )'ear since. 

1983 An actuarially rL-duced retirement benefit at anv 
n~e with 25 , years of service wall authorized. 

1984 Credit for out-{'lf-state :.erv1ce for the purpose of 
detennmingr!!hrementeligib1litywa:.authonzed. 
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Retirement credit for armed conflict military 
sennce was approved. 

The minimum benefit was incr~ed from 57 to 

$8 per month per year of service. 

Part-time empl0yces were permitted to 
participatein TCRSandmemberswereallowed to 
establish credit for previous part-time employ­
ment. 

1985 An ad hoc increase was granted to retirees at a 
lump-sum cost of $22 million. 

Death benefits for spouse and children were 
provided when member's death is in the line of 

duty. 

1987 Service credit for half of peacetime milita11· 
service was made available. 

Another ad hoc increase to retirees was proVlded 
at a lump-sum cost of S 17 million. 

A retirement incentive program was offered for 
state employees retiring dunng a 90-day window. 

Section 414(h) of the IRC was adopted to provide 
that employee contributions are made on a tax­
deferred basis. 

1989 Retirement service credit for members receiving 
worker's compensation due to a temporary 
disability was made available. 

1990 A retirement incentive program was offered for 
state employees retiring dunng a 120-day 
wmdow. 

1991 The Board of Trustees was authorized to 
designate additional vendors for the opaonal re­
tirement plan for higher education employees. 

1992 The minimum number of years required to qualify 
for retirement was reduced from 10 to five years. 

Disabtl1ty and death benefits were made available 
to inactive, vested members. 

1993 Salary portability for ~rvice in different 
classifications was authonzed effective Jan. 1, 1994. 

A 5% benefit improvement \'\>'tl.i:I authonz.ed 
effective January 1, 1994. 

1995 3.6% mdexmg of salaries for noncontributory 
employees was extended for an additional y&"tr. 



Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Social Security 

The Old Age & Survivors Insurance Agency 
(OASI) administers Section 218 of the federal 
Social Security Act for Tennessee public em­
ployees. This section relates to coverage 
agreements and modifications as well as to 
coverage determinations. 

Prior to 1951, social security coverage was 
not available to public employees. Amend­
ments to the Social Security Act made in 1950 
allowed certain groups of state and local gov­
ernment employees who were nol covered by 
an employer-sponsored retirement plan to 
voluntarily participate in social security. 
Amendments made in 1954 allowed coverage 
for public employees who were covered by an 
employer-sponsored retirement plan if federal 
referendum requirements are met. 

The Tennessee Master Agreement was 
executed on August 16, 1951. It provided full 
social security coverage (retirement, survivors, 
disability, and hospital insurance) to public 
employees who were not covered by an em­
ployer-sponsored retirement plan. A modifica-

tion to the agreement, effective January 1, 1956, 
provided social security coverage to employees 
serving in positions which were then covered 
by the Tennessee State Retirement System and 
Lhe Tennessee Teachers' Retirement System. 
After the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement 
System was established July 1, 1972, a state­
wide sociaJ security coverage referendum was 
held among eligible employees. 

The I <)85 Budget Reconciliation Act mandat­
ed Medicare hospital insurance coverage for 
public employees hired after March 31, 1966 
w ho do not have full social security coverage. 
The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Acl of 
1990 (OBRA) generally mandated full social 
security coverage for state and local govern­
ment employees who are not covered by an 
employer-sponsored retirement plan. 

Effective in 1991, separate wage bases were 
implemented for social security and Medicare 
and separate reporting of withholding was 
required. Since 1991 , the social security tax rate 
has been 6.20%· each for employers and em­
ployees and the Medicare (hospital insurance) 
rate has been 1.45% each. 

Schedule of Historical Social Security Contribution Rates 

Social Security Medicare 
Calendar Year Employee Rate Employer Rate Wage Base Wage Base 

1996 7.65% 7.65% $ 62,700 No Limit 
1995 7.65 7.65 61,200 No Limit 
1994 7.65 7.65 60,600 No Limit 
19<)3 7.65 7.65 57,600 $135,000 
1992 7.65 7.65 55,500 130,200 

1991 7.65 7.65 53,400 125,000 
1990 7.65 7.65 51,300 51,300 
1989 7.51 7.51 48,000 48,000 
1988 7.51 7.51 45,000 45,000 
1987 7 1.S 7.15 43,800 43,800 
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Deferred Compensation 

T he Deferred Compensation Program 
is a voluntary program designed to 

provide state employees with the 
opportunity to accumulate supplemental 
retirement income on a tax deferred basis. 
Participants may postpone income taxes on 
contributions and earnings by agreeing to defer 
receipt of a portion of their current income 
until retirement. 

This program offers employees two 
plans. The 457 plan was implemented in the 
1981-82 fiscal year and the 40l(k) plan was 
implemented in the 1983-84 fiscal year. 

A5 of June 30, 1995, 11,706 employees 
had accounts in the program: approximately 
19% had accounts in the 457 plan only, 66% 
had accounts in the 401(k) plan only, and 15% 
had accounts in both plans. At June 30, 1,779 
state ernploye0s and 102 University of Tennes­
see employees were actively contributing to the 
457 plan and 5,716 state employees and 962 
Uru\iersity of Tennessee employees were 
actively contributing to the 401(k) plan. The 
program is used by state employees of all ages 
and salary levels The majority are under age 
SO and earn below $35,000 per year. 

IRS regulations for 1995 allow a maxi­
mum deferral in the 457 plan of 25% of salary 
up to the maximum annual contribution of 
$7,500. The maximum deferral in the 401(k) 
plan is 20% of salary for most members, up to 
the maximum annual contribution of $9,240. 
Participants who use both plans are subject to a 
combined plan limit of 25% of salary up to 
$7,500. The average annual deferral among 
state employee participants was $2, 160 at ]W1e 
30, 1995. 

During the 1994-95 fiscal year, the Gener­
al Assembly passed legislation authorizing 
state matching contributions of $20 per month 
to the 401 (k) plan beginning in January 1996. 

Enrollment and recordkeeping services for 
the program are provided by Security First 
Group, formerly known as The Holden Group. 
The use of a separate administrator enables the 
program to offer a wide variety of investment 
products and to offer participants the flexibillty 
to traru;fer accumulated funds among uwest­
ment providers without penalty. 

Participants in the program receive a 
quarterly statement showing contnbuhons and 

Participants 1991- 1995 
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earnings during the quarter. In addition, once 
a year, participants receive a special statement 
projecting their account balance to a variety of 
retirement ages and showing the monthly 
income those account balances might provide. 
The program provides a variety of communica­
tion materials, including a video, a voice 
response telephone system, a handbook for 
participants, and an mtroductory booklet for 
new employees. 

Participants in the program may direct the 
investment of their deferred salnry to Union 
Planters Time Deposit Account, Aetna's Fixed 
Account, Great-West Life's three year or five 
year Guaranteed Certificate Funds, Calvert's 
Jncome Fund, and Fidelity Investments' 
Magellan Fund, Puritan Fund, OTC Portfolio, 
Contrafund, International Growth and lncome 
Fund, Asset Manager, and Retirement Govern­
ment Money Market Portfolio. Contributions 
are wired through the State Trust of Tennessee 
for immediate crediting. 

As illustrated below, at June 30, 1995 
participants had invested 62% of accumulated 
assets and 73% of new deferrals in variable 
mutual funds. 

Deferred Compensation 

For the year ending June 30, 1995, partici­
pants deferred a total of $18,818,921 th.rough 
the program. At June 30, 1995, accumulated 
account balances totaled $198,734,299. Distri­
bution of these funds among the investment 
providers is shown on the following page. 

Benefits from the program may be distrib­
uted in periodic payments, in an annuity, or in 
a lump sum. At June 30, 1995, there were 243 
mdtviduals receiving periodic payments and 
184 individuals receiving annuity payments 
from the program. The majority of retiring 
participants and beneficiaries elect to wilhdraw 
funds from the program in a lump sum 

Under the loan program offered in the 
40 I (k) plan, active employees who have accu­
mulated $4,000 or more in their 40l(k) account 
may borrow up to half of their account value. 
Participants repay principal and interest to 
their 401 (k) account through salary deduction. 
Taxes continue to be deferred while funds 
accumulated in the plan are in loan status. 
During the 1994-95 fiscal year, there were 140 
loans issued, bringing the total munber of 
outstanding loans to 319 as of}Lme 30, 1995 
Out~tanding loan balances totaled $1.4 million 

Distribution of Deferred Compensation Funds 
By Investment Category 
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Deferred Compen sation 

Deferred Compensation Deferrals and Assets 

Deferrnls 

FY 1994-95 FY 1993-94 
Plan I: 457 

Aetna - Closed Contract $ 0 $ 0 
Aetna - New Contract 638,162 635,811 
American Genera l 125,085 78,036 
Calvert Group 52,290 50,256 
Fidelity Investments 2,635,058 2,501,336 
Great West 221,639 277,361 
Union Planters 707,6lq 717,485 

TOTAL457 $ 4,379,853 $ 4,260,285 

Plan II: 401 (k) 
Aetna - Closed Conlract $ () $ 0 
Aetna - New Contract 2,045,632 1,600,497 
Calvert Group 288,967 259,542 
Fidelity Investments 10,493,181 8,866,677 
Great We~t 309,725 358,115 
Union Planters 1,301,563 1, 135,210 

TOTAL 40J(k) $14,439,068 $12,220,041 

GRANDTOlAL $18,818,921 $16,480,326 

Program Assets 1986-1995 

1995 ~---.....-------...... --

1994 E=====i!~!!!.!!9! 
1993 ..._-----~~111111 

1992 E=~==~•;! 
~ 1991 ic:;;:;;~•i.ii 
QI 

>­
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iZ 1989 

1988 

1987 

1986 

Market Value 
of Account Balances 

June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 

$ 18,700,246 $ 18,666,077 
9,417,932 7,595,295 

998,466 993,998 
324,675 330,012 

40,132,431 30,673,490 
5,641,763 5,882,390 

14,806,977 13,833,317 

$ 90,022,490 $ 77,974,579 

$ 10,465,622 $ 10,741,604 
12,143,606 8,811,08) 

793,017 557,108 
69,784,538 49,145,551 

5,197,465 5,498,060 
10,327,561 8,808,481 

$108,71] ,809 $ 83,561,885 

$198,734,299 $161,536,-164 

SO 520,000 $40,000 $60,000 $80,000 $100,000 S120,000 $140,000 $160,000 $180,000 $200,000 

In Thousands 

"2 I reasurer·~ Report 



T he Flexible Benefits Plan is an 
optional benefit plan which enables 

state employees to pay for certain 
expenses with tax-free salary. Autho-

rized under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue 
Code, this plan allows employees to avoid 
income tax and social security tax on the 
portion of the upcoming year's salary they 
agree to set aside for that year's (1) group 
medical insurance premiums, (2) group dental 
insurance premiums, (3) out-of-pocket medical 
expenses, and (4) dependent care expenses. 

In exchange for its favorable tax treat­
ment, the plan must comply with specific rules 
set forth by the Internal Revenue Code and 
Regulations. Employees must decide what 
they will purchase through the plan and how 
much they will spend before the year begins. 
State employees enrolled in a group health or 
dental insurance program are automatically 
enrolled in the insurance premium portion of 
the plan unless they elect 11ot to participate. 
Use of the other benefit options requires a new 
election each year. 

Enrollment in the plan is for a full calen­
dar year. Enrollments may not be changed 
after the year has begun unless the employee 
experiences a change in family status and 
reports that change promptly. Employees 
must use the amounts set aside in each cat­
egory for corresponding expenses incurred 

Flexible Benefits Plan 

during the year and any amount not used by 
the employee must be subject to forfeiture. 

Tennessee's Flexible Benefits Plan, or 
"cafeteria" plan was implemented January 1, 
1989. The Treasury Department took over 
administration of the program effective January 
1, 1992. 

The majority of state employees use the 
plan to pay medical insurance premiums or 
dental insurance premiums. In addition, at 
June 30, 1995, 2,456 state employees used the 
medical expense reimbursement account and 
368 used the dependent care reimbursement 
account. 

Since contributions to the plan are exempt 
from both employee and employer F.l.C.A. 
(social security) tax, employees' use of the plan 
creates F.I.C.A. savings for the state. Jn fiscal 
year 1994-95, the state's F.l.C.A. savings totaled 
$ 2,141,935. Since the program began operation 
in January 1989, the state's F.l.C.A. savings 
have totaled $10,411,698. Savings exceeding 
the costs of administering the plan have been 
designated for offsetting costs of the s tate's 
wellness program, providing assistance for day 
care programs, and funding matching contnbu­
tions to the 401(k) plan. As of June 30, 1995, 
$1,794,618 had been transferred to offset costs 
of other benefit programs. 
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Claims Against the State 

T he Division of Claims Administra­
tion processes claims filed against 

the state for the negligent operation 
of motor vehicles or machinery; 

negligent care. custody and control of persons 
or property; professional malpractice; workers' 
compensation claims by st<1te employees; 
dangerous conditions on s tate maintained 
highways and bridges; and nuisances created 
or majntained by the state. The Division of 
Claims Administration operates m conjunction 
with the Attorney General's Office and the 
Tennessee Claims Commission in this claims 
process. 

The Division of Claims Administration 
contracts with a third party administrator for 
the processing of workers ' compensation 
claims. The diV1Sion's staff monitors the work 
done by the third party administrator and acts 
as a liaison between state employees and the 
third party adm1mstrator. The division con­
tracts with a medical case management firm 
whose responsibility is to ensure that injured 
state employees receive appropriate medical 
care. The Divb1on of Claims Administration 
also handles all employee property damage 
claims and tort claims up to a certain mone­
tary limit. 

During fiscal year 1994-95, the Division 
of Claims Administration received 6,836 
claims falling within these categories (includ­
ing workers' compensation claims filed with 
the third party adminis trator). 
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Jn order for a claim to be acted upon by 
the Division o f Claims Administration, notice 
must be filed with the di vision. The division 
then has 90 days to make a determination on 
the claim. If the division is unable to act, the 
claim is automatically referred to the Tennessee 
Claims Commission. This process ensures that 
claims wiJl be processed in a timely fashion. 

This divis10n also provides staff support 
to the Board of Claims. The Board of Oa1ms 
has the authority to hear claims which do not 
fall within the jurisdiction of the Tennessee 
Oaims Commission. nuring the 1994-95 fiscal 
year, the Board took action on a total of 13 
claims. The Board also reviews and approves 
the purchase of insurance policies by the state 
and makes recommendations to the Commis­
s10ner of Finance and Administration and the 
General Assembly regarding the required 
funding for the Claims Award Fund. 

The primary function of the Division of 
Claims Administration, Board of Claims, and 
Tennessee Claims Commission is to provide an 
avenue for persons who have been damaged 
by the state to be heard and, if appropriate, 
compensated for their loss or damage. All 
claims are paid through the Claims Award 
Fund. This fund 1s supported by prenuums 
paid by each state department, agency and 
institution. The required funding is based 
upon an actuarial study which reflects risk 
assessment and estimated losses. 



Claims Against the State 

Claims and Payment Activity Fiscal Year 1994-95 

Claims Filed ---- --
Workers' Compensation Claims 4,541 

Death Payments 
Medical Payments 
Assault Injury Payments 
Temporary Disability (Lost Time) 
Perrnanent Disability 

Subtotal 

Employee Property Damage 273 

Payments Made --------------
$ 266,552 

6,428.780 
0 

1,352,292 
3,739,301 

$ 11,786,925 

28,305 
~~- ------------------------- - -

Tort Claims 
Death Payments 
Bodily lnJury Payments 
Property Damage Payments 

Subtotal 

TOTAL 

2,022 

6,836 

$ 1,310,615 
1,846,841 

698,954 

3,856,410 

$ 15,671,640 
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Victims Compensation Program 

A ssisting persons who are innocent 
v1ct1ms of crime is the purpose of the 
Criminal lnjury Compensation 
Program. Payments made under 

the Criminal Injury Compensation Program are 
intended to defray the costs of medical services, 
loss of earnings, burial costs, and other pecuni­
ary losses to e1ther the vtetim of a crime or to 
the dependents of deceased victims. This 
program is funded through privilege taxes 
assessed in courts against criminal defendants 
and other offenders upon conviction, fees 
levied against parolees and probationers, the 
proceeds of bond forfeitures in felony cases, 
and a federal grant. 

Applications for Criminal Injuries Com­
pensation are filed with the Division of Claims 
Administration. The division's staff reviews 
the appllcaHon and obtains supporting infor­
mation from the appropriate District Attorney's 
Offlce to determine eligibility for payment from 
the Criminal Injuries Compensation fund. If 
the division cannot process a claim within 90 
days, then the claim is referred to the Tennes­
see Claims Commission. 

During the 1994-95 fiscal year, the Divi­
sion of Claims Administration made payments 
on 1,702 criminal injury claims for a total of 
$6,249,335. Payments are issued promptly to 
the victim and, if appropriate, his or her attor-
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ney. Federal funding assistance for the pro­
gram has aided in allowing prompt claim 
payment. 

Victims of drunk drivers are also paid 
from the Criminal Injury Compensation Fund. 
Identical monetary benefits are available to 
both drunk driver and criminal injury victims. 
When the proximate cause of a death or injury 
is the operator's intoxication as prohibited by 
TC A 55-10-401, the victim's death or injury is 
eligible for compensation in the same manner 
as crinunal injury compensation, not to exceed 
a maximum award of $7,000 per claim plus 
attorney fees for injuries occurring on or after 
July 1, 1992. A supplemental award of up to 
$3,000 was available for crimes occurring 
during the 1994-95 fiscal year. 

Since the first claims were paid in 1982, 
the program has awarded a total of over $73 
million to crime victims. The Division of 
Claims Administration has made an effort to 
educate members of the public of the existence 
and benefits of the Criminal Injury Compensa­
tion Program by printing and distributing 
informative brochures explaining the program 
Public awareness programs and the use of 
victim assistance coordinators m each judicial 
district have also aided in providing the public 
with information about the availability of 
criminal injury compensation. 



Victims Compensation Program 

Victims Compensation Awards 
Paid During Fiscal Year1994-95 

Percentage of Awards Based on Crime Classification 

Child Sexual 
Assault 

Assault 
40% 

Domestic Violence & 
Child Physical Assault <1 % 

DUI 
4% 

Homicide 
18% 

Vehicular 
1% 

Adult Sexual 
Assault 

11% 
Robbery by 

Force 
6% 

During fiscal year 1994-95, there were 1,702 awards totaling $6,239.335. Of that amount, 
$3 I 3,691 can be attribwed to claims involving DUI with the remaining $5,935, 644 related to all 

other crime types. The average award for all types was $3,672. 

Sources of Funds 

Victims of Criminal Injury 

Bond 
Corrections Forfeitur~ 

Federal 10% 1 % 

Funds 
16% 

Parole Board 
3% 

Interest 
13°10 Gambling 

Confiscation 
1% 

CIC Taxes 
56~ .. 
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Defense Counsel Commission 

T he Defense Counsel Commission 
was estc1blished for the purpose of 

hearing and making decisions on 
requests for private le~al representation by 
state employees who have been sued in civil 
IJtigation. The members of the Defense Coun­
sel Commission are empowered to review the 
e<be to determine if the incident occurred in the 
course of the employee's assigned official 
duties while under apparent lawful authority. 
If the appropriate statutory finding., haYe been 
made, the members are empowered to approve 
payment of a ttorney's tees mcurred by state 
employees in the d efense of the lawsuit against 
them. 

The Defense Counsel Commission has 
authority to act on cases when the incident 
which gave rise to Lhe la wsuit occurred before 
January 1, 1985. Jurisdiction for incidents 
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which arise on or after January 1, 1985 was 
transferred to a subcommittee of the Bot1rd of 
Claims. 

During fiscal year 1994-95, the Defemc 
Counsel Comm1ssion/Subcommittee autho­
rized payments of attorney's fees and litigation 
expenses which totaled $3g2,985. The Defense 
Counsel Commission /Subcommittee consid­
ered 31 requests for representation, of which 25 
were approved and si.x were denied . At the 
end of the fiscal year, there were 59 aclive 
Defense Counsel Commission/Subcommitlet' 
files. 

Effective July l, 1995, the duties of the 
Defense Counsel were transferred to the Office 
of the Attorney General as fl resuJt of legisla­
tion passed in the 1995 session of the General 
Assembly. 



T he Division of Risk Management 
administers a variety of insurance 
programs for the state. The 

Property I Casualty fnsurance Program pro­
vides all-risk, replacement cost coverage, 
including flood and earthquake, for all state­
owned buildings and contents. This is accom­
plished through a $5 milJfon self-insured 
retention - a property I casualty reserve fund 
appropriated for the paymenl of property 
claims within a given fiscal year- and an 
excess property insurance policy purchased 
from a private Cprrier. 

All property exposures are thoroughly 
inspected and evaluated to determine appro­
priate rates for pren1ium development and 
allocation of premium costs to the various 
departments. As of July 1, 1994, the state's 
property values exceeded $7.2 billion. The 
premium cost for excess property coverage and 
fidelity bond amounted to $464,397. This 
translates to an annua l rnte of .0064 cents per 
$100 of coverllge. 

The Builders' Risk Insurance Program 
provides property msurance coverage for 
building construction or renovation projects 
which have been approved by the State Build­
ing Commission. The Division of Risk Man­
agement reviews all construction contracts and 
insurance specifications and issues builders' 
risk policies providing all-risk coverage for the 
state agency, contractor and sub-contractors for 
the duration of the project. 

Boiler insurance must be provided to 
ensure protection for all state-owned boiler 
objects. A boiler insurance policy is purchased 
from a private insurance carrier which is not 
only responsibile for the insurance coverage, 
but must also provide a boiler inspection 
service. Certified inspectors evaluate all boiler 
objects on a reguJarly scheduled basis to ensure 
the safe operation of these systems. This loss 
prevent10n program has proven very effective 

Division of Risk Management 

with resu Its showing no incidents reported 
within the past five years. 

In order to protect the state from financial 
loss due to employee dishonesty, the Division 
of Risk Management procures an Honesty 
Blanket Position and Faithful Performance 
Blanket Position Bond. This bond is provided 
by the excess property insurance carrier and is 
negotiated as part of the property insurance 
package. Fidelity coverage is provided in the 
amount of $1 million per incident for 29 sched­
uled employees and $100,000 per incidenl for 
all remaining state employees. 

The Division of Risk Management also has 
the responsibility to investigate and process a II 
property, boiler, and f1delity bond claims. A 
detailed property inventory schedule is main­
tained which provides the insurable values for 
both buildings and contents in the event a loss 
occurs. There is a $5,000 deductible per occur­
rence which must be assumed by the individu­
al departments. Documented losses above the 
deductible amount are indemnified by the 
property I casualty reserve fund, through an 
allotment revision process_ Should this reserve 
fund become completely exhausted within a 
given fiscal year. the excess property policy 
would provide the primary fund resource for 
claim payments. 

During fiscal year 1994-95, a total of 120 
claims were reported. Of this number, 98 did 
not exceed the $5,000 deductible and were 
closed with no action. The remaining 22 
incurred losses amounting to $746,459, with a 
net loss to the fund of $636,459 With a manual 
premium for first dollar coverage of $7_6 
million, the state's pure property loss ratio 
would be 8.4%. Since the generally expected 
standard in the insurance industry for loss ratio 
break-even is approximately 483., the strite's 
property loss experience remains at an excel­
lent level. 
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Division of Risk Management 

The prevention and control of losses 
continues to be an item of growing importance 
in the area of s tate risk management. In the 
pa5t, the Division of Risk Management concen­
trated its efforts on reducing the risk of loss to 
property and human life through a fire/ life 
safety inspection program. Until recently, 
these inspections were conducted by external 

sources. There is now an internal resource 
available to complement tlus process, allowing 
for an increase in the number of inspections 
conducted. Also, with the continuing rise in 
workers compensation and tort liability loss 
costs, the Division of Risk Management will 
expand its loss control program in an effort to 
mitigate the growth in these areas. 

Cost of Property/Casualty Program versus Private Insurance 

Fiscal Year 1994-95 

1Premium - Excess Property & Bond Coverage 
Premium - Boiler lnsurance Coverage 

Total Premium 
Net Jncurred Losses 

Total Cost of State Program 
2Private Insurance Premium Cost at Manual R:ites 

with No Statt: Retention 
Net Savings lo Slate 

1 B::i:-ed on Jul~ I. 1994 \alues totaling $7.244,879.500 

$ 464,397 
46 599 

510,996 
636,459 

1, 147,455 

7.607.._123 
$ 6,459,668 

z1.-.tirnall'd based on July I, 1994 values al .105 cents per $100 of coverage 
R.itcs providcu by Royal ln~urance Company. 
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T he Treasury Department has admin­
istered the Uniform Disposition of 
Unclaimed Property Act since it was 

enacted in 1978. Administration of this act is 
carried out by the Unclaimed Property Division 
which operates the program in a manner 
designed to return unclaimed property to the 
rightful owner. 

The Unclaimed Property Act provides that 
cash property which an organization or mdi­
vidual is holding for <mother person will be 
delivered to the Treasurer for custody if the 
holder of the property has had no contact with 
the owner for a period of five years and if the 
holder cannot locate the owner. Once property 
is delivered, the Treasurer advertises the 
owner's name and last known address in order 
to locate the owners. Since the program began 
operations in 1979, $98.1 million in unclaimed 
prop~rty has been reported to the Treasurer 
and $26 million (26%) has been rel urned to 
owners or heirs. 

During the period July 1, 1994 through 
June 30, 1995, $12,143,929 of cash property was 
turned over to the Treasurer. This includes 
$1,504,425 in cash and stock remitted by third 

Unclaimed Property 

party audit organizations from out-of-state 
non-reporting holders for Tennessee residents. 
The chart below illustrates the sources of cash 
collections for fiscal year 1994-95. 

In addition to advertising the property, 
the Treasurer makes several other efforts to 
locate the rightful owner. Another location 
method used is to send notification to the last 
known address of each owner. If no response 
is received , additional search efforts are made 
through employment security records, tele­
phone directories, drivers' license records, and 
other sources. Jn addition, the records of 
unclaimed property owners are available for 
viewing by the public in the Unclaimed Proper­
ty office. All property turned over to the 
Treasurer is held in trust for the rightful owner 
or his heirs in perpetuity, thereby allowing the 
owners or their heirs to make claims on it at 
anytime. 

During the period July 1, 1994 through 
June 30, 1995, $4,689,118 of cash property was 
returned by the Unclaimed Property Division 
to the owners or their heirs_ An analysis of the 
methods used to return this property is shown 
on the next page 

Sources of Unclaimed Property 

Corporations Other Escheat 
Insurance 

9Pf<, 8% 1% 
Companies 

Utilities 
23% 

4% Cities & 
Counties 

Retailers 
4°/o 

7% 

Securities 

f.immcial 
40;,, 

lnstitutions Other States 
34% 6% 
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Unclaimed Property 

Methods Used To Return Property 
July 1, 1994 - June 30, 1995 

Number of 
Location Method Accounts 

Advertisement 4,685 
Postcards 1,913 
Holder Referral 838 
Independent Locator 176 
Other 293 
Dr>pt. of Safety Match 92 
Dept. of Emp. Security Match 737 
Legislator Listings 216 
Tt>lephone Directory 93 
Credit BurPau 18 

Total Claim Pavmcnts 9,061 
Refunds to Loe.JI Governments 15 
Interstate Exchanges 35 
Total Paymt•nts 9, 111 

Any local ~ovemmentin Tennessee which 
turns over unclcllmed property to the state may 
request that the property be returned to the local 
government forsafekeepingafterit has been held 
by the state for 18 months. This fiscal year, 
$794,601 was refunded to 15 local governments. 

Tennes5ee hcis reciprocal agr·eements w ith 
other states unrlaimed property progrnms to 
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Value of 
Claims 

$ 1,305,011 
571,549 
417,841 
251,376 
192,616 
170,778 
106,044 

9 l,65q 
65,040 
34,704 

$ 3,206,618 
$ 794,601 

687,874 
$ 4,689,093 

Percentage of 
Claim Value 

41 rk 
18 
13 
8 
6 
5 
3 
3 
2 

100'k-

exchange property held by one state for owners 
with a last known address in the other state. 
During this fiscal year, Tennessee exchanged. 
unclaimed property with 35 states. Tennessee 
received $699,668 for residents or fonner 
residents and paid $687,874 to other states' 
undaimed property offices. 



T he Chairs of E'cellence (COE) Trust 
provides funds \.vi th which state 

colleges and universities are able to 
contract wllh persons of regional or national 
prominence to teach in speofied academic 
areas. The program is open to ell! state four­
year colleges and universities, and the UT 
Space Institute 

The funding of the program 1s provided 
through contributions made by a private donor 
and a matching amount by the state. thus, 
creating a chair, Income from the fixPd income 

Chairs of Excellence 

portion of the trust is used to fund required 
expenditures for the chair. All other funds, 
including equity income and profit / loss, 
becomr part of the corpus of the fund for use in 
supporting the trust in future years. 

Since the start of the program in 1984, there 
have been 92 chairs created, with state appro­
pnations totaling $44,000,000 and matching 
contributions totaling $49,666.878. For the year 
ending June 30, 1995, investment income 
totaled $7,794,730 with expenditures of 
$5.630,874. 

The University of Tennessee 

Cliattanooga 
Miller COE m Management & Technology 
American National Bank COE in the Humanities 
Provident Life & Accident Ins. Co. COE in 

Applied Math 
West COE m Communication~ & Public Affatr.:i 
COE in Judaic Studie~ 
Cline COE m Rehab1litat1on Technology 
Fnerson COE m Busmes!> Leadership 
Ham~ COE in Bu!>me:>!> 
Lvndhurst COE in Arts Education 

Knoxville 
Racheff Chair of Ornamental Horticulture 
Racheff Chair of Material Science & Engineering 
COE in Engh!ih 
Condra COE in Computer Integrated 

Engineering & Manufacturing 
Condra COE in Power Electronics Applications 
Pilot COE in Management 
Holly COE in Political Economy 
Schmitt COE in History 
COE in Science, Technolog} & Medical Writing 
Shumway COE in Romance Languages 
Goodrich COE in Ci\iJ Engineering 
Clayton Home~ COE m Findnce 
COE m Policy Studies 
Bla!>mgame COE in Agncultural Policy Studies 
Lincoln COE m Physics 

•Hunger COE in Environmental Studies 

Martin 
Hendnx COE in Free Enterprise & Economics 
Dunagan COE in Banking 
Parker COE in Food & Fiber Industries 

Memphis 
Van Vleet COE in Microbiology & Immunology 
Van Vleet COE in Pharmacology 
Van Vleet COE in Biochemistry 
Van Vleet COE in Virology 
Muirhead COE in Patholog} 
COE in Obstetrics & Gynecology 
LeBonheur COE in Pediatrics 
Crippled Children's Hospital COE in 

Biomedical Engineering 
Plough COE in Pediatrics 
Gerwin COE in Physiology 
Hyde COE in Rehabilitation 
Dunavant COE in Pediatrics 
First Tennessee Bank COE m Pediatrics 
Federal Express COE in Ped 1atrics 
Semmes-Murphey COE in Neurology 
Bronstein COE in Cardiovascular Physiology 
Goodman COE in Medicine 
LeBonheur COE in PedialriLs (II) 
Soloway COE in Urology 

Space Institute 
Boling COE in Space Propulsion 

- Chair C!>tablished dunng fiscal year 1904.95 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Tennessee Board of Regents 

Austin Peay State UnivcrsihJ 
Acuff COE m Creative Arts 
Harper / Jamt:i!> and Bourne COE m Business 
The Founda tio n Ch.J1r o( Free Enterprise 
Reuther COE in Nur.,mg 

East Ten,,essee State University 
Quillen COE l1f Medicine in Gt!riatrics 

& Geron tology 
AFG Industries COE in Business 

& Technology 
Harris COE in Busines' 
Long Chair of Surgical Research 
Dishner COE in Medicine 

,. Quillen COE in Teaching and Learning 
• Basler COE for Integration of Arts, Rhetoric, 

and Scit>nces 

Middle Tennessee State U11ivers1ty 
Seigenthaler Cha ir of First Amendment 

Studie::. 
Jones Chair of Fl"E.'t' Enterprise 
Adams COE m Health Care Serv1ces 
National Healthcorp COE m Nursing 
Russell COE m Manufacturing Excellence 
Murfree Chair of Dyslextc Studies 

• Miller COE in Equmt' Heallh 
• MiUer COE in Equine Reproductive 

Physiology 

Tennessee State Un iversity 
Frist COE in Business Administration 

Mempliis State University 
COE in Molt'Cular Biology 
Herff COE in Law 
Fogelman COE in Real Estate 
Sales & Marketing Executives o f Memphis 

COE in Sales 
COE in Accounting 
Arthur Andersen Comp;my Alu mm COE m 

Accounting 
Moss COE in Philosophy 
Wunderlich COE in Finance 
Herff COE m Biomedical Engineering 
Bomblum COE Ul Judaic Studies 
Shelby County Government COE in 

Intemahonal Economics 
Wang COE in International Business 
COE in Free Enterpnse Management 
COE m English Poetry 
Herff COE in Computer Engineering 
Lowenberg COE in Nursing 
COE in Art History 
Federal Express COE in Mgmt. Info. Systems 
Mo~s COE in Psychology 
Moss COE in Education 
Hardin COE in Combinatorics 

• Hardin COE in Economics / Managerial Journalism 

Tennessee Teclmological University 
Owen Chair of Busines~ Administration 
Mayberry Chair of Business Administration 

.. Chair established during fiscal year 1994-95. 
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Statutory Duties of the State Treasurer 

Boards and Commissions Administration 
Tei messee Code Tennessee Code 

A1111otated St'ction A111zotated Sl'cti!.!J.1 

Baccalaureate Education Board of Claims 9-8-101, et seq. 
System Trust 49-7-801, et seq. Chairs of Excellence Trust 49-7-501 -

Board of Equalization 4-3-5101 49-7-502 

Board of Trustees of the Collateral Pool 9-4-501 - 94523 
Tennessee Con~lidatt'd 8-34-301 - Collatera) Program 9-4-101 - q-4-105 
Retirement System 8-34-319 Council on Pension!) 

Commission to Purchase and Insurance 3-9-101 
Federa l Property 12-1-103 Criminal In1ury 

Funding Board 9-9-101 Compensation Fund 29-13-101, et seq. 
National Resou rces Trust Fund 11-14-304 Defense Counsel Comm ission 9-8-107 
Public Records Comm1ss1on 10-7-302 Deferred Compensation 8-25-101, et seq. 
Sick Leave Bank Board 8-50-903 Escheat 31-6-101, et Sf:!G 
State Building Commission 4-15-101 Flexible Benefit!) Plan 8-25-305 
State Capitol Comm1S!)iOn 4-8-301 , et seq. lnve!>tment Advisory Council 8-37-108 
State Insurance Committee 8-27-101 Jnvel>tment of State 
State Library and Archi\es Idle Cash Funds 9-4-602 

Management Board 10-1-101, et seq. LocalGovernITlent 
State School Bond Authority 49-3-1204 Investment Pool 9-4-704 
State Teacher Old Age and Survivors 

ln:,urance Committee 8-27-301 Insurance Agency 8-38-101, et seq. 
State Trust of Tennessee 9-4-801, et seq Pooled Investment Fund 9-4-704 
Tennessee Bicentennial 4-44-101 - Receipt and Disbursement 8-5-106- 8-5-111 ; 

Commission 4-44-109 of Public Funds 9-4-301, et seq 
T~nnessee Child Care Loan State Cash Management 9-4-106- 9-4-108; 

Guarantee Board 4-37-l 01, et seq 9-4401 - 9-4-409 
Tennessee Competitive State Treasurer's Office 8-5-101, et seq. 

Export Corp. 13-27-104 Tennessee Consolidated 
Tennel>see Higher Education Retirement System and Title 8, Chpts. 34, 

Commission 49-7-201, et ::.eq. MIScellaneous Syst~m::. 35, 36, 37 & 30 
Tennessee Housing Unclaimed Property 66-29-101, et seq 

Development Agency 13-23-106 Victims of Drunk Drivers 
Tennessee Local Compensation Fund 40-24-107 

Development Authority 4-31-103 
Tennessee Sports Hall of f.lme 4-3-5402 
Tennessee Student 

Assistance Corp. 49-4-202 

Tuition Guaranty Fund Board 49-7-2018 

Volunteer Public Etlucattun Trust 49-J-401, et seq. 
Worker:, Compensation 

Fund Board 50-6-604 
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Executive Staff Directory 

Treasurer's Office 

Treasurer 
Execuhve Assistant 
Executive Assistan t 
Director uf Personnel 
Stnff Assistant to the Trea~urer 
Staff Assistant to the Treasurer 

Investments 

Chief Investment Officer 
Senior Equity Portfolio Manager 
Senior Fixed Income Portfolio Manager 
Senior International Fixed Income 

Portfolio Manager 
Sen10r Short-Term Portfolio Manager 
Senior Analyst 

Retirement Administration 

Director of TCRS 
Assistant Director of TCRS 
Director of Deferred Compensation, 

Research and Publication!:> 
Publications Officer 
General Counsel 
Director of Old Age and Survivors insurance 
Chief of Counsel.mg 
Manager of Benefits and Retired Payroll 
Manager uf Memberslup, Field Services. 

Prior Service and Flexible Benefits 

Other Divisioris 

Director of Accounting 
Director of Cla ims Administration 

and Unclauned Prnperty 
Director of Computer Operations 
Drreclor of Financial Control 
Director of Information Sy~tems 
Director of Internal Audit 
Director of Management Service!:> 
Director of Risk Management 
Budget Officer 

Steve Adams, CPA 
Dale Sims 
Janice Cunningham 
Ann Taylor-Tharpe 
Rhonda Hicks, CPA 
Diana Collins 

Chuck Webb,CFA 
Jeremy Conlin 
Frank Puryear, CFA 
Roy Welhngton, CF A 

Randy Graves, CPA 
Michael Keeler, CFA 

Steve Curry, CPA, CEBS 
Ed Hennessee 
Deana Reed 

Janice Reilly 
Mary Roberts-Krause, JD 
Mary E. Smith 
Donna Finley 
Velva Booker 
Jamie Fohl 

Jill Bachus, CPA 
Susan Clayton 

Sam Baker, CDP, CCP 
Rick DuBray, CPA 
Newton Molloy, llI, CDP 
Beth Chapman, CPA 
Grady Martin 
Steve Gregory 
Wendy Padgett 

The Treasurer ts housed 011 the 1st floor of the State Capitol Bllllding. 

(615) 741-2956 
(615) 741-2956 
(615) 741-2956 
(615) 741-2956 
(615) 532-8552 
(615) 532-2992 

(615) 532-1157 
(615) 532-1152 
(615) 532-1153 
(615) 532-1151 

(615) 532-1154 
(615) 532-1165 

(615) 741-7063 
(615) 741-7063 
(615) 741-7063 

(615) 741-7063 
(615) 741-7063 
(615) 741-7902 
(615) 741-1971 
(615) 741-1971 
(615) 741-4868 

(615) 532-8045 
(615) 741-2734 

(615) 532-8026 
(615) 741-5220 
(615) 532-8035 
(615) 532-1164 
(615) 741-4985 
(615) 741-9076 
(615) 741-4985 

Dn•isimzs are l1011sed 011 the 9th, 10th, a11d 11th floors of th£' Andrew Jackson Building. 
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS 

STATE CASH PORTFOLIO 

TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED 

RETIREMENT SYSTEM PORTFOLIO 

CHAIRS OF EXCELLENCE PORTFOLIO 



State Cash Porlf olio 

Rating Maturity Yield to Par Value Market Value 
Maturity 

U.S. TREASURY NOTES & BILLS: 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK AAA 9/1819" 6.29% $ 25,000,000 $ 25,069.497 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK AAA 7 /7 /95 5.94'% 30,000,000 29,964.000 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK AAA 7/ 3/ 95 5 .92'l'o 51,500,000 51,474,250 
FEDERA l HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC. AAA 3/ 24/ 97 5.04~1, 10,800,000 IO,m.647 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC AAA 8 / 8 / 95 5 .93% 25,000.000 24.837,500 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC. AAA. 8/ 15/ 95 5 87% 20,000,000 19,848,000 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC. AAA 7/12/95 5.97% 50,000,000 49,900,000 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC. AAA 8/2/95 5.94% 50,000.000 49,725,000 
FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORT. ASSOC AAA 8/4/95 5.95% 30,000,000 29,826,000 
FEDERALNATTONALMORT.ASSOC. AAA 1/10/97 5.17% 20,000,000 20,589,000 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORT. ASSOC. AAA 9 /'30/98 4.99% 20,000,000 19,530,250 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORT.ASSOC. AAA 9/21/95 5.98% 51,800.000 5U05,880 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORT. ASSOC. AAA 9/ 5/95 5.88% 50,000,000 49,455,000 
FEDE.RALNATIONALMORT.ASSOC. AAA 9 / 1/ 95 5.88% 50,000,000 49,485,000 
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORT. ASSOC. AAA 7/13/95 5.99% 30,000,000 29,934,000 
UNITEDSTATESTREASURYNOTES AAA 2/28 / 98 5.19% 30,000.000 29,949,893 
UNlTEDSTATESTREASURYNOTES AAA 3 / 31/98 5.29% 30,000,000 29,813,475 
UNITED STA TES TREASURY NOTES AAA 4/30/ 98 5.29% 30,000.000 29,668,035 
UNITED STA TES TREASURY NOTES AA.A 7/ 31 / 95 4.07% 30,000,000 30,501.837 
UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTES AAA 8/31/95 S.62.% 30,000.000 30,292.553 
UNITEDSTATESTREASURYNOTES AAA 1/ 15/96 4.20% 30.000.000 31,814,180 
UNITED ST ATES TREASURY NOTES AAA 8/ 15/ 95 403% 30,000,000 31,051,0l 1 

TOTAL NOTES & BILLS $ 724,100,000 $ 724,612,008 

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT; 
BANK OF ALt\.MO 10/13/ 95 6 10% $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 
BANK OF ALAMO 10 / 20/95 b.00% 1,000,000 1.000,000 
BANK OF ALAMO 11 117/ 95 5.90% 2,000.000 2.000.000 
BANK OF ALAMO 12/ 18/ 95 5.80% 1,000,000 1.000,000 
BAl,JKOF ALAMO 12/12/ 95 b.00% 1,000,000 l,000,000 
BANK OF ALAMO 11 / 17 / 95 590% 1,000,000 1,000,000 
BANK OF ALAMO 12 / 15/ 95 580% 1,000,000 1,000,000 
cmzENSNATIONAL BANK. ATHENS 10/27/ 95 600% 500,000 500,000 
BANK OFCROCKETI. BELLS 10/ 12/ 95 615% 200,000 200,000 
BENTON BANKING COMP ANY 10/ 12/ 95 6 15% 500.000 500,0(10 
PEOPLES BANK, BENTON 8 / 15/95 5.90% 100,000 100.000 
PEOPLES BANK. BENTON 8 / 28/95 5.90% 200,000 200,000 
PEOPLES BANK/ POLK COUNTY, BENTON 10/27 / 95 600% 200,000 200,000 
BANK OF BRADFORD 10/ 3 / 95 5.90% 100.()00 100,000 
1WIN CITIES FEDERAL, BRISTOL 7/5/ 95 5.90% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST ST A TE BANK. BROWNSVILLE 7 /7 /95 5.95% 500,000 500,000 
FIRSTSTATEBANK,BROWNSVfLLE 10/ 17/95 600% 500.000 500,000 
FfRST UN10N BANK, BULLS GAP 9 / 5 / 95 620% 100,000 J00,000 
FIRSTUNTON, BULLS GAP 11 / 29/95 b.60% 400,000 400,000 
FIRST UNJON BANK, BULLS GAP 9 / 20/ 95 '5.60% 10\J,()()0 100,000 
Fl.RSTUN10N HANK, BULl.SGAP 7 / ]] / 95 6.50% 100,noo lOU,000 
PEOPLE'S BANK AND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 8 / 29/95 560% 100,000 100,000 
PEOPLE'S BANKAND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 7 / ll / 95 6.50% 100,000 100,000 
PEOPLE'S BANK AND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 1 / 11 / 96 6.25% 100,000 100,000 
PEOPLE'S BANK AND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 3 / 20/ 96 (>.60'}o 100.000 100,000 
PEOPLE'S BANK AND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 3/25/ 96 5 1l0% 200,000 200,UOO 
PEOPLE'S BANKANDTRUSTCOOFBYRDSTOWN 9 / 26/ 95 6 20% 200.000 200,000 
PEOPLE'S BAN.KAND TRUST CO OF BYRDSTOWN 5/ 3 / 96 6.35% 100,000 100,000 
PICKETICOUl\TfY BANK, BYRDSTOWN 8 / 2/ 95 5 80% 750,000 750,UOO 
CUMBERLAND BANK CARTHAGE 6/ 11 196 580% 90,000 90,000 
CUMBERLAND BANK, CARTHAGE 6 , 18 / 96 S SO'Yo 500.000 500,000 
CUMBER LAND llANK,CARTHAGE 4 / '2.3/ 90 6.35% 1,000,000 1,000.000 
FIRST STA TE BANK, CHAPEL HILL 8/ JU/ 95 S.b0% 200,000 200,000 

Note- Please see e~planallon of ratings on page 53. (Continued) 

Tr~asurer's Report 49 



State Cash Portfolio 

Maturity Coupon Par Value Market V.ilue 

AMERICAN NA TI ON AL BANK AND TRUST. 
CHA lT ANcxx:; A 12/ 28/95 5 80''to $ 20.000.000 s 20,000,000 
AMERICAN NATIO:'iAL BANK AND TRUST 
CHATTANOOGA 7/17/95 595% 20.000,000 20,000.000 
AMERICAN NATIOl\.AL BANK AND TRUST, 
CHATTANOOGA 10/27/95 6.00% 20,000,000 20,000,000 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK AND TRUST, 
CHATTANOOGA 5/17/96 6.05% 20,000,000 20,000,000 
AMSOUTH BANK.CHAITANOOCA 8/2/95 5.40% 25,000,000 25,000.000 
VOLUNTEERBANKANDTRUST,CHATTANOOGA 1/ 8/ 96 6.25% 500,000 500.000 
VOLUNTIERBANKANDTRUST.CHATTANOOGA 1/ 8/ 96 6.25% 80,000 80,000 
AMFRICA\INATIONALBANK.CHAlTANOOGA 9/5/95 6.20% 20,000,000 20,000,000 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK, CHA IT ANOOGA 5/15/96 6.05°1> 20,000,000 20.000.000 
M1SOVTH BANK, CHAIT ANOOGA 7/18/95 5.70% 25,000,000 25,000,000 
FIRST UNION, CHURCH HIT.L 7 / 25/ 95 6.45% 300,000 300,000 
P . .\RMERSANDMERCHANTS,CLARKSVTLLE 6/ 28/96 5.80% 100.000 100,000 
FIRSTFEDERAL,CLARK5V1LLE 8/ 25/ 95 5.60% 100,000 100,000 
FIRSTFARMERSANDMERCHANTS,COLUMBIA 7 /10/95 570% 5,000,000 5,000,000 
FIRST BANK POLK COUNTY, COPPERHILL 1/ 12/96 730% 4,300,000 4,300,000 
RHEA COUNTY NATIONAL BANK, DAYTON 12/ 19/95 580% 600,000 600,000 
RHEA COUNTY NATIONAL BANK, DAYTON 6/21 / 96 580% 600,000 600,000 
PEOPLES BANK, DrCKSON 3/1 /96 6.60% 500,000 500.000 
PEOPLES BANK, DICKSON 3/1/96 b.60% 500,000 500.000 
HOME BANK OF TENNESSEE, DUCKTOWN 9/12/95 560% 95,000 95,000 
HOME 13ANK Of TENNESSEE, DUCKTOWN 3/ 8/96 660% 99.000 99.000 
HOME BANK OFTENNF..SSEE. DUCKTO\VN 9/ 1-1 / 95 560% 99,000 99,000 
HOME BANK OF TENNESSEE. DuCKTOWN 5 / 24/ 96 6.00°0 95,000 95,000 
JIOMEBANKOFTENNESSEE DUCKTOWN 7/28/95 645% 95.000 95.000 
CITIZENS BANK, ELIZABETiiTON 12/ 15/ 95 725% 1,000,000 1,000.000 
CITIZENS BANK, ELIZABETI-fTON 9/15/ 95 690% 1.000,000 1,000,00U 
CITIZENS BANK. ELIZAl3ETI-ITON 12/ 20/95 7.25% 1,000.000 1,000,000 
GATES BANKING AND TRUST 10/27 / 95 6.00% 450,000 450.000 
JACK-c:;()N COUNTY BANK, GAINESBORO 10/6/95 610% 250.000 250.000 
JACKSON COUNTY BANK, GAINESBORO 8/ 25/95 5 90% 500,000 500,000 
JACKSON COUNTY BANK, GAINESBORO 9/ 5195 550% 1,000,000 1.000.000 
JACKSON COUNTY BANK. GAINESBORO 10/ 20/ 95 fl .80% 500,000 500,000 
FTRSTNATIONALBANK,GATI.INBURG 10/ 13/ 95 6.10% 4,000,000 4,000,000 
ARSTNA TTONAL BANK, GA TI.IN BURG 1/ 26/ 96 6.15% 5,000,000 5,000,000 
FIRSTNATIONAL BA!\iK, GATI.JNBURG 11/10/95 5.90% 4,000,000 4,000,000 
BANK Of GLEASON 8/25195 6.20% 350.000 350,000 
BANK OF GLEASON 10/ 24 / 95 6.00% 300,000 300,000 
BANK OF GLEASON 5/ 17/ 96 6.05°10 200,000 200,000 
BANK OF HALLS 2/16/ 96 600% 200,000 200,000 
BANKOFHAU.S 2/ 1/ % 600% 200,000 200,000 
BANK OF HALLS 8/17/95 5.90'>o 700,000 700,000 
BANK OF HALLS R/ 10/95 5 90°1o 400.000 400.000 
BANK OF HALLS 8/ 18/ 95 6253 300,000 300,000 
CITIZENS BANK. HARTSVILLE. 8/28/95 590% 250.000 250,000 
CITIZENS BANK, HARTSV1LLE 7/17/ 95 5.80% 500,000 500,000 
CITIZENS BANK,l lARTSVTLLE 12/ 4/ 95 5.80% 500.000 500,000 
CHESTER COUNTY BANK, HENDERSON 10/ 31 / 95 6.00°0 100,000 100.000 
FIRST cmZENS,HOHENWALD 2/ 16/ % 6.75% 1 .000,000 1.000.000 
FIRSTCmZENS, HOHcNWAl D 1/24/ 96 720% 1.000.000 1,000.000 
FE::'>JTRESSCOUNTY BANK. JAMESTOWN 1/ 18/ 96 6. 15% 500,000 500.000 
FENTRESSCOUN fYBANK,JAMESTOWN 7/ 14 / 95 590% 200.000 200,000 
FENTRESS COUNTY BANK, JAMESTOWN 9/22/ 95 6.20°/.., 500,000 500,000 
FENTRESSCOUNll' BANK.JAMESTOWN 7 / 24/ 95 610% 450,00LJ 450,000 
FENTRES5COUNTY BANK,JAMESTOW.'\J 8/ 4 / 95 625% 300,000 300,000 
Fl:NTRESSCOUNTY BANK,JAMESTOWi\. 6/ 6/96 5 60°~ 500,000 500.000 
PROGRES'>TVESAVTNGS, JA 'v1ESTOWl\ 9/ 15/ 95 5 60°0 300,000 .J00.000 
CITIZENS ST A TE BANK. JASl'ER 10/20/95 600% 100.000 100,000 

(Co11trnued) 
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CITIZENSSTATEBANK,JASPER 10 / 24/ 95 6.00% $ 200,000 $ 200.000 
ClTIZENSSTA TE BANK,JASPER 5 /9/96 6.20% 200,000 200,000 
MARION BANKANDTRUST,JASPER 9 / 29/ 95 6.20% 1,400.000 1.400,000 
MARION BANK Al\:D TRUST, JASPER 12/ 29/95 6.50% 300,000 300,000 
FIRST ST A TE BANK, KENTON 9 / 5/95 5.70% 5,000,000 5,000,000 
FIRST UNION BANK, KINGSPORT 2 / 23/ 96 6.75% 1,050,000 1,050,000 
CHARTER FEDERAL SA VINCS BANK, KNOXVILLE 9 /8/95 6.90% 100,000 100,000 
CHARTER FED ERA LSA VINGS BANK, KNOXY JLLE 6/20/96 5.80% 5,000,000 5,000,000 
CHARTERFEDERALSAVfNGSBANK,KNOXVILLE 1/ 11 /96 6.25% 5.000,000 5,000,000 
CHARTER FEDERAL SA VTNGS BANK, KNOXVILLE 7114/ 95 5.95% 5,000,000 5,000.000 
CHARTER FED ERA LSA VINGS BANK, KNOXVfLLE 10/ 31/ 95 b.00% 5.ooo.ooo 5,000.000 
CHARTER FED ERA LSA VIN GS BANK, KNOXVILLE 10/31/95 6.00% 100.000 100,000 
NATIONALBANKOFCOMMERCE,KNOXVILLE 7 /24/95 6.45% 2,000,000 2,000,000 
NATIONAL BANK OF COMMERCE, KNOXVILLE 11/17/95 5.90% 10,000,000 10.000,000 
cmZENS BANK.LAFAYETTE 2 / 12/96 6.00% 500,000 500,000 
CITIZENS BANK, LAFA YETIE 6/26/96 5.80% 100,000 100,000 
CffiZENS BANK. LAF AYETIE 7/11/95 6.50% 250.000 250,000 
cmzENS BANK, LAPA YETI'E 11 / 13/ 95 6.60% 100,000 100,000 
FIRSTFEDSAVINGS BANK, LAFOLLE 7/26/95 5.40% 100,000 100,000 
NA TIONSBANK, LA \N'RENCEBCRG 5 / 24/ 96 6.00% 200,000 200,000 
FIRST CENTRAL BANK LENOfR CITY 8 / 18/95 5.70% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST CENTRAL BANK, LENOIR CITY 11 /7/95 5.90% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK. LENOIROTY 7/14/ 95 5.95% 2001000 200,000 
FIRST NA TI ON AL BANK, LENOIR c1n 8/ 22/95 5.70% 300,000 300,000 
FIRSTNATIONAL LOUDON COUNTY, LENOIR CTY 8 / 25/95 6.40% 100,000 100,000 
CENTRAL STATE BANK, LEXTNGTON 12/29 /95 6.2.5% 500,000 500,000 
CENTRAL STA TEBANI<. l EXJNGTON 4/ 5/ 96 b.50% 500,000 500,000 
TI-IEFARMERSBANK, LYNOIBURG 12/ 4/95 5.50% 270,000 270,000 
COFFEECOUNTYBANK,MANCHESTER 6/25/96 5.80% 280,000 280,000 
COFFEE COUNTY BAN~, MANCHESTER 8/11/95 5.70% 350,000 350,000 
PLANTERS BANK, MAURY CITY 7 /21/95 6A5% 200,000 200,000 
BOA 1MEN'S BANK. MEMPHJS 10/20/95 6.00% 10,000,000 10,000,000 
BOATMEN'S BANK,ME!vlPHIS 7 /25/95 6.4...'i% 10.000.000 10,000.000 
BOATMEN'SBA~K.MEMPHIS 8/ 1/95 6.50% 5,000,()()0 5,000,000 
ENTERPRISE NATIONAL BANK.l'vfEMPHIS 7/21/95 5.40% 500,000 500,000 
ENTERPRISE NATIONAL BANK,MEW'HIS l /25/96 7.20% 500,000 500.000 
ENTERPRISE NATIONAL 13ANK,MEMPH1S 7 / 10/ 95 6.50% 500,000 500,000 
ENTERPRISE NA TI ON AL BANK.MEMPHIS 8 /18/ 95 5.70% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK, MEMPHIS 7/1 1/ 95 6.50% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK. MEMPHIS 7/11/95 6.50% 250,000 250,000 
FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK, MEMPHIS 8/ 11/95 6.40% 1,000,000 1,000,000 
FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK. MEMPHIS 11 /7/95 5.90% 2.000,000 2,000,000 
FIRST COMMERCIAL BANK, MEMPHIS 617 /96 5.80% 1.000.000 1,000,000 
FTRSTCOMMERCIAL BANK, MEMPHIS 10/31i95 6.00% 1,000,000 l ,000,000 
FIRSTCOMMERClAL BANK, MEMPHIS 8/ 4/95 640% 1.000.000 1.000,000 
NATIONAL BANK OFCOMMERCE,ME!v1PH1S 9/29/95 615% 10,000,000 10,000,000 
NATION AL BANK OF COMMERCE, MEMPHIS 2 / 9 /96 tJ.85'fo 20,000,000 20,000,UUO 
NATIONAL BAKKOFCOMMERCE, MEMPHIS 10/ 20/ 95 600% 15,000,000 15,000,000 
'\iA TION AL BANK OF COMMERCE, MEMPHlS 1 /J9/96 615% 25,000.000 25,000,000 
.\JATIONAL BANK Or-COMMERCE, MEMPHIS 10 / 27/95 600% 20,000.000 20,000,000 
'\JA TI ON AL BANK OF COMMERCE, MEMPrllS 7/14/9.5 645% 25,000,000 25,000,000 
NATIONAL BAN KOF COMMERCE, MEMPHIS 7/24/95 b.45% 30.000.000 30,000,000 
NATIONAL BANK OF COMMERCE, MEtvf.PHlS 4/ 30/ 96 6.05"1o 25,000,000 25,000.000 
NATIONALBANKOPCOMMERCE,MEMPHIS 5 / 21 /96 6.05% 25,000.000 25,000,000 
NATIONAL BANK OF COMMERCE, MEMPHJS 7 / 2l/95 6.4"i% 20.000,000 20.000.000 
NATION AL BANK OF COMMERCl:. MEMPHIS 6128/96 .5.80% 15.000,UOO 15,000,000 
TEJ\.'NESSEE BANK AND TRUST MILLINGTON f'i /23/qs 5.90% 500,000 500,000 
TENNESSEE BANK AND TRUST, J\!ILLINGTON SIJS/ 95 025'~<> 750,000 750,000 
TENNESSEE BANK AND TRUST. 'vULLL\IGTON 11 / 17' 95 5 90% 1,200,000 1,200,000 
TE~ESSEE BANK AND TR CST, MlLUNG1 ON 8/8/95 fi.QO"/u 1,000,000 1.000,000 
TEN!':ESSEE BANK AND TR CST, MILLINGTON 7 / 14 / 95 5 95% 1,000,UOO l 000,000 

(Con fumed) 
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TENNESSEE BANK AND TRUST, M!LUNGTON 8123/95 590% $ 500,000 s 500,00U 
FIRST CITY BANK, MURF-REES!30RO 7/31/95 600% 5.000,000 5,000,000 
FIRST AMERICAN B.A.Nl<, NASHVILLE 2/2/ 96 600% 25,000,000 2.S,000,000 
FIRST Atv1ER1CAN BANK.~ASHVILLE 7/ 21/95 540% 10.000.000 10,000,000 
FIRST AMER1CANBAN1'.. 'JASHV!LLE 3/8/96 6.60% 50.000.000 50 ,000 ,()()(1 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK, r-.:ASHVILLE 10/20/ 95 6.00% 25,000,000 25.000,0UO 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK, !'...ASHVILLE 1/ 2/ 96 615~Q 25.000,000 25,000,000 
FIRST AMERICA.i\J BANK. NASHVILLE 1/22/ 96 6.15% 25,0U0,000 25,000,000 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK, NASHVILLE 5/14/96 6.05'}~ 25,000,000 25,000,000 
FIR!:>"f AMERICAN BANK, !\ASHVILLE 5/31/96 6.00% 25,000,000 25,000,000 
FIRST AMERICAN BANK, NASHVILLE 12/11 / 95 6.60% 20,000,000 20.000,000 
FIRST FEDERAL BANK.NASHVILLE 4 / 19/ 96 6.35% qs,ooo 95,000 
NATIONAL BANK OF COMMERCE, NASHVILLE 7/ 24/ 95 645% 5,000,000 5,000.000 
NATIONALBANKOFCOMMERCE, NASHVTLLE 11/17/ 95 590% 15,000,000 15,000,000 
SOUTHTRUSTBANK,NASHVlLLE 6/ 6/96 5.80"/., 3,000.000 3,000,000 
SOUTHTRUSTBANl<,NASITVJLLE 6/ 6/ 96 5.60% 2,800,000 2,800,000 
IBE BANK OF NASHVILLE 7/3/95 595% l,000,000 1,000,000 
THE BANK OF NASHVILLE 7/ 3/95 650% 1.000,000 1,000.000 
THE BANK OF NA5HVrLLE 8/25/ 95 620% 2,000,000 2,000,000 
NEWPORTFEDER.ALSAVlNGSAND LOAN, 
NEWPORT 10/2/ 95 6.90% 500,000 500,000 
1'."EWPORTFEDERALSAVlNGS AJ>.;D LOAN. 
i\.CWPORT 6/25/96 580% 300,COO 300,000 
SECURITY BANK.NEWBERN 7/10/95 525% 350.000 350,000 
SECURITY BANK, NEWBERN 7/ 14/95 575% 300,000 300,000 
SECURITY BANK. NEWBERN 8/29 / 95 5 80% 500.000 500,000 
OAKLAND DEPOSITUANK. OAKLAND 4/ 12/ 96 6 50"/n 100,000 100,000 
COMMERCIAL DANK, OBION 9/29/95 5.90% 200.000 200,000 
FIRST NA nONAL BANK,ONFIDA 1/ 11/96 6.25% 500,000 500,000 
FIRST NA TI ONA L BANK, ON ETD A 12/ 8/ 95 6.50% 500.000 500.000 
FlRSTNATJONAL BANK, PO<EVIUE 9/22/95 590% 300,000 300,000 
COMMUNITYBANK PL'LASKl 10/19/95 615% 750,000 750,000 
FIRST NATIONAL BA."JK. PULASKI 8/ 11 / 95 6 40°'o 300,000 300,000 
FIRST NATIONAL BA."\;K, PULASKI 2/ 13/96 6.85% 300,000 300,000 
FIRST NATION AL BANK, PULASKI 2/13/ 96 6.85~o 500,000 500.000 
FIRST NATIONAL BA.'\/K, PULASKI 2/ 9 / 96 6.85% 700,000 700,000 
FIRST NATIONAL BA '1K, PULASKI 8/15/95 625% 300,000 300,000 
BANK OF RJPLEY 9/5/ 95 620% 100,000 100,000 
BAN!< OF Rll'LEY 1/ 19/96 615% 100,000 100,000 
BANK OF RIPLE'l' 11 /27/95 6 00% 150,000 150.000 
OANKOFRlPLEY 7/1 1/95 6.50% 200,000 200,000 
BANK OF RIPLEY l / 29/ 96 6J5% 100,000 100.000 
FIRST UNION BA.~K, ROCERS\'JLLE 12/22/95 6,50% 550,000 550,000 
FIRSTUNION BA.7'.:K, ROGERS\' ILLE 10/6/95 690% 1,600.000 l ,b00,000 
FIRSTUNION BA.'-.;K, ROCERS\'ILLE 12/22/95 650"1> l.100.000 1,100,000 
CHARTERFEDERALSAVl\JGS BAl\o'K,SEVIERVfLLE 10/ 13/ 95 6 so~" 85,000 85,000 
SOMERVILLE BANK A. D TRUST 8/25/ 95 6.20% 200,000 200,000 
FIRST BA.'\:K RHEA COUNTY ,SPRING CITY 10/2/95 6. 10% 900,000 9t)(),000 
MERCHA.NfS AND PLANTERS. TOONE 2/16/96 b.75% 200,000 200,000 
MER CHANTS AND PLANTERS, TOONE 11 / 17/95 6.60% 200.000 200,000 
MERCHAN fSAND PLANTERS, TOONE 8/29/95 S.ll0% 100,000 100,000 
MERCHANTS AND PLANTERS, TOONE 9/ 28/95 5.80% 100.000 100.000 
!3ANKO!-COMMERCE. TRENTON 10/20/95 6.lS"lo 1,000,000 1,000,000 
BANKOFCOMMERCE, mENTOi\: 7/14/ 95 5.75% 1,000,000 1,000,000 
!3ANKOFCOMMERCE. TRENTO'-' 11 / 27 / 95 6 OU~o 2,500,000 2,.500,000 
BA"JI< OFCOMMERCE.TREl'-'TO:\' 12/ 18/95 580% 1.000,000 l,W0,000 

WAYNE COUNTY BANK. WA YNF.SBORO 9/15/95 6 20% 900,000 900.000 
TiiE WH1TEVILU: BA. K 5!15/96 6.05% 350 000 350,000 
THEWHITFVILLEBANK 5/17/96 o.OS'lo 500,000 50!.l,000 
lliE WHITEVILLE DANK o/21/90 5 80% 600,000 000,000 
TI-!EWH1TEVILLE BANK 9/29/95 s 9Q~q 400,000 4Cl0,000 

(Continued) 

52 Treasurer' s Rcporl 



THE WHITEVILLE BANK 
THE WHITEVILLE BANK 
BANK OF COMMERCE, WOODBURY 

TOTAL CERTIFJCA TES OE DEPOSIT 

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS: 
SWISS BANK CORP. GSI 
THIRD NATIONAL BANK,NASHVILLE 
SWJ5S BANK CORP. GSI 
SWISS BANK CORP. GS! 
HSBC SECURTilES 
HSBCSECURillES 
HSBC SECURITIES 

TOTALREPURCHASEAGREEMENTS 

COMMERCIAL PAPER: 
BT SECURITIES CORP 
B l FUNDING, INC 
FALCON ASSET SECURmZA TION CORP 
MITSUBISHI INT'L CORP. 
ASSOCIATES CORP OF N. AMERICA 
SHEFFIELD RECEIVABLES CORP 
SUMITOMO CORP OF AMERICA 
BELL ATLANTIC NETWORK FUNDING CO 
MERRILL LYNC!-1 & CO., INC. 
CORPOR.ATERECENABLESCORP 
FALCON ASSETSECURffiZA TION CORP 
RECEfVABLESCAPITALCORP 
GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 
MEnIFE FUNDING CORP 
SHEFFIELD RECEIV ABLESCORP 
MITSUI & CO (USA) INC 
PACTELCAPITALRESOURCES 
RECEIVA13LESCAPITALCORP. 
KOCH INDUSTRIES 

TOTAL COMMERCIAL PAPER 

TOTALPORTFOLJO 

Key to Ratings 

Rating 

Al 
Al 
Al 

Al+ 
Al+ 
Al+ 
Al+ 
Al+ 
Al+ 

Al 
Al 
Al 

Al+ 
Al+ 
Al+ 
Al 
Al 
Al 

Al+ 

All ratings presented are from Moody's Inves­
tors Service with the exception of some of the 
govenunent agency securities. Moody's does not 
rate these securities. Standard & Poor's does 
provide ratings for the securities (AAA is Stan­
dard & Poor' s highest rating) Government Secu­
rities are not rated per se' but are considered the 
best quality securities. By policy, TCRS consid­
ers convertible bonds as an equity investment, 
thus the ratings of the convertible bonds are not 
as large a factor when an investment decision is 
made. As a result, some of the convertible bond 
ratings are lower than other TCRS bond invest­
ments. In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting pnnciples, the convertible bonds are 
classified as corporate bonds for financial report­
ing purposes. 

Maturity 

8/ 25/ 95 
8/ 18/ 95 

12/ 29/ 95 

715/95 
7 / 5 /95 
7/3/95 
7/3 / 95 
7/3 / 95 
7/3/95 
7/3/95 

9 / 6/ 95 
7 / 14/ 95 

7; 6/95 
7/6/95 
7/6/95 
7 / 7/ 95 

7 / 14/95 
7/5/95 
7/ 5 /95 
8/ 2/95 

8 / 10/95 
9/ 14/ 95 
9/1/95 
l'. /7 / 95 

7 128/95 
7 /12/95 
7 / 11/95 

7/5/95 
7/5/95 

Coupon 

570% 
5.70% 
7.30% 

5.90% 
6.00% 
6.20% 
6.20% 
6.20% 
6.20% 
6.20% 

6.38% 
6.02% 
5.98% 
597% 
5.98% 
6 .00% 
b.01% 
597% 
599% 
599% 
5.98% 
593% 
5.93% 
5.96% 
6.01% 
6.09% 
6.09% 
6.20% 
6.25% 

State Cash Portfolio 

Par Value Market Value 

$ 500,000 $ 500,000 
300,000 300,000 

2.000,000 2,000,000 

$ 829 ,083 .000 $ 829,083,000 

$ 11,000,000 $ 11,000,000 
15,000,000 15.000,000 
52,757,000 52,757,000 
27.243,000 27,243,000 
48,895,000 48,895.000 
26,105.000 26,105,000 
20,200,000 20,200,000 

$ 201,200,000 $ 201,200,000 

$ 30,000,000 $ 29,137,167 
14,250,000 14,099,013 
30,000.000 29,826,458 
24,336,000 24,227.401 
50,0()0 ,000 49,801,333 
20,000,000 19,916,944 
16,000,000 15,917,609 
15,000.000 14,945.458 
50,000,000 49,82.5,875 
30,000,o(JO 29,786,792 
20.000,000 19,831,983 
37.532.000 37,013,589 
50,000,000 49,421,153 
35,561 ,000 35,297,849 
30,000,000 29.845~"17 
15,000,000 14,967,067 
25,000,000 24,949,333 
12.,000,000 11.989,667 
25,000,000 24,978,299 

$ 529,679,000 $ 525,778,507 

$ 2,284,062,000 s 2,280,673,515 

Moody's rates securities as follows: 

Aaa ....... .... Best Quality 

Aa ......... .... High Quali ty 

A ............... Upper Medium Quality 

Baa ........... Medium Quality 

Moody's apphesnurnerical m odifiers in each rat­
ing classification as follows: 

1 ........... ..... Higher End 

2 ........ " ...... Mid-range 

3 .. ........... . Lower End 

NR indicates the security is not rated by Moody's. 
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GOVERNMCNTS: 
BO DS AND NOTES: 

CERT OF ACCRUAL TREASURY-SERM AAA 0.000 5/15/96 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,904.400 
CERT OF ACCRUAL TREASURY-SERO AAA 0.000 5/15/96 3,000,000 2,856,600 
CERT OF ACCRUAL TREASURY-SERT AAA o.ooo 5/15/96 25,280,000 24,071,616 
CERT OF ACCRUAL TREASURY-SERT AAA 0.000 11 /15/96 9.404,000 8,706,223 
CERT OF ACCRUAL fREA.SURY-SERV AAA 0.000 5/15/96 4,000,000 3,808,800 
COUPON TREASURY RCPT AAA 0.000 2/15/98 39,no,ooo 34,100,017 
COUPON TREASURY RCPT AAA 0.000 8/ 15/97 30,000,000 26,540,700 
COUPON TREASURY RCPT AAA 0.000 8/ 15/ 98 49,140,000 40,904,136 
COUPON TREASURY RCPT AAA 0.000 8/ 15/2004 23,075,400 12,946,915 
COUPON TREASURY RCPT AAA 0 000 11 / 15/2003 74,236.964 43,934,920 
PRINCIPLE TREAS RCPT AAA 0.000 8/ 15/2004 10,134,000 5.685,883 
PRINCIPLE TREAS RCJYI' AAA 0.000 8/ 15/ 2003 I 00,000,000 60,182,000 
SBA GTD P ARTN CTFS SBIC 90-JOD AAA 8 700 12/10/ 2000 l 1..000,000 11,922,900 
TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTH 1992 S.A AAA 6.000 1/ 15/ 97 40,336,000 40,235,160 
TIGER SER 1 AAA 0000 5115/2000 13.678,000 10,250,977 
TIGERSER2 AAA 0000 5/ 15/2000 4,723,875 3.540,308 
TIGERSER8 AAA 0.000 5/15/2000 15,513,500 11,626,593 
US TREAS BO CORPUS AAA. 0000 11 / 15/ 2001 76,000,000 49,983,680 
US TREAS BO STRJ PPED PRIN PMT AAA 0000 8/15/ 2005 43,000,000 22,631,330 
US TREAS BO STRIPPED PRN PMT AAA 0.000 5/15/2005 100,000,000 53,555,000 
US TREAS NTSTR.IPPEDPRI~ PMT AAA 0000 5/15/2001 21,000,000 14,794,710 
US TREAS NT STRJPPED PRI~ PMT AAA 0.000 11/15/97 35.000,000 30,510,550 
U 5 TREAS :'IJT STRJPPED PRIN PMT AAA 0.000 2115/98 33.500,000 28,768,125 
US TREAS NT STRIPPED PRIN PMT AAA 0.000 2/15/99 93,100.000 75,301,14:! 
US TREAS STRIP GENERIC TINT AAA 0.000 S/15/2003 39,900,000 24,577.602 
US TREAS STRIP GEN ERlC TINT AAA 0000 2/15/2005 38,000,000 20,nI.400 
L STREASSTRlPGENERlCTINT AAA 0000 5/15/2006 28.100,000 14,022.462 
t; S TREASURY BILLS AAA 0000 9 128/ q<:; 100,000,000 98,268,6 11 
USTREASURY BONDS AAA 12.000 8/15/2013 80,000,000 J18,000,000 
US TREASURY BONDS AAA 8.750 5 / 15/ 2017 60.000,000 73,781,400 
USTREASURY BONDS AAA 10.750 8115/2005 172,600,000 229, 180,006 
US TREASURY BONDS AAA 7.500 11/ 15/ 2024 324,735.000 359,290,051 
US TREASURY BONDS AAA 8 875 8/15/2017 113,600,000 141,432,000 
US TREASURY BONDS AAA 9 250 2/ 15/2016 239,100.000 30b,571,629 
US TREASURY NOTES AAA 6 375 !!/15/ 2002 68,500,000 69,313,095 
US TREASURY NOTES AAA 5 125 12/ .ll /98 76,770,000 74,767,071 
US TREASURY NOTES AAA 7.500 1/ 31/97 100.000,000 102,484,000 
US TREASURY NOTES AAA b 500 5/15/97 50,850,000 51,430,199 
US TREASURY NOTES AAA n soo 4/ 30/99 241.525,000 245,676,815 
LS TREASURY NOTES AAA 7 250 11/30/% 100,000,000 101,891,000 

TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES $2,650,l 70.026 

AGENCI ES: 
FARMCRS'cSfINLASSISTCORP AAA 8 800 6/10/2005 s 10,000,000 s 11,665.600 
FARMERS HOME ADMJN CTF BEN INT AAA 8 750 1 l / 26/ 2000 43,213 43,213 
FAR~fERS HOME ADM IN CTF BEN IN1 AAA 8 500 8/28/2000 92,380 92,380 
FARMERS HOME ADMIN CTF BEN INT AAA 5.750 6/29/2001 112,377 105,991 
FARMERS HOME ADMJN INSD NT AAA 5.750 6/30/99 15,580 14,951 
FED NA 11. MTC ASSN M1N 00582 AAA 5.190 7120198 20,000.000 19.~.ooo 
FED I\. A rt. MTG ASSN MTN 00641 AAA 5 230 11/25/98 60,005,000 58.489,874 
FEDERAL:-.<ATLMORTGAGEASSN Al\A 0000 '; /5/2014. 148,500,000 38,656,035 
FEDERAL t'>.ATI. MT(, ASSN DEB AAA 6 400 1113/ 2004 15,000.000 14,630,250 
FEDl::RAL /\:A 11. MTG ASS!'-1 MTN AAA 6.270 4/1 /99 10,000,000 9,937,000 
rEDf:RAl t\ATI. MTG ASS'.\! MTN AAA 5.200 i / 10/98 30,000,000 29,214,000 
FEDERAL KA TL MTG ASSl\J MTN AAA b.270 4 /3'9h 22,700,000 22,786.714 
FEDE:RAL NA rL MTG ASS:-../ MTN AAA 6 8-10 10/3 97 20,000,000 20,.3-10.000 
FHA & VA MORTGAGE LNS AAA ouoo 11 / l /95 942 942 
FHA & VA J\IORTGAGE LN~ AAA 0.000 I0 / 1 / 97 18,432 18 355 
FH LMC GROUP 1122-0010 AAA 8 750 ll/1/2001 4,260.934 4.363.452 
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FHLMC ML TIC LS P /CSER 125 CL-A AAA 8 750 3/1512000 $ 46.818,697 $ 46,818,697 
FHLMC MULTI CLASS MTG P IC l 141 F AAA 8500 1011512020 40,000,000 41,352,000 
fHL\.fC MULTICLASS MTG P IC 1398F AAA 6000 1211512005 15,890,000 15,138,827 
fHLMC MULTICLASS MTG P , C 1409G AAA 6 750 2/15/200& 10,000,000 9,971,900 
FHLMC MUL TIC LASS MTG P IC 1414G AAA 6.250 7115/2006 10,000,000 9,722,000 
FHLMCMULTICLASSMTGP/C1415M AAA 6 750 2/15/2006 20,000,000 19.935,800 
FHLMC MULTICLASSMTG P/C 1546H AAA 7000 12/15/2022 10,000,000 9,739,285 
FHLMCMULTICLASSMTGP/C 156-1E AAA 6000 4/1512005 27,662,500 27,212.708 
FHLMC MULTICLASS MTG PC l 166PG AAA 8000 2115 ' 2020 14,500,000 14,772,020 
FHLMC MUL TIC LASS MTG PC 1560PE AAA 6.000 1111512016 30,000,000 29,420,400 
FHLMC MUL Tl CLASS MTG PC G-13PH AAA 6.000 3125/2018 20,000,000 19,193,000 
FNMA POOL #0109011 AAA 6 350 1/1 /2004 17,753,077 19.448,140 
FNMA POOL #01ti0159 AAA 7.516 7/1/99 10,000,000 10,059,600 
FNMA POOL #0160160 AAA 7.778 7/1/2001 40,000,000 41,268,474 
FNMA POOL #0268927 AAA 6 500 1/1/2024 1 1 
FNMA GTD REMIC P/TCTF 89-81-E AAA 9.000 3 /25/2019 21,000,000 22,103,130 
FNMA Gm REMIC P /T CTF 90-69-Z AAA 9.500 6/25/2020 33,384,197 35,821,243 
FNMA GTD REMJC P/TCTF91-116Z AAA 8.500 9 12512021 8,385,171 8,338,550 
FNMA GTD REMlC P /T CTF 92-l 86G AAA 6.000 ) 125/2006 8,605,000 8,264,414 
FNMA GTD REMIC P/ TCTF93-17-Z AAA 6.500 1 / 25/ 2016 16,563,009 16,038,624 
FNMA GTD REMlC P I T CTF G-27H AAA 8.500 9/25/2020 30,377,500 31,627,145 
FNMA GTD REMIC P / T CTF RT94M1B AAA 6.500 10/25/2003 47,477,000 46,664.194 
FNMA CTD R EMIC P I T CTF88-8 Z AAA 9.500 4 /25/20 18 21,672,578 23,390,780 
FNMA cm REMIC P ITCTF91-l-11PX AAA 8.000 7125/2018 19,926,32'." 20,343.385 
FNMA CTD REMlC PT CTF 91-113ZG AAA 8.750 12/25/2004 7,754,486 8,205.254 
FNMAGTD REMIC l'TCTF91-160ZB AAA 8.000 11125/2020 29,444,1 27 29,762,960 
FNMACTDREMICPTCTF91-81 PL AAA 7000 12, 25/2020 30,000,000 30,095,100 
FNMA cm REMIC PTC1F91-86Z AAA 6 500 11::;;12021 17921,697 16,695,136 
FNMA CTD REMIC PTCTF 92-10 ZA AAA 8.000 9/25/2019 28,574,070 29,116,4()6 
FNMA GTD REMlC PTCTF 92-171ZA AAA 7.350 2{25/2019 19,234,330 18.816,782 
FNf\..iA GTD REMIC PTCTFCl2-193GA AAA ,, 500 1 /25/2006 10,000,000 Q,816.500 
GNMA POOL #0354677 AAA 7500 1011512023 24,3&6 2·1.488 
GOVERNMENTTRCTFSCURRENTl-C AAA 9.250 11 /15/2001 50,000,000 55,076,000 
GOVERNMENTTR CTFSCURRENT2-E AAA 9400 5/15/2002 20,000,000 22,119,600 
INDONESIA REP PROM NT 9 300 7/1/2020 25,000,000 25.000.000 
NA TIO NA L ARCHIVES FAC TR C1F AAA 8 500 9/1 /2019 54,350,674 62,626,108 
SMALL BUSINESS ADMLN GTD 86-A AAA 8 750 9/1/96 6,405,715 6,541,068 
SMALL BUSfNESSADMINSER87 A AAA 7.950 2/1197 2,480,195 2,527,170 
STUDENT LN MARKETING ASSN MTN AA..l\ 8.520 12/ 13 / 99 25.000.000 25,297.500 
TENNESSEVALLEY AUTH PWR BOC AAA 8.250 9/15/2034 10,000,000 10,lSCJ.000 
TENNESSEE VALLEY AUTH PWR 89-C AAA 8.625 1ltl512029 8&,600,000 92.692,310 
TI.NNESSEEVALLEY AUTHPWR BD E AAA 4.600 12/ 15/ 96 80,500.000 78,986.600 

TOTAL AGENCIES s 1.280,035,056 

TOTALCOVERNMENTS 53.930.205,082 

CORPORA TES: 
Al LSTATECORPNTS A2 5.875 6/ 15/98 $ 22,000,000 s 21,668,460 
ALL TEL CORP DEO A2 9.500 3/1/2021 7,000,000 7,568,750 
AMERICA SOUTHWEST FINL 37-C AA.I\ 9.200 1211/2006 3,119,296 3,162.841 
AMERICAN GEN AN CORP SR NT Al 6.875 1 /15/2000 25,000,000 25.313.750 
AMERICAN HOME PRODS CORP NT A2. 6.500 10/15 '2002 35,000,000 :.H,944,000 
AMERICAN HOME PRODS CORP :-..'T A2 7900 2/15/2005 25,000,000 26,868.000 
A."1.ERlTECH CAP FDG CORP AA2 5 ()00 5112/98 61,250,000 60,959,062 
ANHEUSER BUSCH COS TNC 1'11 Al 6 900 101112002 10,000,000 10,040,400 
ARCHER DANIELS MIDLAND CO DEB AA2 !! !!75 4115/:!011 20,000,000 23,336,000 
ARK.LA INC SUB DEB BA2 8.9LIO l'.!/1512006 14,000,000 H.S40,000 
ASSOCL.\ TES CORP NORTH AMER AA3 7 750 11 rl/97 25.000,000 25.718.000 
ASSOCIATES CORP NORTH AMER NT AA3 6.250 3/15199 20,000,000 19,848,&00 
ASSOC IA TES CORP NORTH AMERICA AAJ 6 625 11115/97 16,755,000 16.835,089 
AT & T CAP CORP MTN TR# 00341 AA3 7 030 8/12/2002 10,000,000 10,185,200 

(Continued) 
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AT&TCAPCORP:'vlTN AA3 7,24(1 7/29/2002 s 8.500,000 s 8,75~.635 

BANC O'E' CR CARD MTR 94-C A AAA 7800 11/15 98 50,000,000 52,329,000 
BEAR STE.'\R.'\'.S MT\I liTR 00314 A2 6 550 2/10/97 50,000,000 50,000,000 
BELL TEL CO PA AAl 7700 1/15/2023 15,000.000 15,263,400 
BELL<;()UTH TELECO~l INC AAA 7 625 5/15 2035 15,000.000 15,070,500 
BEU SOUTH TEL EC O\Mv1U"11CA TIO\:S AAA 6 750 10/15 2033 35.000,000 31,839 150 
BENEFtCl.\LCORP:vtTN TR #00010 6 800 6/ 29/ 20<)5 10.000,000 10,000.<X)() 
BP NORTH AMER lt'\CGTD NT Al 10000 7, 1/2018 13.000.000 H,6i7.260 
BRANCH BKG & TR CO WILSON ~ITN A2 4 840 Pi / 23/96 20,000.000 19,/57,600 
ORA. '\;CH BKG& TR UST CO MTN Al 4750 5/151% 17,575,000 17,361,28R 
BRITISH GAS AN LNC GTD !\JT AA2 8 750 3/ 15/ 98 10,000,000 10,609,700 
CASE EQUIP LN TR 94-A CL A-2 AAA 4 650 8/ 15/ C}q 19,611,375 19,377,333 
CFNTRA! rl.L L TCO tc;'J" MTG AA2 8 200 1/15/2022 15,000.00U 15,8b3,5'i0 
CFNTRAL ILL LT CO !ST MTG AA2 7.500 1 / 15/2007 10,000,000 10,655,500 
CO-OPUTlL TR CAJUNELEC PWR AAA 9.520 3/15/2019 43.000,000 50,786.440 
COMMERC!AL ( R GROUP INC NT Al 6.875 5/1/2002 20,000,000 20,106.200 
CONSOLIDATFD EDISON CO NY INC Al 9 375 6/ 112026 5,000,000 5.438,900 
CONSOLIDATFD NAT GAS CO DEB Al 8 625 12/ 1/ 2011 9,555,000 10,110,623 
COOPERATIVE UTIL rn BIG ELEC AAA 9.500 2/ 15/ 2017 42,600,000 46.806,750 
COOPER \TIVEUTIL TRCAJ'J8S-Al2 AAA a qzo 3/ 15/2019 7,500.000 8,715.375 
CSXCORP'JT i\3 8.400 8/ 1/ 96 I 1,000,000 11 ,238,150 
DEAi\. WITTl:R DlSCOVER&COMTN A2 5 700 10/6197 30,000.000 24,096,bOO 
DEAN WITTER D~COVER \1ThJ A2 0 220 10/t> 97 20,000,000 15,953,200 
DH.RE IOHN CAP MTh # 1ROOJ2S A2 7 520 3 612000 15,000.000 15.53-; ,450 
DEERE JOHN CAP MT\I m 111)1)1~ A2 6150 6/1212000 10.000.000 9,881.200 
DELMA RV A rwR & LT co SHELF 6 A2 7710 6/1 12025 20.000.000 W.221 .800 
DUKE P\'l/R CO lST & RF.F AAl 8 750 '311/2021 2R,OOO.OOO 29.117 400 
FARMERSC..ROUP l~C f\.I A2 8 250 711519b 21 ,000.000 21,409,920 
FORD CR 1993-A GRAl\.'TOR TR A ' B 4 850 1I 15/98 5,033,083 S.031,787 
FORD HLOCS lNC DEB Al 9250 J/ 1 /2000 40.000,000 43,938.000 
FORD MTR COP 'T CTF SER 93 A6 AAA 5930 1 1 /2000 30,016,000 29,345,743 
FORD MTR CR CO '\IT Al 8.000 6115/2002 48,500.000 51.457,045 
FORD MTR CR MThl #TR 00320 Al 6 430 10/ 21 / 97 25 ,()()() ,000 24,912,500 
FORD MTR CR MTN TR 00251 A2 7 400 7/7/99 12.000.000 12.359,160 
GENERAL ELECCAPCCJRPMTh AAA 6 875 -1 / 15/2000 30,000,000 30.002,7()() 
GENERAL ELFCCAPCORPMJ~ AAA 8 875 5/15/ 2009 21.500,000 25,351,080 
GENERAL F.lEC CAP MTN #TR000516 5000 8/22/96 50,000,000 50,177.500 
GENF:.RAL ELEl CAP REMKTD AAA 8.650 5/1/2018 10.000.000 10,190,800 
GENERAL ELt:C CO UNSECD NTS AAA 7.875 9 / JS/ 98 65,000,000 67,71 I ,150 
GENERAL MRTSACC.EPCORP NT A3 8.7.';0 2/ 1/ 96 25,000,000 25,327,l'SU 
GENERAL MTRS ACCEPCORP MJN AJ 8 375 1 /30/9~ 58,000.000 60,528.220 
GENERAL MTRS ACCEPCORP MTN BAA! 7.!>50 11117/ 97 14,000,000 14.432,740 
GENERAL MTRS ACCEP CORP NT A3 7500 10/ 15/ 95 15,525.000 15,573,593 
GENERAL MTRSACCEPCORPNT AJ 7000 8 / 15/97 29,SOO.OOU 30,080.120 
GENERAL MTRS Al.CEP MT:-.: II 00263 BAAl I! 250 l / 20/98 24,000,000 24.996.720 
GENERAL \.ITRSCORP!\if A3 7 625 211s1q7 15,162,000 15,441,890 
Gl::.:\ERAL TfLCON WEST\HG-BB A2 8 750 4/ 15 / 2016 2,957,000 3,078,503 
GE'\;l:.RAIS \1LS NC \l f'. # TR00039 A1 9 050 l'.! / 15/ WOO 14.125,000 15,762,370 
C..EORGIA rwR cub 1 ~1 TG Al 6.000 31 l '2()()(1 19,000,000 18,673,010 
GEORGIA PWRCOJST\.tTG Al 7700 Sr 1 2025 20,000.000 20,371,400 
GMAC 92-F GRA '\ITOR TR ABS CL A AAA 4.500 9/15 197 13,·H3,3-W 13,291,2~3 

G'v1AC 9i- ·\ <·RA:-.. IOR TR CTF Cl A AAA 6300 I) / 15 / 99 30.015,3S/ 30,098,5'.!9 
GTE CORP DEB BAA1 10 250 11 / l / W20 20.000,000 23,36h,OOO 
GTEFNCORPMTN 9 oRO 2/ 18 9q 10,000.000 10.961,600 
GTF:. FLA L'\C DEB .'\'.! 6 3\(l 12 /15 I 2().J:~ 15.000.000 14.oll0,050 
GTC 'ORTH l'\JC CJEB Al 9.190 I/I / 2ll22 25,3tl5,000 27,726.259 
GTE :--.ORTI I INC DEB SFR A Al 6000 I /15/2004 15,000,000 H ,317,o.:;u 
Cl'U PEl<U CO l<;T MTG A. I 5.550 ~/ J/QS l 1.-IOU.000 11, 16-1 1:118 
HALLIBURTON CO DEB A2 8 750 211:;12021 8.000.000 9,217,040 
IBMCRRECLl\1\8l.E..SCi3-1Cl A AAA q 550 11/15/2000 19.710,-173 t'l 439.70 
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llLINOIS BELL TEL CO lST SER K AAA 7.625 4 / 1/ 2006 $ 17,500,000 $ 17,786,825 
llUNOIS BELL TEL CO DEB AAl 7.250 3 / 15/2024 37,500,000 36,562,500 
INGERSOLL RAND CO BD A2 6.480 6/1/2025 15,250,000 15,052,512 
INGERSOLL RAND CO DEB A2 7.200 6/1/2025 10,000,000 9.775,000 
lNTERN A TION AL LEASE FTN CORP A2 5 625 3/1/98 25,000,000 24,506,000 
KEN1UO. •. 'Y UTILSCO 7.550 6/1/2025 15,000.000 15,000,000 
KEN1UCKY UTILSCOlSTMTG AA2 5 950 6/15/2000 10,000,000 9,829,000 
KFW !NTL FIN lNC AAA 8000 2/ 15/2010 30,000,000 33 ,017,-100 
MCA FOG CORP MTh 5150 10/5/98 20.000,000 19,2.76,000 
MCA FOG CORP MlN 4 480 8/13/96 28,000,000 27.534,640 
MERCA.NTil..E BK MTN 5 938 11 / 18/ 96 40,000,000 39,990,452 
MERRllL LYNCH & CO INC NT Al 6.375 9/8/2006 10,000,000 9,354,600 
MERR1LL LYNCHMTN#TR00149 Al 6.500 4/15/98 25,000,000 24,957,500 
MICHIGAN BELL TEL CO DEB A Al 7 500 2/ 15/ 2023 15,200,000 15,302,600 
NA TIONSBANK CORP MTN #00025 A2 5.936 11/18/97 60,000,000 59,757,000 
NA TIONSBANK CORP SNR NT A2 4.750 8/ 15/96 30,000,000 29,533,500 
NORTHERN GAS CO !ST MTG AAl 9.000 7/1/2019 9,000,000 9,270,000 
NORTHERN STS PWRCO MJNN lST Al 9.125 7 I l/2019 9,800,0CJO 10,435,628 
NORWEST CORP MlN #TR 00187 AAJ 6.390 1/26/98 25,000,000 24,893,000 
NORWEST CORP M1N #TR 00190 AA3 7.750 311/2002 20.000.000 21,256.200 
NORWEST FINL INC SHELF 47 AA:J 6.750 6/1/2005 20,000,000 20,088,600 
OHIO BELL TELL CO SR UNSECD AAA 7 850 12/ 1512022 35,000.000 37.073,750 
OLYMPIC AUTOMOBILE 95-C Cl A-2 AAA 6 200 1/15/ 2002 20,000,000 19,983,400 
PACIFIC BELL DEB AA3 7 750 9/15/2032 15,000,000 15.087,600 
PACIFIC BELL DEB AA3 7.500 2/1 / 2033 16,000,000 15,503,200 
PENNEY JC INC MTN #Til OOOU 1 Al 7.050 5/23/2005 10,000,000 10,171.300 
PENNSYL V ANL<\ PWR & LT CO A2 9.250 1011/2019 21,800,000 23,494,078 
POTOMAC CAP INV CO MED TERM NT 9.800 1/20/98 10,000,000 10,695,400 
POTOMAC CAP L'\JV1 CORP MTN 9 870 7 / 30/98 10,000,000 10,826,100 
POTOMAC CAP Il\. 'VT CORP MTN 9 690 8/11/97 10.000.000 10,573,800 
PREMIER AUTO TR 1993-3 CL A AAA 4 900 12/15/ 98 27,684,272 27.346,801 
PREMIER AUTO TR 199J-6 CL A-2 AAA 4.650 11/2/99 6,750.518 6,616,587 
PREMIER AUTO TR 1995-3 CL A-3 AAA 5.930 12/ 6/98 20,000,000 19,906,200 
PREMIER AUTO TR 93-5 CL A-2 AAA 4.220 3/2/99 11,769,379 11,504,568 
PREMTER AUTO TR ABS 93-2 CL A3 AAA 4.900 10/15/98 7,602,868 7,503,042 
PROCTER & GAMBLE ESOP DEB SR-A AA2 9.360 l / 1 /2021 37,000,000 45,086,350 
PSEGCAPCORPMTN 9.300 11 / 13i 95 20,000.000 20,221,400 
RURAL ELEC COOP GRANTOR 87 A3 AAA 9.200 9/30/ 2001 20,000,000 20,625,600 
SEARS CR ACCT TR 91-B CL 1 AAA 8.600 5/15/98 20.000.000 20,400,000 
SOUTH CENTRAL BELL TEL CO DEB AAA 7 375 8 / 1 / 2012 25,500,000 25,173,345 
SOUTHERN BELL TEL&. TEL CO DEB AAA B 625 911/2026 14,000,000 14,578,620 
SOUTHERN BELL TEL&. TE LEG CO AAA 8 750 ll /l/2024 10.000,000 10,405,200 
SOUTHERN BELL TEL & TELEG CO AAA 7 375 7/15/2010 27,500,000 27,666,925 
SOUTHERN CALIF EDISON CO lST A2 8875 6/ 1/2024 10,000.000 10,{39,900 
SOUTHERNCALIFEDISONSER86 K A2 8 375 1211/2017 10,000,UOO 10,158,900 
SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CO lST MTG A2 7 500 6/15/ 2023 10.000.000 10,044,500 
SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CO lST MTG A2 6.875 11/1 / 2025 10.000,000 9,241,500 
SOUTHWESTERNBELL TELCO Al 8.250 411 / 2017 10,000,000 10, 150,500 
SOUTHWESTER!'\! BELL TEL CO DEB Al 7 625 3/1/2023 32.000.000 32.220,160 
SOUTHWESTERN BELL TEL CO DEB Al 7000 7/ 112015 21,500 ,000 21 ,003,565 
STANDARD CR CARD 94-2 CTI CL A AAA 7.250 4/7 / 2008 20.000,000 20,537,400 
STANDARDCRCARDMSTTR 91-4 A AAA 8.000 8/7/ 96 10,000,000 I0,189.921 
STANDARD CR CARD MT 1994-1 CLA AAA 4 650 3/7/99 20.000,000 19,555,842 
STANDARD CR CARD SER 95-2 CL A AAA 8 625 1 / 7 /2002 :.!5 .ouo ,0()() 26,081,393 
STANDARD OIL CO DEB Al 6.300 7 ' 1; 2001 10,000,000 9,902,700 
STANDARD OIL CO GID DEB A1 9.000 611/2019 15.000 000 16,303,350 
TECO FIN INC M1N 6.450 11 , 5, 97 20,000,0UIJ 20,157,800 
THE TRA VELERSGROLP INC. ~ 7.625 1/ 15/ 97 18,270.000 18,532,723 
US WES r COM.\.1UNICA TIONS DEB AA3 8 875 o, 1/ 2031 55.720,000 61,255,225 
USA.-\ CAP CORP l'vITN II TR 00014 6 300 2 / 13/ 98 25,000,000 25,000,000 

Continued 

rreasurer's Report 57 



TCRSPortfolio 

Domestic Fixed Inc ome Portfolio 

Rating Coupon M•turity Par Value Mark~t Value 

USAA CAP CORP MTN l 44A AAA 6.090 9/29/97 $ 25,000,000 $ 20,168,500 
WASHINGTON GAS LT CO IST MTG AA2 8 750 7/ 1/2019 15,000,000 16,080,750 
WEYERHAUSER CO DEB A2 7.500 3/1 / 2013 30,000,000 30.454.500 
WISCONSIJ\ ELEC PWR lST MTG AA2 7.700 12/15/2027 15,000,00{1 15,574,950 
WISCONS!!\: ELEC PWR CO 1 ST MTG AA2 S.375 12/ 1 12026 27,500,000 29' 4 52,.225 
ZIONS AUTO TR AB NTSER93-1A2 AAA 4 650 6 / 15/99 3,365,312 3,331,659 

St:BTOTAL CORPORA TES $ 2.980,795.+4:! 

CONVERTIBLE CORPORA TES: 
3COM CORP SR NT CONV I 44A Bl 10.250 11/1/2001 $ 3,000,000 s 3,847,.500 
AIRBORNE FGH T CORP SUB CONY BAl 6.750 8/ 15/2001 3,000,000 2,917,500 
ALTERACORPSUO NT 144A B2 5.750 6/15/ 2002 3.500,000 3,710,000 
AMRCORPDELSUBCON~ BA2 6.115 11 /1/2024 7,500,000 7,800,000 
BAl\.lJ< NEW YORK INC SUB DEIJ CONV A3 7.500 8/15 /2001 2.000.000 4,145.000 
BOSTON C H ICKEN CONY OD B2 0.000 6 / 1/ 2015 15,000,000 3,356,250 
COMCAST CORP SUD NTCONV STEP Bl 3 375 9/9/ 2005 5.000,000 4,725,000 
COOPER INDS INC SL'B DEB CONY A3 7.050 1/ 1/ 2015 4,500,000 4,635,000 
CYPRESS SEMICONDUCTOR CORP SUB 62 3150 3/15/ 2001 2.500,000 3,725,000 
EQUITABLECOSTNCSUB DEBCOt\-V BAA1 6.125 12/15/2024 5,000 000 5,275,000 
FEDER A TFD DEPT STORES ll\lC DEL BAJ 5000 2/15/ 2004 8,000,000 8,100,000 
FIRSTFfll.:LMGMTCORPSR DEB BAAl 5000 12/1 5199 4,500,000 5,940,000 
FISllERSCIENTIF-!C INTLINCSUB BA2 4. 750 3 / 1/ 2003 2,500,000 2,665 625 
GENCORP lNC SLiB DEB c:-.:v BA3 8.000 811/2002 3,000,000 2,910,000 
GENERAL INSTR CORP t\ EW JR CNV Bl 5.000 6/ 15 / 2000 2,500,000 4, 134.375 
rNTEGRA TED HEAL TH SVCS INC SR NR 5.750 I l l 12001 1.500,000 1,710,000 
LDDS COMMUNICATIONS INC CONV B BA2 5.000 8/15/ 2003 4.000.000 3,800,000 
MAGNETEK INC SUR NTCONV 82 8.000 9/15/ 2001 5.000,000 4,925,000 
MOTOROLA INC SUB LIQt.;rD YIELD Al o.ooo 9/2712013 6,000,000 4.830,000 
PEP BOYS MANNY MOE+ JACK BAA3 4.000 9 / 1 / 99 2,500,000 2,340,625 
PROFFITTS INC SUB DER CONV 62 4.750 11/1 /2003 3,500,000 3,071 ,250 
SEAGATETE~OLOGYCt\-V DEB Bl 6.750 5/1 12012 1,500,000 1,552.500 
SPORTS & RLC lNC SUB NT CONV B2 4 250 11 /1 12000 3,500,000 2.,616,250 
TIME WARNER rNCSUB DEBCOJ\'V BA3 8.750 1/ 10/2015 ld,000,000 18,742,500 
TRINOVACORPCNVSUB DEB BAA3 6.000 10/ 15/2002 3,500,000 3,281,250 
UNIFI INC CONV BAAl 6.000 3/ 1512002 2.500.000 2,462,500 
Ut\' ITED ST A TES CELLULAR CORP BAJ 0 .000 b/15/ 2015 7,500,000 2,325,000 
USX-MARA THON GROUPSt.:B DEIJ CNV NR 7000 6/15/2017 3,500,000 3,220,000 
WA BAN INC SUB DEBCONV BA3 6.500 7/1 / 2002 4,000.000 3,640,000 
WMX TECHNOLOGIES SUB NTCONV A1 2.000 1/ 24 / 2005 4,500.000 3,768.750 

SUBTOTALCONVERTIBLECORPORATES $ 130,171,875 

TOTAL CORPORATES s 3,110,967,317 

TOTAL DOMESTIC FIXED !~COi\ tE PORTFOUO s 7,041,172,399 
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GOVcRNMENTS: 
DUTCH (GOVT OF) BOS l:'-. TFL 1000 AAA 8 250 Q/ 15/2007 $ 20,000.000 s 13,939,981 
DUTCH GOVT BOS NTFL1000 AAA 8.250 6 / 15/2002 24,000,000 16,782.188 
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK AAA 6.250 7/ 28/99 50,000,000 10,003,813 
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK AAA 9.875 2/9/2000 I 00,000.000 22,635.815 
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BA. '\lK AA.A. 8.800 4 , 13/ 2000 50,000,000 10,940.479 
EUROPEAN lNVESTMENTBANK AAA 8 750 8 /25/2017 10,000,000 15,597,251 
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK BOS NR 6.750 5110/2001 1,800,000,000 26.20l.9Q4 
EUROPEANJNVESTMENTBKBDS NR 4 250 7 / 16/98 800,000,000 10,212,967 
FRANCE(GOVTOF) AAA 6.000 10/ 2512025 100,000,000 15,633,084 
FRANCE(GOVT OF) OAT BOS AAA 0000 4 125/2011 100,000,000 5,862.407 
FRANCE(GOVT OF) OAT BDS AAA 0000 4 / 25/2010 100,000,000 6,433,393 
FRANCE(GOVTOF) BOSSER 3 AAA 8 500 11/25/2002 100,000,000 21,839,732 
GERMANY(FEDERAL REPUBLIC) AAA 7 750 lO/l / 2004 25,000,000 18,675,200 
HYDRO QUEBEC DEB SER IF A2 8000 211 / 2013 22,650,000 23,594,278 
INTER-AMERJCAN DEV BANK NTS NR 6.750 2/20/2001 1,550 ,000 ,000 22,425,668 
INTER-AMERlCAN DEV BK BOY-VAR AAA 6000 10/30/2001 2,000 ,000 ,000 28,287,417 
INTIRNATIONALBANKFORREC&DEV AAA 11500 11 / 9/2003 15,000,000 27,794,861 
INTERNATIONAL BANK OF REC&DEV NR 4.500 6120/ 2000 5,000,000,000 65,814,407 
INTERNATIONAL BK FOR REC & DEV AAA 9.320 10/29/ 2003 10,000,000 11,609.000 
INTL BK FOR RECON & DEV COL TS AAA 9.570 11 / 1/2018 10.000.000 12,471.000 
INTL BK RECON & DEV WASH DC AAA 8.875 3/1/2026 12,000,000 14,575,080 
INTI. BK RECON & DEV WASH DC AAA 8.625 10 '1512016 58,000,000 67,484,160 
MANITOBA PROV CDA DEB Al 7.750 2/1/2002 30,000,000 31.908.600 
ONT ARIO 1 IYDRO AA2 8 625 2 16/2002 25,000,000 18.686,615 
ONT ARJO PROV CDA BO AAJ 7.375 l 27 ' 2003 30,000,000 .31, 101,300 
QUEBEC PROV CDA BO A2 9 375 l/16/ 2023 45,000,000 33,634,269 
QUEBEC PROV CDA DEB Al 8.625 12 I /2026 20,000,000 21.985,800 
QUEBEC PROV CDA MTN Al 8400 3/29/96 20,400.000 26,823,984 
QUEENSLAND TREAS CORP NTS-LON AA2 8.000 5/14/2003 12,000.000 7,953,293 
SNCFBDS AAA 6.750 9/16/2013 50,000,000 8,879,155 
TRUEHANDANSl ALTBDS AAA 6 875 6/1112003 30.000.000 21,501,247 
VlCTORJAN FINANCE AUTiiORITY AA2 12.500 7/15/2000 7,000,000 5,711,488 
WESTERN AUSTRALIA TREASCORP AA2 8.000 7/15/2003 10,000,000 6,588,013 
NON-BASE CURRENCY (13.275,000) (159,888) 
TOT AL GOVERNMENTS s 683.428,051 

CORPORATES: 
AMCOR LIMITED UNDATED SUB NTS 6.500 OPEN $ 650,000 $ 4,619,875 
AMOCO CDA PETE CO GTD DEB A.Al 6.750 9/1/2023 25.000,000 23,257,000 
AMOCO CDA PETE CO NT AAl 6.750 2/15/2005 12,000,000 12,011,160 
BA YERISCHE LADESBKGl.ROZENTRAL AAA 8.500 2 / 26/2003 5,000,000 7,743.991 
BRITISH TELECOM FlN INC GID NT AAA 9.375 2/15/ 99 15,000,000 16,459,950 
CS HLDG FLN BV CONV BOS l\l'R 4875 11 , 19/ 2002 5,000,000 7.171,850 
FORD CAP B V GTD NT Al 9 875 5115/ 2002 30,000,000 34,877.100 
GRANDMETPUB LTDNTCONV 144A A2 6.500 1/31/2000 4,000,000 4,260,000 
HYDRO QUEBEC MTN 9.640 12/ 29/ 97 12,000.000 12.853,440 
lMPERIALOIL LTD DEB AA2 8 750 l0! 15/2019 23,500.000 25,729,445 
f APAN DEVELOPMENT BANK BOS AAA 5.000 10/1 / 99 1,600,000,000 21,261,283 
JAPA.'\l DEVELOPMEl\.1T BK BO AAA 6 500 9/2012001 2,600,000.000 37,655,596 
KFWINTERNATIONALFL/\;A.'\ICEINC 7.750 10/6.'2004 30,000000 22,431.934 
KFW lt-.'TL FINANCE lNC AAA 7.500 1/24/2000 30.000.000 22,648,877 
LKB BADENl\TVRTTEMBERG ANANCE NR 6.500 9 15/ 2008 95,000,000 63,5-16,299 
LKB BADEN-WURTIEMBURG FIN NV 6 750 6/21/2005 50,000,000 35,014,64-l 
MTCHELfN (GE GLE DES EST ABL) ~.500 1 112001 1,699.810 350,390 
NEW SOLiTH WALES TRE.\S CORP BOS l'<"R 6 500 5, 112006 14,000,000 7.966,569 
PIONEER CONCRETE GTD CONV BO 9 500 o/21/98 4,000.000 2,967,38l 
ROCHE HLDGS INC LIQ YD 14~A NR oouo 4 120/2010 12,000,000 4,770.000 
NON-BASE CURRENCY 29 8 

TOT AL CORPORATES $ 367,596.792 

TOTAL INTERN A TION.·\L FlXED INCOME PORTFOLIO s 1.051,024,843 

GRAND I 01 A I FlXF.D INCOl\1 F PORTFOLIO $ 8,092.197,242 
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ABBOITLABS 495,000 $ 16,615.759 $ 20,047,500 
ADAPTECINC 42.000 953,309 1,554.000 
ADOBE SYS INC 75,000 4.075,189 4,350,000 
ADV A NC ED MICRO DEV ICES INC 125,000 4,295,905 4,562,500 
AFLAC fNC COM 65,000 2,247,609 2,843,750 
AH MANSON HF & CO CNV PFD 50,000 2,571,150 2,556,250 
AIR PRODS & CHEMS TNC 65,000 3,431,540 3,623,750 
AIRTOUCH CO\llf'vfUNlC A TJONS INC 452,000 8,984,341 12,882.000 
AK STL HLDG CORP PFD CONV STK 50,000 1.537,500 1,437,500 
ALBERTSONSINC 240,000 7,094,663 7,110,000 
ALCO STD CORP 158,200 '.',356,109 12,636,225 
ALLEGHENY LUDLUM CORP 100,000 2,074,958 1,975,000 
ALLEGHENY PWRSYSINC 150,000 3,227,137 3,525,000 
ALUEDS!GNALINC 611,000 20.843,638 27,189,500 
ALLSTATE CORP 100,000 2.895.600 2,962,500 
ALLTELCORP 150,000 4,279,204 3,806,250 
ALUMLNUM CO AMER 450,000 lt>,193,954 22.556,250 
AMERADA HESS CORP 425,000 21,033,063 20,771 ,875 
AMERJCAN BRANDS fNC 125.000 4,345,414 4,968,750 
AMERICAN ELEC PWR INC 275,000 9,818,823 9,659,375 
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 443,000 14,718,036 15,615,750 
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 150,000 5,512.500 7.275.000 
AMERICA."J FED BK FSB GREENVILLE 50,000 43i.500 687,500 
AMERICAN GEN CORP 414,000 12,458,892 13.9n,soo 
AMERICA. "i HOME PRODS CORP 100.000 7,501,278 7,737,500 
AMERICAN TNTI GROUP TNC 225.000 22,128,779 25,650,000 
AMERICAN MGM'I SYS INC 150,000 2,725,404 3,768,750 
AME RICAN ONCOLOGY RESOURCES 15,000 315,000 416,250 
AMERICAN STORES CO NEW 59,000 1,591,569 1.659,375 
AMERITECH CORP NEW 1,080,000 38..316.n6 47.520,000 
AMGEN INC 522,000 25,944,635 41,988,636 
AMOCO CORP 650,000 33.751 .496 43,306,250 
A>\!fPHEi'JOL CORP C L A 116.000 2.-127,421 3.378..500 
AMR CORP DEL 65,000 3,889,675 U50,625 
ANDREW CORP 50,000 1,457,730 2.893,750 
A.'-'HEUSER BUSCH COS Tt\C 150,000 7,t53,140 8531.250 
APACHE CORP 100,000 2,882,951 2,737,500 
APPLE COMPUTER INC 100,000 3,302,891 4.643,800 
APPLIEDMATLSINC 96,000 4,919,063 8,316,000 
ARCHER DANIELS MIDLAND CO 1, 123,750 19,410.102 20,929,844 
ARMST RONG WORLD INDS INC 60,000 2,770,289 3,007,500 
ASHLAND INC 306,000 10,370,110 10,748,250 
ASHLANDINCPFDCONV 65,UOO 3,959,306 3.745.625 
AT&TCORP 715,000 33.960,719 37,895,000 
ATLANTIC RJCHFJELDCO 440,000 43.136,238 48,290,000 
A TI.ANTIC RICHFIELD CO NTS 175,000 -l,3-lS,250 4,5'50,000 
A TI.ANTIC SOUTH EAST A!RLS lNC 130,000 2,819.085 3,916,250 
A1MELCORP 178,000 5,793,870 9,856,750 
AUTOMATIC DATAPROCESSif\:G INC 211.000 5,770,851 13.266,025 
A VERY DENN!SON CORP 125.000 4.646.415 5.000.000 
BALL CORP 85,500 2,663,042 2.981.813 
BANK NEW YORK INC 235,000 7,811.780 9.488,1~5 

BAN K OF BOSTON COHP 252,000 6.815,7.55 9 450,000 
BANK.AMERICA CORP 535.000 25,849,574 28,154.375 
BARNES & ."JOBLE INC 125.000 3,644,662 4,250,000 
BAXTER !NTL 11\:C 195,000 6 ,603,873 7,093,125 
BAY NETWORKS li':C 250,000 5.713,791 l 0,3-13.750 
BAYBANKSINC 60.000 3,431,76:! 4,755,000 
BECTON DICKl.\:SO. & (Q 85,000 4,362,lb6 4,951.250 
BELL & HOWELL Hl DGS CO 100.000 1,550,000 :to~S.CJOll 

BELL ATLANTI( CORP 557,000 29,550,280 31, }C:J'.!.000 

(Co11 tin ued) 
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BELLSOUTH CORP 470,000 $ 26,934,828 $ 29,845,000 
BELO A H CORP SER A 164,000 4,852,499 5,022,500 
BERKSHIREIIATHAWAYINC 180 2.,477,300 4,221,000 
BIG B lNC 75,000 1,050.000 1.059,375 
BIOGEN INC 50,000 2,322,500 2,225,000 
BIOMET INC 275.000 3,002,950 4,262.500 
BLACK & DECKER CORP 280,000 7,290,951 8.645.000 
BMC SOFTWARE INC 100,000 6,110,000 7,725,000 
BOEING CO 440,000 18,558,637 r ,555,ooo 
BOISE CASCADE CORP l()(),000 2,992,586 4,050,000 
BOSTON SCIENTIF1C CORP 50,000 1,623,925 1,593,750 
BOWATER INC 50,000 1,990,285 2.243,750 
BRIGGS & STRA TION CORP 58,bOO 2,015,726 2,021,700 
BRISTOL MYERSSQVlBB 595,000 35.022,585 40,534,375 
BROOKLYN UN GAS CO 50,000 1,292.029 1,312,500 
BROWNING FERRlS INDS fNC 655,000 19,500,370 23,580,000 
BRUNSWICK CORP 65,000 1,272,245 1.105,000 
BURLINGTON NORTHN INC 100,000 5,984.995 6,337.SOO 
CABOT CORP 90,000 2,764,302 4.747,500 
CADENCE DESIGN SYS INC 63,000 2,064.459 2,039,625 
CAIRN ENERGY USA INC 100,000 l,013,750 l,100,000 
CAMPBELLSOUPCO 298,000 13,395,632 14,602.000 
CAPITAL CTDES ABC INC 419,000 25,857,143 45.252.000 
CAROLINA PWR & LT CO 100,000 2,904,97Q 3,025,000 
CASE CORP 125,000 3,225.432 3,718,750 
CASE CORP PFD CONV 35,000 2,148,854 2,148,854 
CATERPILLAR INC 352,000 13,616,355 22,616.000 
CBSTNC 50,000 3,123,305 3.350,000 
CENTRAL&SOUTH WESTCORP 300,000 7,552,540 7,875,000 
CENTURY TEL ENTERPRISES INC 300,000 9,410,790 8,512,500 
CERIDIAN CORP 35,000 1,750,000 2,922,500 
CHAMP JON lNTL CORP 185,000 6,789,442 9.643,125 
CHASE MANHATTAN CORP 100,000 4,175,.139 4,700,000 
CHEMICAL BKG CORP 478,000 18,026,738 22.585,500 
CHERRY CORP 110,000 1,420,897 1,457.500 
CHESAPEAKE CORP 100.000 3,336,023 3,112,500 
Cl IEVRONCORI' 425,000 17,029..382 19.709,375 
CH1QUIT A BRANDS lNTL INC 200,000 2,989.524 2,800,000 
CHRYSLER CORP 35,000 2,485.463 '1,655,000 
CHUBB CORP 55,000 4,522.44fi 4,406,875 
CIDCOINC 110.000 2,255.816 3.451,250 
CIGNA CORP 40,000 3,002,240 3,105,000 
CIPSCOINC 60,000 1,664,799 1,792,500 
CIRCLE K CORP 100,000 1,586,625 1,687,500 
CIRCUIT CJTY STORES ~C 83,000 2,148,972 2,624.875 
CISCO SYSJNC 280,000 10,971.961 14,157.640 
cmcoRP 645,000 26.558.204 37.329.375 
CLEVELAND CUFFS INC 100,000 3,989,794 3.850,000 
CMS ENERGY CORP 191,500 4,298,362 4,6~1.750 
COCA COLA CO 1.085,000 50,937,594 69.168,7'>0 
COLCATEPALMOLNECO 195,000 13,178,409 14,259,375 
COLUMBIA/HCAHEALTHCARECORP 295,000 10.126.288 12,758,750 
lOMCASTCORP 15,000 425.875 454,700 
COMCAST CORP 100,000 1,545,630 1,856.300 
COMPAQ COMPUTER CORP 135,000 -t331,410 6.108 750 
COMPUTERSCrENCESCORP 217,000 7,133.260 12,341,875 
CO!\JAGRA lNC 33'>,000 I0,241,558 11,683,125 
CONCENTRA CORP 120,000 1.401,6011 1,170,000 
CONRAIL INC 70,000 3,830,010 3,893,750 
CONSOLI DA TED FREJGHD.V A YS INC 150,000 3,857,344 3,300,000 

(Con tmued) 

Treasurer's Report 61 



T C R S Portfo lio 

Domestic Stoc k Portfolio 

Shares Book Value Market Va lue 

COOPER TIRE & RUBR CO 250,000 s 6,741.400 $ 6,093,750 
CORDIS CORP 75,000 4,442,470 5,006.ZSO 
CO REST A TES FL--:L CORP iS,000 2,349,655 2,596,875 
CORNING INC 270,000 8,358,113 8,842,500 
ere INTLTNC 175.000 9,066,553 10,806.250 
CRACKERBARRELOLDCTRYSTORE 150,000 J,567,815 3,093,750 
CROMPTON & KNOWLES CORP 220,000 3.555,849 3,107,500 
CROWN CORK & SEAL lNC 65,000 2,368,800 3,258,125 
CSX CORP 110,000 8,317,417 8,263,750 
CYPRESSSEfl.UCONDUCTOR CORP 75,000 2,256,75] 3,037,500 
CYPRUS AMAX MINERALS CO 145,000 4.039,014 4,132,500 
CYPRUS AMAX MINERALS CO f'FD 100,000 6,010,624 6,075,000 
DANA CORP 60,000 1,321,152 1,717,500 
DEAN WJlTER DlSCOVER & CO 106,000 4.271,221 4,91:!2,000 
DEERE&CO 131,000 10.4:12,753 11,216,875 
DELL COMPUTFR CORP 75,000 3,997,499 4,509,375 
DELTA Al:R LlNES INC 75,000 3,838,804 5,531,250 
DIAMONDSHA.MROCK INC 310,500 6,303.515 7,995,3i5 
DIGITAL EQUIP CORP 100,000 4,678,200 4.075.000 
DTSNEY WALT CO 405,000 21,367,024 22.477,500 
DOMINlON RES L'\IC VA 125,000 5.512.293 4,562,500 
DONNELLEY R R & SONS CO 225,000 7,047,772 8.100,000 
DOVER CORP 30,000 l,9'12,002 2,182,500 
DOW CHEM CO 300.000 JQ,836.433 21,562,500 
DQENC 60,000 l,194,12(1 1,410 000 
DRESSER INDS I:\!( 200,000 4,.125,218 4.450,000 
DSC COMMU!'\IC A TIO:--:S CORP 115,000 3,836,801 5,347,500 
DU PONTE I DE NEMOt.:RS & CO 460,000 25.991.821 31,625,000 
DUKEPWRCO 180.000 7,344,196 7,470,000 
EASTMA"I CHE~t CO 140,000 7.856,536 8,330,000 
EASTMAN KODAK CO 200.000 12,027,092 12,125,000 
EATON CORP 175,000 8,f,72.325 10,171,875 
ECHLrNfNC 39,000 1,195,385 1,355,250 
ECKERD CORP DEL 230,000 6,317.013 7,360,000 
EDWARDSAGINC 325,000 6,736,405 7,312,500 
ELECTROSCIBN nFIC INDS 11\iC 160,000 3,020,562 5,320,000 
EMC CORP tvtASS 75,000 1,650,292 1,818,750 
EMERSON r:LEC CO 388,000 16,033,557 27,742,000 
FNRONCORP 130,000 4,603,535 4,566,250 
ENRON OIL & GAS CO 175,000 3,686,540 3,80n,25<l 
EQKREALTY 1,250,000 5,781,250 2,031,250 
EQUlFAXfNC 226.000 6,098,219 7,514,500 
EXXON CORP 840,000 54,420.268 59,325,000 
FEDERAL EXPRFSSCORP 50.000 3,528,150 .'3,037,500 
FEDERAL HOMELN MTG CORP 100,000 4.119.862 6,875,000 
FEDERAL NA l"LM IG ASSN 95,000 8,734,095 8,977,500 
FEDE RA TED DEPT STORES INC 250,000 5,334,912 6,437,5(){1 
FHP fl'.'TL CORP PFD COf\.V' 140,000 3,299,326 3,325,000 
FIRST BK SYS INC 60,000 2,02ti.210 2A60.000 
FIRST CHICAGO CORP 70,000 3,596,950 4,060,000 
FIRST DAT A CORP 61,3011 3,058.580 3,486,438 
FIRSTINTSTBANCORP H2,000 11,039.424 11,395,500 
FH<ST PALM BEACH BANCORPl~C 100,000 1,541,135 2,237,500 
FLEI:. TWOOD EN rERPRlSE.<;JNC 55.000 1,259,045 1,086,250 
FLt:ORt.ORP 140.000 7,234,653 7,280.000 
FMC CORP 75.000 4.495,725 5,043,750 
FORDJ\tTR CO DCL 579,000 14,274,54:! 17.225.250 
FORD MTR LO 50.000 3,821!.638 4,856,250 
FOSTIR WHEELER CORP 50.000 l 319,802 1,76:!.500 
FPL GROUP l'\IC 635.000 22,485.777 24,526,875 

FREFPORTMC\IORAN INC 202,000 3,6l9.46J 3.560,250 
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FREEPORT·MCMORANCOPPER&GOLD 412 ID 8,62-6 $ M98 
FREEPORT-MCMORAN COPPER & GOLD 110,000 2,716,814 2,378,750 
FRIED MANS INC 100.000 1,900,000 1,900,000 
FRUIT OF THE LOOM INC 113.000 2.962.312 2,387,125 
GANNETI!NC 170,000 8,848,722 9,222,500 
GENERAL ELEC CO 755,000 30,512.091 42,563,125 
GENERAL MLS INC 260,000 12,736,239 13,357,500 
GENERALMTRSCORP 600,000 26,842,648 28.125,000 
GENERAL MTRS CORP 384,000 15,039,702 16,704,000 
GENERAL MTRS CORP 110,000 4.199,402 4,345,000 
GENERAL MTRS CORP 90,000 5,165,894 5,670,000 
GENERALPUBUTILSCORP 275,000 7,457,082 8,181,250 
GENERAL SIGN AL CORP 75,000 2,733,981 2,981,250 
GENESCO INC 350,000 1,793,159 1,093,750 
GENUINE PARTS CO 175,000 6,471,015 6,628,125 
GEN2YMECORP 200,000 7,077,829 8,000,000 
GEORGrAPACCORP 140,000 10,439,794 12,110,000 
CIANTFOODlNC 100,000 2,664,745 2,837,500 
GILLETIECO 752,000 20,249,457 33,464,000 
GOLDEN WEST FINL CORP 125,00() 5,453.271 5,890,625 
GOODRICH B F CO 50,000 2,230,075 2.681,250 
GOODYEAR TIRE & RCBR CO 301,000 11.439,441 12,378,625 
GRACEWR&CO 100,000 5,420,871 6,137,500 
GREAT FINL CORP 330,000 4,796,220 6,270,000 
GREAT WESTN FINL CORP 100.000 2,038,800 2.,062,500 
GREEN TREE FIN AN CIA L CORP 44.200 1,332,3'.'5 1,961,375 
GREENBRlERCOSINC 30,000 421,312 393,750 
GTE CORP 890,000 28,778,434 30,371,250 
HALLIBURTON CO 550,000 18,336,181 19,662,500 
HARLEY DA VlDSON NC 40,000 1.053,465 970,000 
HARMONIC LIGHTW AVES INC 50,000 675,000 837,500 
HARNISCHFEGER INDS INC 175,000 4,976,360 6,059,375 
HEAL TH MGMT ASSOC lNC 180,000 3,037,353 5,265,000 
HEINZHJCO 250,000 9.410,195 11 .093,750 
HERCULES INC 66,000 2,32J ,377 3,217,500 
HERlTAGE MEDlA CORP 150,000 3,819,663 4,331,250 
HEWLE'JTPACKARDCO 360.000 18.707,038 26,820,000 
HIBERNIA CORP 100,000 823,250 887,500 
HTL TON HOTELS CORP 100,000 7,144,665 7,025,000 
HOME DEPOT INC 360,000 15,581,745 14,670,000 
HOMESTAKE MNG CO 100,000 1,713,292 l.637,500 
HORACE MANN EDUCATORS CORP 70.000 1,587,407 1,610,000 
HOUSEHOLD INTL INC 93,000 3,989,019 4,603.500 
HUMANA INC 500,000 8,731,940 8,875,000 
IBP INC 32.5,000 7,975,974 14,137,500 
LLLINOISCENTCORP 50,000 1,669,451 1,725,000 
fLLINOIS TOOL WKS INC 68,000 3,263,509 3,740,000 
ILLINOV A CORP 200,000 4,091 ,029 5.075,000 
rMC GLOBAL INC 113,000 5,527.869 6,116,125 
!NFIN[TYBROADCASTINGCORP 382.,500 7.732,596 12.765,938 
fNFORMIXCORP 200,000 2,592.,914 5.075,000 
INLANDSTL INDSINC 150.000 5,574.222 4,575,000 
INTEL CORP 260,000 11,954,491 T6,46J,380 
1.i'JTERNA TION ALP APER CO 151,000 11,012,356 12,948,250 
!NTERNATIONALRECTIFfERCORP 140,000 3,245,951> 4.5.50,000 
INTERSTATE BAKERIES CORP 120.000 l ,754,225 1,980,000 
!NTL BUSINESS MACHS CORP 685,000 40.568.486 65,760,000 
Ii'JTL FLAVORS & FRAG RA.l\JCES INC 247 .000 10,662,509 12,288,250 
ITrCORP 100,000 8,362,042 1 J ,750.000 
JOHNSON & fOHNc;()N 530,000 27,923,300 35.775,000 
JOHNSO,...; ens INC 46,000 2,.356.616 2.599,000 
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JP FOODSERVICE INC 160,000 $ 1.781,250 $ 2,240,000 

KANSASClTY PWR &LTCO 225,000 5,443,443 5,146.875 
KATZ MEDIA GROUP INC 120,000 1,921,526 1,905,000 
KE:-.INAMETALINC 150,000 4,072,706 5,175,00{) 
KlMBERLYCLARKCORP 50,000 2,591 ,125 2,993,750 
KLA INSTRS CORP 50,000 3,851,999 3.862,500 

KROGER CO 335,000 8,249,0.51 9,003,125 

KU ENERGY CORP 150,000 4,007,935 4, 181,250 

LAM REST I CORP 20,000 769,563 1.280,000 
LCl INTERNATIONAL INC 225,000 6,352,153 6,890,625 
LC! INTL INC PFD 100,000 2.530,000 4,143,750 
LEHMAN BROTI-TERS HLDGS fNC 100,000 1,904,103 2.187,500 
LIFE BANCORP INC 200,000 2,666,280 2,800,000 
LILLY EU&CO 130,000 9.1I1,816 10,205,000 
LIMITED INC 200,000 4,061.060 4.400,000 
LIN BROADCASTING CORP 35,000 4,257,309 4,427,500 
LINCOLN NA TL CORP IND 147,000 6,193,669 6,431,250 
LINEAR TECHNOLOGY CORP 25,000 1,209,059 1,650.000 
LITTON INDS INC 169,000 6,097,000 6,231.875 
LOCKlfEED MARTIN CORP 332,000 16,025,503 20,957.500 
LOCTITE CORP 100,000 4,534,003 4,550,000 
LORAL CORP 168,000 7,524,717 8,694,000 
LOWES COS lNC 159,000 3,017.898 4,750,125 
l YO NOELL PETROCHEMJCAL CO 35,000 1,014,850 896,875 
MALLINCKRODT GROUP INC 100,000 3,592,387 3,550,000 
MANOR CARE INC 125,000 3,593,566 3,640,625 
MARION MERRELL DOW INC 300,000 7,262,050 7,650,000 
MARK rv INDS INC 88,200 1,682,7Jl 1,907,325 
MASCO CORP 240,000 6,346,788 6,480,000 
MATIELINC 120,000 2,638,496 3,150.000 
MAY DEPT STORES CO 145,000 5,641,56!> 6,0.35,625 
MDNACORP 41,000 1.095.540 1,383,750 
MCDERMOTIINTL INC 200,000 4,736,530 4.825.000 
MCDONALDS CORP 680,000 17,108,225 26,605,000 
MCI COMMUN KA TIO NS CORP 550,000 10,869,385 12,100,000 
MCNCORP 126AOO 2,379.429 2,4%.400 
MEAD CORP 50,000 2,296,648 2,968,750 
MEDlA GEN INC 150,000 4,451.151 4,687.500 
MEDTRONIC INC 128,000 6,954,403 9,872,000 
MELVfLLECORP 125,000 4,632,667 4.281.250 
MERCANTlLE BANCO RPO RA Tl ON INC 59,000 1,836,547 2,647,625 
MERCANTILE STORES INC 113,000 4,996,465 5,254.500 
MERCK &COTNC 605,000 22,809,846 29,720,625 
MERIDIAN SPORTS Jl\JC 280.000 3,080,000 2,765,000 
MERRTI.L LYNCH &COJNC 150,000 6,900,226 7,875,000 

MF5 COMMUNlCA Tl01'\S INC PFD 125.000 4.187,500 4,312,500 

MICRON TECHNOLOGY INC 330,000 3,681,120 18,150,000 
MICROSOFT CORP 222,000 14,616,615 20,063,250 

MlDLANTICCORP i 4,000 2,021,015 2,960,000 
MIL LEK INDS INC TENN 110,000 1,229,385 J,883,750 

MTNNESOTA ~l~G & MFG CO 175,000 9,864,627 10,040,625 

MIRAGE RESORTS INC 170,000 4.495187 5,20b,250 

MISSISSIPPl CHEM CORP 140,000 2,259.250 2,791 .320 

MOBIL CORP o00,000 37,109,263 57,600,000 

MOaILE TElECOMMUNICA TIONTELG 200,000 10,000,000 7,450,000 

MOL TEN MET AL TECHNOLOGY lNC 110,000 2,044,193 2,557,500 

MONSA!'.TOCO 136,000 9,952,303 12.257,000 

MORGAN JP & CO lf\iC 48,000 3,203,268 3,366,000 

MORGANSTANLl::.YGROCP!NL 88,DOO 5,928,219 7,216,000 

MORTON INTL !:-JC IND 250,000 6,981,370 7,312.SOO 

MOTOROLA lNC 350,000 I 9,428,410 23,493,750 
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MYLA. '\! LA BS INC 200,000 $ 5,634,639 s 6,150,000 
NALCO CHEM CO 150.000 5,158,100 5,456,250 
NA TIONSBANKCORP 300.000 15,473,589 lf>,087,500 
!\JBD BANCORP INC 90,000 2.609.999 2,880,000 
i:\.'EW YORKSTELEC &GASCORP 400,000 8,322.210 9,350,000 
NEWELL CO 85,000 2,024, 120 2,071,8'"'5 
NEWMONTtvtNG 100.000 5.434,904 5,83:' ,500 
NEXGENlNC 10,000 150,000 236,250 
NlKElNC 300.000 18.722.370 25,200,000 
NlPSCO INDS INC 325,000 10,Sll6,315 11,050,000 
NORFOLKSOUTHN CORP 201,000 13,156,138 13,542,375 
NORTIIERN STS PWR CO MINN 117,000 5,353,060 5,396,625 
NOR WEST CORP 175,000 4,538,280 5,031,250 
NUCOR CORP 77,000 4,184,349 4.119.500 
NYNEX CORP 475,000 19,031,940 19,118,750 
OCCIDENT AL PETE CORP 945,000 20,804,585 21,616,875 
OCCIDENTALPETECORPPFD 100,000 5,064,712 5,787,500 
OKLAHOMA GAS & ELEC CO 80,000 2,700,135 2,810,000 
OMNlCOM GROUP 125,000 6,343,217 7,578,125 
ORACLE CORP 310,000 8,571,766 11,973,750 
ORTHODONTIC CTRS AMER INC 50,000 557,500 1,212.,500 
OWENS CORNING FIBERGLAS CORP 140,000 5,018,799 5,162,500 
OWENS ILL INC 80,000 929,953 1,040,000 
OXFORD HEALTH PLANS L'\IC 100,000 4.420,995 4,725,000 
PACIFIC ENTERPRlSES 270,000 6,595,778 6,615,000 
PACIFIC GAS & ELEC CO 650,000 17,102,819 18,8.50,00() 
PAClflC TELESlS CROUP 390.000 10,964,650 10,-B2,500 
PACIFICAREHEALTHSYSLNC 125,000 7,155,918 6,343,750 
PACTFTCORP 500,000 8,687,496 9,375,000 
PAGING NETWORK INC 175,000 5,326,690 5,993.750 
PANHANDLE EASTN CORP 255,000 5,690.952 6,215,625 
PARKER & PARSLEY !'!:.'TECO 225,000 4,378,128 4.415,625 
PARKER HANNIFIN CORP 93,000 2,796.525 3,371,250 
PENNEY J C INC 110,000 3,729,018 5,280,000 
PENNZOIL CO 75,000 3.623,170 3,5.34,375 
PEPSlCOlNC 710,000 29,781,795 32.305.000 
PETCO AN!MALSUPPUE.5 INC 100,000 2.074,276 2.325,000 
PFIZER INC 380,000 26.798,238 35,560,250 
PHELPS DODGE CORP 49,000 2,704.993 2.89l,000 
PHILIP MORRIS COS rNC 736,000 44,ll54,988 54,'740,000 
PHILLIPS PETE CO 420,000 11,945,353 14,017,500 
PINNACLE WEST CAP CORP 220,000 4,546,374 5,390,000 
Pl'm"TO:--JSERVlCESCROUP 33.000 795,013 792,000 
POLAROID CORP 175.000 5,918 675 7,131,250 
PORTLAND GEN CORP 200.000 3,822,583 4,475,000 
POSTPPTYSINC 130,000 3,699,096 3.932,500 
PPG INDS lNC 167,000 6,479,215 7,160,125 
PRAXAIR INC 100.000 2.239,330 2.487,500 
PREMARK lNTL lNC 65,000 2,946,508 3,371,875 
PRICECELLULARCORP 115,000 1,092,500 1,063.750 
PROCTER & CAMBLE CO 521,000 30 193,359 37,446,875 
PROGRESSSOFTW ARE CORP 90.000 ·l.834.552 -t,680.000 
PROM US COS l\IC 1-15,000 5,9:"6,928 5,655,000 
PROTECTIVE LIFE CORP 4.0,000 865,540 1.090,000 
PROVIDlANCORP 100.000 3.383,790 3,b2.5,000 
PST v A,'\;S INC IPO 100 000 1,546,675 631,300 
PliBLIC SVC CO COLO 275,000 ~.n4 838 8,937,500 
PUBLIC SVC CO N ME'< 325,000 4,0o9, 1 JO .J,631,250 
PUBLIC SVC EVT'ERPRISEGROUP 76.000 2,088,695 2,109,000 
PUGET SOUND PWH & LT CO 250,000 5,053,647 5.718.750 
PXRECORI' 160,000 4,17-1,509 3,760.000 
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QUAKEROA1SCO 125.000 $ 4,306,245 $ 4,078,125 
QUAKER ST CORP 300,000 4,407,845 4.500,000 
RALCORP H lDCSJNC 100.000 2,164,563 2,287,500 
RALSTON PURINA CO-RALSTON 100,000 3,694,633 5, 100,000 
RAYTHEO:-.;co 100,000 6.563,586 7,762 .500 
Rl:ADERS DIGEST ASS'.\i INC 215.000 9,938,i60 9,486,875 
REEBOK ll\.l"fl LTD 57000 2.120.797 1,938,000 
REGIONS FLNLCORP 125.000 4,584,34-0 4,640,625 
REYNOLDS \ll ET A LS CO PFD 75,000 3,543,750 3,618,750 
RHONEPOULENCRORER 110.000 4,559,470 4,496,250 
RITE AID CORP 80,000 1,991,311 2,050,000 
RJR NABISCO HLDGS CORP 60,000 1.722,500 1,665,000 
RJR NABISCO HLDGS CORP 700,000 4.542,690 4,200.000 
ROCKWELL INTI.CORP 250,000 10,182,640 11 .437,500 
RUBBERMAID INC 150,000 4,542,303 4.162,500 
SAFEWAY INC 90,000 2,718,552 3.363,750 
SARA LEE CORP 440,000 11,670,676 12,540.000 
SBC COMMUNlCA TIONS INC 935,000 33,173,240 44,529,375 
SCECORP 435,000 6.811,013 7,449,375 
SCHERING PLOUGH CORP 420.000 14,358,563 18.532,500 
SCIENTIFIC ATLANTA INC 250,000 5,433,132 5,500,000 
SCIENTIFICGAMf.SHLDGSCORP 140,000 1,838,750 3,885,000 
SCOTIPAPERCO 100,000 2.593,483 4,950,000 
SCRIPPS E W CO 42.000 1,275,131 1,354,500 
SEA GA TE TECHNOLOGY 125,000 3,627,186 4.937,500 
SEAL FD AIR CORP 11-1.000 3,937,430 5,016,000 
SEARS ROFBUCK&CO 350,000 18,558,092 20.825,000 
SERVICE CORP INTL 125,000 3,538,801 3,953,125 
SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 210,000 6,625.054 7,481,250 
STLICON GRAPHICS INC 121,000 3,836,516 4,824,875 
SMITHNnrNC 265,000 4,118.320 4,438,750 
SONIC CORP 150,000 3,147,135 4,125,000 
SOUTHERi'\J CO 740,000 15.280,394 16,557,500 
SOUlHER.l\J NA TI CORP NC 142,500 2.880,509 3,420,000 
SOVERE1GN BANCORP INC PFD CONV 50,000 2.507,438 2,693.750 
SOVRAl\;SELFSTORAGE lNC 40.000 920,000 920,000 
SPRINT CORP 420,000 13,903,185 1 '1.122,500 
SPRINT CORP DECS 70,000 2,238,905 2.432.500 
ST f UDE MED INC 350,000 11,952,520 17,543,750 
ST P.'\UL COS !'.\IC 46,000 1,948,473 2.265,500 
STORAGE USA £NC 100.000 2,175,000 2,837.500 
STRYKER CORP 225.000 8,587.994 8,634,375 
SUNlNC 175,000 5,169,817 4,790,625 
SUN MICROSYSTEMS TNC 222,000 6,562,489 10,767,000 
SUNBEAM CORP 180,000 4,356,930 2,542,500 
SUNGARD DATA5)5 INC 50,000 2,540,706 2,612,500 
SUNGLASS HUT IN 1 l I:\( 120,000 2,397.674 4,200.000 
SUNTRUSf BKS NC 186,000 9,074,743 10,834,500 
SUPERIOR INDS l~ INC 100,000 3,067,784 3,125,000 
SURG!CALCAREAFF!LlATESINC 460,000 8,900,310 8,797,500 
SY:-JOPSYS INC 150,000 7,227,800 9,393,750 
SYSCO CORP 280,000 6,927,890 8,260,000 
TAMBRANDS INC 125,000 5,021.lSb 5,343,750 
TANDY CORP 175,000 8,055,444 9,078,125 
TECQEr--.;ERGY INC 100,000 2,130.375 2.200,000 
fELECOMMUNlCATIONSl'IJC 350.000 8.187.396 8.203.300 
TILLABSINC 70.000 1.561,014 3,368,750 
TENETHEAL THC ARE CORP 3().1,500 4,757,813 4,377,188 
TEN'1ECO li'\C 70.000 3,071 563 3,220.000 

TEXACO INC 248.000 16,200,7-12 16,275,000 
TIX AS JNSTRS INC 53.000 3,958.4116 7,095,J75 
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THE TRAVELERS GROUP INC 370,000 $ 15,063,261 $ 16,187,500 
'11-IE TRA VELERSGROUP INC 75,000 4,070,745 4,715,625 
THERMO ELECTRON CORP 237,500 8,067.929 9,559,375 
TIME WARNER INC 200,000 6,599,362 8,250,000 
TIMES MIRROR CO PFD 50,000 995,781 l,193,750 
TORCHMARK CORP 100.000 4,014,190 3,175,000 
TOSCO CORP 300,000 l0,806.452 11,475.000 
TOYSR US INC 210,000 6.148,382 6,142,500 
TIUBUJ\ECO 80,000 4,707,966 4,910,000 
TRINITY 11'.'DS INC 100,000 3,923,983 3.325,000 
TRW INC 68,000 4.495,554 5,431.500 
TYCO INTL LTD 150,000 8,039,595 8,100,000 
US HEALTHCARE INC 95.000 3.858,882 2,909,375 
USWESTCOMMUNICATIONSGROUP 175,000 6.916,940 7,284,375 
UAL CORP 25,000 2,962,838 3,509,375 
UNICOM CORP 190,000 4,899,485 5,058,750 
UNION PLANTER CORP PFD 100.000 2,581,250 3,487,500 
UNION TEX PETE HLDGS INC 90,000 1,801,702 1.901,250 
UNITED HEALTHCARE CORP 75,000 3,788,305 3,103,125 
UNITED STA TESSURGICALCORP 250,000 5,733,621 5,187,500 
UNITEDTECHNOLOGIESCORP 155,000 ll,578,650 J2,J09.375 
UNOCAL CORP 250,000 4,492.881 6,906,250 
UNOCALCORPPFDCONV 50,000 2,536,875 2,675,000 
USG CORP COM 100,000 2.303,710 2,375,000 
USX-MARA THONG ROUP 550,000 9,516,998 10,862,500 
YFCORP 45,000 2,319,450 2.418,750 
VANGUARD CELLULAR SYS lNC 75,000 1,943,595 1.800,000 
VARIAN ASSOC INC 80,000 2,232,051 4,480,000 
V AR!TY CORP NEW 50,000 2,089,250 2.200,000 
VIACOM INC 350,000 14.262,225 16,275,000 
VIACOM INC 168,065 6,510,475 7.794 .014 
VIVRAINC 140,000 3,786,828 3.797.SOO 
WABANINC 90.000 1,659,563 1,338,750 
WALMARTSTORES INC 1,550,000 37,946,152 41,462.500 
WALGREEN CO 579,000 15,536,146 29,022,375 
WARNER LAMBERT CO 250,000 18,204,686 21,593.750 
WELLS FARGO & CO 46,000 6,316.657 8,291.500 
WEN DYS INTL INC 150,000 2.424,180 2,681,250 
WESTINGHOUSE ELECCORP 575.000 8,182,590 R,409,375 
WESTINGHOUSE ELEC CORP PFD 300,000 4,330,250 4,462,500 
WESTVACO CORP 102,000 3,973.754 4,513,500 
WEYERHAEUSER CO 335,000 15.169,645 15,786,875 
WHIRLPOOL CORP 195,000 I0,752.135 10,725,000 
WHITh1AN CORP 250,000 4,133,850 4,843,750 
WfLLAMETIE INDS INC 25,000 1,284,375 1,387,500 
WILLIAMS COS INC 100,000 3,214,871 J,487,500 
WINN DlXIE STORES INC 85,000 4,172,326 4.876,875 
WlSCONSIN ENERGY CORP 100,000 2,829,400 2.800,000 
WMX TECHNOLOGIES INC 360,000 9,893,860 10,215,000 
WOOLWORTH CORP 150,000 2,493,177 2,268,750 
WORLDCOM INC 201,000 4,855,342 5,427,000 
WORTHINGTON INDS INC 100.000 2,243,800 2.043,800 
WPL HLDGS INC 120,000 3,564,234 3,435.000 
XEROXCORP 35,000 3,771,564 4,103,750 
XTI.fNXTNC 25,000 2.062.652 2,350,000 
TOTAL DOMF.STICSTOCK PORTFOUO s 3,508.605,826 $ 4, l65,908,786 
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TCRS Portfolio 

International Stock Portfolio 

Shares Book Value Market Value 

ABBE'r :'liA TIONAL 303,000 s 2,051,943 $ ~.255A64 
ABN AMRO HOLDlNGS 48.000 1,700.J-}8 1.852,469 
AHOLD(KON) 112.000 3.550,146 4,011 ,61/ 
AlR UQUIOE fL ) 38,000 4,904,514 6,070,bOO 
AKITA BANK 546.000 4,099,979 4,670,521 
Al CAN ALUM LTD 175,000 4,667,875 5,315.625 
ALLIED COLLOIDS 1 070,000 2,539,198 2.127,361 
AMCORLrMITED 853,90\J 3,065,225 6,299,720 
ANGLIANWATER 445,000 3,716,322 3.546,052 
ARGYLL GRoL·r 640,000 3,015,586 3,420,319 
ASAHI BANK 410,000 4,893,866 4,377,913 
ASDA GROUP PLC 2,885,000 2,977,680 4.359,300 
ASSOC LA TED BRITISHfOODS 320,000 3,057,951 3,379.601 
BAT. INDUSTRIES 790,000 5,545,066 6,043,931 
BA LOISE-! fLDGS WTS 1,500 0 14.32.9 
BANDAJCO 63,000 2.467,962 1,888,030 
BANK OF TOKYO 341,000 5,853,872 5,471,772 
BANQUENATIONALEDEPAR5 78.250 3,829,146 3,774,388 
BARCLAYS 605,000 5,079,186 6,500,220 
BARRICK GOLD CORP 95,000 2,332,665 2,398,750 
BAYER AC 13,000 3,034,557 3,233,901 
BA YER VEREINSBANK 344,000 219.388 286,325 
BBC AG BROWN BOVERl &CIE 3,300 1,986,208 3,.U6,066 
BCETNC 157,000 5.635,964 5,043,625 
BRIDGESTONE CO 309,000 3,810,545 4,557.253 
BRmSHGAS 1,020,000 5,472,489 4,696,735 
BRIT15H PETE PLC ADR 90,000 7.051.755 7,706.250 
BRITTSH PETROLEt.:"1 CO 840,000 5,052,113 6,018,95q 
BRJ115HSTEEL 2,660,000 6,141,610 7,261.392 
BR.ITISl ITF.LEC0Mi\1t.:NICA TIONS 800,000 4,938,822 4.987,965 
BROKEN I lfLL PROP 332,200 3,818,154 4,089,445 
BlR 580,000 3,073,300 2,947,4-16 
CAllJA DIAN OCCJDE!'. "T AL PETE LTD 43,000 1,014 235 1,338,375 
CANO~INC 290.000 5,073,279 4,721.845 
CARL 101\i COMMUNTCA TIONS 230,000 3.040.921 3,486,327 
CARREFOUR 12,500 5,110,907 6,402,989 
Cl !RISTIAN DIOR 48,000 4,073,169 4,2:?.b.869 
CIDA-CE.JCY AC 5,700 3,510,839 4,177,855 
COCA COLA AMA m 1,012,500 3,452,497 6.260.819 
COCA·COLA AMATIL UMJTED 253.125 0 273,401 
COLES MYER LTD 445,000 1,476,125 1,394.811 
COMMERZBANK AG 20,500 4,92.3,595 4.903.930 
COMP AG:-.JrE DE ST-COBAlN 15,000 2.021,050 1,811,904 
COMPAC~:-.llEUAP·CAP 110,000 4,070,69~ 2.884,205 
COMPASS GROUP 490,000 2,610,679 2.8<11.461 
CREDIT LOCAL DEFRANCE 32,000 2.468,404 2,968,307 
CSK 127,000 4,605,080 2,936,936 
DAI !CHI KANGYO BANK 405,000 7,997,363 7,3 11,073 
DAl NIPPON PRJNTING CO 238,000 4,105,657 3,790,927 
DAL\ IA RU INC 650,000 5,133,646 3,297,741 
DAlMLER liENZ AG 7,700 4.054.178 3.535,814 
DATW A SECURrrrES CO 235,000 3,006.474 2.-178.792 
DAN01'. E (EX B~N I 18.000 3.015,220 3,027,673 
DDJCORP 552 4,527,626 4.-128,765 
DELA RuEPLC 400,000 6,074,241 5,955,011} 

ECCOSTE 41.225 3,075,.125 b,4116,833 
ECHO BAY MrNES LTD 200,000 2,119,850 t,800,000 
EVC !NTERNA TJONAL 82,800 3,658.041 J,858.12~ 

FUJlBANK 353.000 7,982.344 7,122,058 
FUTABACORP 63.000 2,569,717 2,854,345 

<Continued) 
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GEMERALELECTRrcco 
GKN 
GLAXO WELCOME PLC SPONSORED 
GLAXO WELLCOME 
HElNEKENNV 
HEMLO GOLD MlNES INC 
HIGO BANK 
HITACHI LTD 
HOKKAIDO ELE POWER CO INC 
HONDA MOTOR CO 
HOYA CORP 
rMPERlALCHEMTNDSPLC ADR 
IMPERIALOTL LTD 
INDUSTRIAL BK JA.P AN 
lSETANCO 
ITO-YOKADOCO 
ITOCHU CORP 
JAPAN ASSOCOCIATIDFINANCE CO 
JOHNSON MATTHEY 
KA WASAKlSTEEL CORP 
KAYABATNDUSTRYCO 
KlRINBEVERAGECORP 
KOBE STEEL 
KONJNKLIJKEP1TNEDERLAND 
KYOCERA CORP 
KYUSHU ELECTRIC POWER CO lNC 
L'OREAL 
LAIDLAW INC 
LEGRAND 
LLOYDS BANK 
LUFTHANSA 
MACMILLAN BLOEDEL LTD 
MAGNA INTL 
MANNESl\1.ANN AG 
METHANEX CORP 
MITSUBISHI BANK 
MITSUBlSHI ELECTRIC CORP 
MITSUBISHI ESTATE CO 
MITSUBISHI MOTOR CORP 
MITSUBISHI OIL CO 
MITSUBISHI TRUST & BANKING 
MITSUI&CO 
MITSUI FUDOSAN CO 
MITSUI TRUST & BANKING 
N.G.K. SPARK PLUG CO 
:\IA DONAL POWER 
NATIONAL WESTMINSTER BANK 
NEC CORP 
NESTI..ESA 
NEWBRlDGE NETWORKSCORP 
NEWS CORP LTD ADR 
NEXT 
NlPPON COM SYS CORP 
NIPPON DENSO 
NIPPON ELECTRIC GLASS 
NIPPON PAPER INDS 
NIPPON SHEET GLASS CO 
NIPPON TEL & TEt CORP 
NIPPON TELEVISION NETWORK CORP 
NISSAN MOTOR CO 

Shares 

415,000 
400,000 
150,000 
163,560 
38,750 

130,000 
356,000 
559,000 
90,000 

348,000 
250,000 

70,000 
200,000 
152,000 
140,000 
44,000 

965,000 
50,000 

670,000 
650,000 
660,000 
385,000 

1,565,000 
100,000 
70,000 
85,000 
15,000 

180,000 
17,250 

253,000 
50,000 
70,000 
30,000 
22,000 

1,200,000 
100,000 

1,277,000 
418,000 
880,000 
287,000 
435,000 
408,000 
545,000 
264,000 
390,000 
835,500 
465,000 
230,000 

5.400 
125,000 
125,000 

1,585,000 
31.200 

225,000 
165,000 
450.000 
873.000 

785 
16,000 

655,000 

TCRSPortfolio 
International Stock Portfolio 

Book Value 

$ 2.040,006 
4,087,159 
3,517,248 
1,806.602 
4,508,339 
1.231.335 
3,103,253 
3,816,774 
2,122,588 
4,874,21 l 
5,451,344 
3,435,975 
6,707,536 
4,944,757 
3,034,561 
2,414,449 
6,016,164 
6,197,774 
6,264,155 
2,559,446 
4,323,953 
4,953,272 
5,155,776 
2,707,336 
4,232,312 
2,166,514 
3,955,969 
1,441,000 
1,256,721 
2,560,887 
3,441 ,087 
1,057,500 

980,139 
3,945,641 

18,386,739 
2,451,672 
6,725,056 
5,066,799 
5,206,246 
3,043,416 
6,976,039 
3.507,343 
5,867,595 
3,048,858 
4.987.446 
2,921,825 
4,067,320 
2,408,306 
4,202.358 
4,644,386 
2.749,880 
5,928,679 

454,549 
4,560.076 
2,376,043 
3,038.654 
5,150,073 
6,249,859 
4,243.404 
5,251,724 

Market Value 

$ 2,026,440 
4,078,170 
3,656,250 
2,007,060 
5,864,392 
1,381 ,250 
3,486,284 
S,573,182 
2,421,096 
5,337,738 
7,374,196 
3,412,500 
7,425,000 
3,963,424 
1.899,593 
2,320,571 
5,635,951 
4,566,102 
6,116,937 
2,132,028 
3,239.455 
6,404,932 
3,729,927 
3,594,708 
5,764,852 
2296,620 
3,762,948 
1,710,000 
2,737,954 
2.511 ,033 
7,231,442 

988,750 
1,323,750 
6,721,626 

10,050,000 
2,159,165 
8.979,907 
4.709,929 
7,25;",625 
2.756,392 
6,158,929 
3,186,785 
6,243,820 
2,429,591 
4,325,409 
5,920,270 
4,038,247 
2,521,031 
5,622,753 
4.406,250 
2.,828, 125 
8,609,289 

379,163 
-1,088,254 
2.647,631 
2.920,182 
3,903,805 
6~576,0l 3 
3,605,687 
'1,188,661 

(Cantin ued J 
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T C RSPortfolio 
International Stock Portfolio 

Shares Book Value Market Value 

NlSSH lN STEEL CO 840,000 s 4,210,910 s 3,082.1.% 
"!OMURA SECURITIES CO 274,000 5,902,146 4,78-1,614 
NORTI-IERNTELECOMl TD 450,000 13,964,372 16,425,000 
OMRON CORP 204,000 4,014,034 3.899,239 
PHrurs CLECI RON JCS 159,000 2,873,581 6,731.462 
PIN AUL T-PRlNTEMT'S REDOUTE Hl,800 4,076,069 4,030.301 
PLACER DOMElNC 50,000 l ,282,075 1,306,250 
POLYCRAMNV 152,000 2,492.420 8,987,000 
POT ASH CORP SASK INC 86,000 3,J9b,554 4.805,250 
POWERCEN PLCSPONSORFDADR 187,500 2,622,823 5,882.812 
PREUSSACAG 21,000 4,763,850 6,271.830 
RANKORCANISATION 706,000 4,573,450 4,458,025 
RECKITI&COLMAN 210,000 2.039,009 2.214.523 
RENAULT(REGIENA TI ON ALE DES) 15,000 495,775 469,982 
RENCOCO 405,000 3,149,673 2,781,075 
REUTERS HLDGS 360,000 2,504.210 3,000,414 
RHONE POULENC RORER NPV CERTS 125,500 7,342,.339 5,117,011 
RICOH 575,000 5,059,189 4,938,942 
RMCGROUP 140,000 2,484.389 2,351,469 
ROCHE HLDG AG 1,035 6,027,307 6,b69,301 
ROlHMANSUT 730,000 1.967,318 7,187.218 
ROY AL DUTCH PETE CONY 350,000 41,58 1,824 42,656,250 
ROY AL DUTCH PETROLEUM CO 64,000 7,415,778 7,814,650 
SAlNSBURY(JJ 600,000 4,625,805 4,218,13'1 
SAKURABANK 293,000 3,996,320 3,059,466 
SANDOZ: AG 6,200 3,996,678 4,275.l 19 
SANKYO CO 2i5,000 5.559,323 6.391,953 
SANYO ELECTRIC CO 530,000 2.994,117 ~.607,634 
SCHLUMBERGER LTD 290,000 18,125,953 18,016,250 
SCHNElDER SA (EX Sl'F.P) 82,000 5,451,739 6,485,627 
SCHNE:. IOE:R SA CEX 5PEP) 8.000 76,065 43,947 
SCHWEIZ-RUCKVERSICHERUNCs-G 4,180 3,072.641 3,219,852 
SCHWELZERISCHER BANKSVEREIN 12,000 4.233,306 4,251,845 
SHELL TRANS&. TRDG 455,000 5,133,800 5,434,989 
STEBE 278,987 2,606,342 2,777,830 
SMITHKUNE BEECHAM PLC ADR 165.000 5,176,463 i,466,250 
SMITHK.LJNE BEECHAM PL<.. ADR 100,000 3,951,150 4,525,000 
SOCIETENATIOl\"ALEEIY 50,000 3,667,896 3,694,924 
SONY CORP 140,000 5,392.1 46 6,722,907 
SONY MUSIC ENT(JAP) 50,200 2,120,461 2, 126..341 
SfLOUIS 6.600 2,02~,.139 2.040,711 
STANDARD CHARTERED 1,080,000 5,093,715 5,788.966 
SUMITOMO BANK 376,000 7,079.22.3 6,521,385 
5UMITOMOCHE~fiCAL 1.000,000 4,518,131 3,917,173 
SUMITOMO CORP 500.000 4,109,238 4,554,304 
SU}. IITOMO MET AL INDUSTRIES 1.650,000 5,014,775 4.302,401 
SUMITOMORUBI1ER I~DUSI'RlES 51 4,540 5,006,965 3,824.673 
SUf\tlTOMO fRUST& BANK 410.000 6,093,948 4,982,590 
SUN ALLlANCEGROUP 1.000,000 S,130,079 5,328,342 
SUZUKI MOTOR CO 400,000 3,988.236 4.459,914 
TA8COR!'llLDGS ~UTED 000.000 1,218,l 27 1.240,970 
TDK CORP l 10.0ClO 5,154.985 5.009,734 
TESCO 1,300,000 5,032,075 5,996,374 
THE NEWSCOR.P 430,000 1,985,829 2,402,193 
lliORN-EMI 36(1.000 6,160 460 7,472,404 
TOKAIBANK 358,000 4,965,031 3,970.503 
TOKrO MAl{INE & FI RL lNS CO 415,000 5,009,920 4,759,365 

TOKUY A 'v1ACORP 695,000 4,304,668 3,403,044 
TOKYO ELECTRIC PWR CO 148,000 4.111.227 4,540,145 
TOKYO ELECTRON 140,000 3,947.-122 4.790,278 
TOKYO GAS 652.000 3,013,739 :?,569,382 

(Co11t111 11ed J 
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TCRS Portfolio 

International Stock Portfolio 

Shares Book Value Market Value 

OMKLNS 1,090,000 Si 4,075,078 $ 3,900,824 
TOSOH CORP 734,000 3,200,820 2,762.622 
TOTAL 'B' SH5 62,000 3,631,078 3,731,822 
TRANSCAN ADA PIPELINE LTD 200,000 2,596,.'>48 2,675,000 
UBEINDUSTRIBS 915,000 3,966,502 3,195.564 
UNILEVER NV ADR 140,000 18,005,132 18,217,500 
UNfLEVERNV 18,000 2,432,820 2,341,917 
UNY CO 250,000 4,345,185 4,011,503 
VEBA AG 11.SOO 4,047,936 4,519,832 
VODAFONE GROUP PLC SPONSORED 200,000 6,580,663 7,575,000 
WACOALCORP 443,000 5,598,243 5,488,172 
WELL A AG NON VTG PRF 6,000 4,049,111 4,772.752 
WESTERN MINING CORP HLDGS LTD 635,625 3,833,268 3,492.186 
WESTPAC BANKING CORP 413,000 1,474,560 1,494,117 
WOL TERSKLUWER 70,000 5,068,294 6,175,.541 
WOODSIDE PETEROLEUM 380,000 1,489,456 ] .490,869 
YAMAHA MOTOR CO 275,000 2,243,978 1,998,702 
YORKSHIRE WATER 435,000 3,682,159 3,985,282 
ZENECA GROUP 285,000 4,123,135 4,814.118 
NON-BASE CURRENCY (l,490,097) (111,388) (115,773) 

TOTAL INTERN A TIONALSTOCKPORTFOLIO $ 859,900,087 $ 911,U8,130 

GRANDTOTALSTOCJ< PORTFOLIO $ 4,368,506,513 $ 5.077,336,916 
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C h a irs o f Excell e n ce Portfolio 

Domestic and Internationa l Stock Portfolio 

Shares Book Value Market Value 

AMERICAN EXPRESS CO 21,500 $ 682,753 $ 757,875 
AMERlCAl'\I GEN CORP 24,000 769,790 810,000 
AMERJCAN HOME PRODS CORP 12,000 759,270 928.500 
AMOCO CORP 12,000 713.465 799,500 
AT&TCORP 19,500 990.670 1,033.500 
BA..\IKOFBOSTON CORP COM W,000 533,438 750,000 
BEVERLY ENTERPRISES INC 23,000 354.055 284,625 
BRJSTOLMYERSSQUIHB 11,000 643,393 749.375 
BROWNING FERRIS 11\"DS NC 17,000 525.219 612.000 
CAPITAL CITIES ABC INC 10,000 746,836 1,080,000 
CA fERPll.LAR INC -t,400 243,378 282,700 
COCA COLA CO 15,000 801.D25 956,250 
COLGATE PALMOLIVE CO 14,000 835,540 1,023,750 
DEAN WITIER DISCOVER & CO 19,000 714.477 893,000 
DRESSER INDS INC 40,000 818,149 890,000 
DSC COMMUNlCA TIO NS CORP 24,000 755,643 1, 116,000 
EXXON CORP 16,000 964.342 1,130,000 
FEDERAL E>..I'RESSCORT' 8.400 504,219 510,300 
FLUOR CORP 16,000 776,204 832,000 
GENERAL ELECCO 15,.300 756,948 862,538 
GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBR CO 20,000 711,574 822,500 
HERCULES INC 13,800 500,224 672,750 
J-ruMANA INC 2MOO 427,710 408,250 
TB PINC 22,000 737,534 957,000 
KU ENERGY CORP 22000 599.833 613,250 
MORRISON RE!>I \URAf...'TS!NC 34,500 912,157 828,000 
MORTO'\J I.NTL INC J~D 20,000 573,074 585,000 
ORACLE CORP 30,500 917,493 1.178,063 
PACIFICO RP 42,000 723.722 787.500 
PENl\.l'EY I C INC 16,500 805,922 792.000 
PHlLLIPS PCTE CO 13,000 408,593 433,875 
PRAXAIR INC 28.000 632,980 696,500 
SAFEWAY INC NEW 20,000 648,663 747,500 
SBCCOMMUNICA·noNSJNC 25,000 998,924 1,190.625 
SONOCO PRODS CO 18,900 413,004 467,775 
SURGJCALCAREAFFrUATESINC 20,000 395,950 382,500 
TEKTRONIX l'lC 11,00\J 420,760 541,750 

TOTAL DOMESTIC'.:>l'OCKPORTFOLIO $ 24,716,931 $ 28,406,751 

INTERNATIONALSTOCK PORTFOLIO 

WE5TCOA5T ENERGY INC 26,500 $ 410,659 $ 390.875 

GRAND TOTAL STOCK f'ORffOLlO s 25,127.590 !> 28.797,626 
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Chairs of Excellence Portfolio 

Domestic and International Fixed Income Portfolio 

Rating Coupon Maturity Par Value Market Value 

GOVERNMENTS: 
BONDS AND NOTES. 
UNITED STA TES TREASURY BONDS AAA 10.750 5/15/2003 8,000,000 $10,226,240 
UNITED STATES TREASURY BONDS AAA 10.750 8/15/2005 3,200,000 4.248,992 
UNITED STA TES TREASURY NOTES AAA 8 875 11/15/98 5,000,000 5,435,950 

TOTALBONDSANDNOTES $19,911,182 

AGENCIES: 
FHLMC GROUP #C8-0226 AAA 8.500 9/1/2024 1,960,000 $2,021,858 
FNMA POOL #0002494 AAA 8 000 4/1 /2008 4,597.115 4,728,639 
FNMA POOL #0250128 AA/\ 7.500 9/1/2009 1,893,637 1,924,995 
mMA POOL #0250129 AAA 7 500 9/1 / 2001 4,977.591 5,056,884 
FNMA POOL #0250188 AAA 8.000 1 / 1/2025 4,864,809 4,954,468 
GNMA POOL #0196110 AAA 9.000 12/15/2016 1,513.801 1.604.008 
GNMA GTD REMJC 1994-3 CL PH AAA 7.500 10/ 16/ 2022 5,000,000 5,168,172 
GNMA II POOL #0008399 AAA 5.000 4/'20/2024 1,966,059 1,959,296 
GOVERNMENTTRUST CERTIFICATES AAA 9400 11 / 15/96 636,709 651,048 
GOVERNM ENTTRUST CERTIFICATES AAA 9.250 11/15/96 392,513 397,769 
SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 1991-lOC AAA 8.330 9/10/2001 5,254,829 5,616.572 

TOTALAGENCIES $34,083,709 

TOT AL GOVERNMEN1S AND AGENCIES :!>53 ,994 ,891 

CORPORA TES: 
ASSOCIATES CORP NORTH AMER NT AA3 8.375 \./15/98 5,000,000 SS.225,850 
ATLANTICRlClIFIELD CO A2 8.200 9/15/ 98 3.000.000 3,157,860 
CHRYSLER FlNL CORP SHELP 50 A3 8.125 12/ 15/96 3,500,0()0 3,575,495 
COOPERATIVE UITL TR 131G ELEC AAA 9 500 2(15/ 2017 5,000,000 5.493,750 
DEAN WITTER DISCOVER & CO A1 6 250 3/ 15/ 2000 2,000,000 1.967,360 
FORD MTR CR CO Al 7 250 5/ 15/99 2,000,000 2,049 860 
GENERALMTRS ACCEPCORP BAAl 7350 'i/27/97 800,000 814,280 
GULF POWER CO A1 8 750 12/1/2021 l,000,000 1,066,760 
INTL LEASE FIN CORP A2 7 900 10/l/96 5.000,000 5,095,100 
INTL LEASE FIN CORP MTN #00067 A2 5.710 7/15/97 2.000,000 1,978,420 
MCAFDGCORP Aa2 7 550 3/28/97 500,000 511,160 
MCA FUNDING CORP Aa2 4480 8/13/96 1,500,000 1,461,027 
RURALELECCOOPGRANTORCERTIFICATES AAA 9 630 9/30/2011 1,000,000 1,079,430 
SOUTI IWESTERJ\: BELL TEL CO Al 7.625 10/ 1 / 2013 3,319,000 3,336,790 
WISCONSIN GAS CO AA3 7.500 ll / 15/98 2.000,000 2,067.760 

TOTALCORPOR:\ TES $38,880,902 

TOTAL DOMESTIC FLXED INCOME PORTFOLIO $92,875,79.3 

INTERNATIONALFIXED INCOME PORTFOLIO 

GOVERNMENTS: 
TOKYO METROPOLIS JAPAN AAA 8.700 10/ 5/99 3,000,()00 $3.262.l IO 

CORPORA TES: 
FORD CAP B V NT Al 10.125 11 / 15/2000 5.000,000 $5,731,350 
NIPPON TELEG & TEL CORP NT AAA 9 500 7/27/ 98 2,000,000 2,185,540 
IMPERIAL OIL LTD DEB AA1 8.750 10/ 15/2019 150,000 164,230 

TOTAL CORPORA TES $8 ,mn .120 

1DTAL INTERNATIONAL FIXED TNCOMF. PORTFOLIO Sll,343,230 

GRAND TOTAL FIXED INCOME PORTFOLlO $104,219.023 
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Local Governm e nt In ves tment Pool 

Indep endent Auditor's Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF ST A TE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 
PHONE (615) 741-3697 

The Honorable W. R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Local Government Investment Pool, as of June 30, 
1995, and June 30, 1994, and the related statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits m accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a tesl basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estunates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Local Government Investment Pool as of June30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the changes in 
fund balances for the years then ended m conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary schedule of cash receipts and disbursements following the notes to the 
financial statements, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fa1rlystated in all material respects in relat.10n to the financial statements taken 
as a whole 

In accordance with generally accepted government aud1tmg standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Sincerely, 

~.e-.~~ 
Director, Division of State Audit 
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Local Government Inveshnent Pool 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

Assets 
Cash 
Due fr um State Gt'neral F w1d 
Due from State Special Revenue Fund 
Due from State Education Trust Fund 
Due from State Loan Program Fund 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Ftmd Balance 
Liabilities: 
Member Deposits 
Due to State Capital Projects Fund 
Due to State College and University Funds 
Due to Commuruty Health Agencies 
Due to State Veterans' Homes Board 
Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Sec accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Local Government Investment Pool 

June 30, 1995 

$1,281.063,828 
407,685 

23,209 

161,475 
446,689 

$1,282, 102.886 

$1,079,137,944 
777,735 

193,980,605 
5,177,193 

480,115 
$ l,279 ,553,592 

$ 2,549,294 

$1,282.102,886 

f une 30, 1994 

$1,139,765,831 
147,533 

60,082 

0 

0 
$1, 139,973,446 

$ 936,313,686 
924,379 

196,863,985 
2,615.284 

439,222 
$1 .137,156,556 

$ 2,816,890 

$1,139.973,446 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Revenues: 

Investment Income 

Expenditures: 
Jnterest on Deposits 
Administrative Cost 
Total Expenditures 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenues 

Fund Balance, ]111111 

Fund Balmzce, June 30 

See accompanying Notes to the Finnnczal Statements. 
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for the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1995 

$ 71, 191,471 

70,414,939 
1,044,128 

$ 71,459 ,067 

$ (267,596) 

$ 2,816,890 

$ 2.549.294 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1994 

s 38,310.928 

37,642,737 
685,137 

$ 38,327,874 

$ (16,946) 

$ 2,833.836 

s 2.816,890 



Local Government Investment Pool 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A. Description of tlte Local Government Investment Pool 

The Local Government Investment Pool (LG1P) was authorized by the 91st General Assembly to 
enable local govenunents and other political subdivisions to participate with the state in provid­
ing maximum opportunities for the investment of public funds. LGIP participants can invest any 
amount for any length of time in the pool. Transfer procedures for making deposits to the pool or 
withdrawals therefrom specify that an immediate credit process be used, i.e. wire transfers or 
correspondent banking transactions. 

An average rate of return is calculated on the investment made each month from such pool and is 
used to credit LGIP participants with earnings. An administrative fee of .06 percent was charged 
against each participant's average daily LGIP balance to provide for recovery of administrative 
cost. This fee may be changed as the ratio of administrative cost to the pool balance changes. 

Some deposits made to the LGIP are contractually committed to the State Department of Trans­
portation. The only withdrawals allowed from these accounts are to pay the Dep artment of Trans­
portation per progress billings for construction projects contracted between the entity and DOT. 

Some deposits are committed to Community Health Agencies, the State Veterans' Homes Board, 
the State College and University Funds and to the State Capital Projects Fund. Withdrawals from 
these accounts reqwre authorization by the admmistering agencies. 

B. Significant Accounting Policies 

The Local Government Investment Pool forms an integral part of the primary government and 
has been included as an expendable trust fWld in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report 

The LGIP is accounted for on the modified accrual basis. Revenues are recorded when they be­
come both measurable and available and expenditures are recognized at the time liabilities are 
incurred. 

Monies deposited in the LGIP are invested in the Pooled Investment Fund administered by the 
State Treasurer. The Pooled Investment Fund is authorized by state statute to invest funds in 
accordance with policy guidelines approved by the State Funding Board. The current resolution 
of that board gives the Treasurer authority to invest in collateralized certificates of deposit in state 
depositories, prime commercial paper, prime bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, 
various U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations, limited money market mutual funds, and in obli­
gations of the state of Tennessee pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 9-4-602(b) . The 
Pooled Investment Fund is also authorized to enter into securities lending agreements in which 
U.S. Government Securities may be loaned for a fee. The loaned securities arc transferred to the 
borrower by the custodian agent against simultaneous receipt of collateral securities. The pool's 
custodial credit risk is presented in the Tennessee Comp1·ehensive Ann11al Financzal Report for the 
year ended June 30, 1995. 
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Loca I Governme nt Investxnent Pool 

Comparative Sch e dules of Cash R ece ipts and Disbursements 

Cash Balance, July 1 

Add Cash Receipts 
Member Deposits 
Investment Income 

Total Cash Receipts 

Deduct Cash Disb11rsements: 
Member Withdrawals 
Administrative Cost Paid 

Total Cash D1shurseme11ts 

Cash BaLm ce, ftmc 30 

See accompanying Noles lo the Fmancwl Statements. 
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July 1, 1994 
through 

June 30, 1995 

$1,139,765,831 

$3,612,822,317 
71,191,471 

$3,684,013,788 

$3,541,671,663 
1,044,128 

$3,542,715,791 

s 1,281.063 ,828 

July 1, 1993 
through 

June 30, 1994 

$ 930,347,419 

$3,332,918,654 
38,310,928 

$3,371,229,582 

$3,161,126,033 
685,137 

$3,161,811,170 

$1,139,765,831 



Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 
Independent Auditor's Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 

JAMES K POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 

PHONE (615) 741 -3697 

The Honorable W. R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Bu1ldmg 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System, as of 
June 30, 1995, and June30, 1994, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balances 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these finanoal statements based on OUI audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards regu1re that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
hnanoaJ statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit mcludes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System as of] une 30, l CJ95, and June 30, 1994, and the results 
of its operat10ns and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
pnnc1ples. 

The supplementary schedule of actuarial balances on page 96 is not a reguired part of the basic financial 
statements and was not audited by us, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon. 

ln accordance with generally accepted government auditmg standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Sincerely, 

~9:..~~~ 
Director, Division of State Audit 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

(Expressed in Thousands) 

Assets 
Gish 
Invesb:nents: 
Short-term X"Curibcs (Amorti.ted Cost) 
Dorncst:Jc ~'Curi ties· 
Government Bonds (Amortvl'd Cost) 
Corporatc Bonds (Amortu.ed Cost) 
Corporate Stocks (Cost) 
Securib~ on Loan 
Government Bonds (Amortu.cd Cost) 
Corpor.:ite Bonds (Amortized Cost) 
Corporate Stocks (Cost) 

International SC'CUrities: 
Government Bonds (Amorbzed Cost) 
Corporate Bonds (AmorllZed Cost) 
Corpordte Stocks (Cost) 
American Depository Receipts (Cost) 
SE:'Cunbcs on Loan 

Government Bonds (AmortiL.cd Cost) 
Corpordle Bonds (AmorbLe<l Cost) 
Corpo rate> Stock5 (Cost) 

Total Investments 
Rece1vab!L>c;· 

Mcmhcr Contributions Recci vdble 
Employer Contributions Rl>ecivable 
Political Subdivisions Recc1vablc 

Accrued lnlerest Receivable 
Accrued Otv1<lE>nds Ret.e1vdble 
Accrued Loan Income Receivable 
Invec;tmenl., Sold 
Total Rt•reruabks 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
L1abihbes. 

Rewed Pdyroll Payable 
Warrants Pdyable 
A<. .. counl'> Payable· 

D0ath Bcnd1~ and Refunds Pdyable 
Olhl'T 

Investments Purch.tsed 
Other lnvl'Stmenl Pavabkoe; 
Total LurlY1/ihe-; 

Fund 8d111n1 e 
1'1t.!mix'r RC>serve 

Employer RL'S4;'rv<:> (llnfumfo<l Actuarial Accrued L1db11ity Totaled S-l-07.8 
Million ac; nr June 30, 1995 dnd $.171 8 M.iU1on d~ of June 30, 199-!) 

Iota/ F1111d Bal.t1110? 
Total L1abilltirs and Fu11rl Balance 

See accompamin g Nace~ to 1/w Flflancwl Sra1ementr. 
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June30, 1995 June 30, 1994 

s 6,110 s 683 

s 968,231 s l,022,722 

2,706,712 2,805,810 

3,001,823 3,043,296 

3,416,917 2,7%,283 

961,436 3-:ll,481 
36,275 86 
91,689 4,768 

604,256 015,971 

319,880 192,779 

688,125 627,891 
55,584 9,152 

29,998 0 
18,701 0 

116,19.2 27,166 
s 13,015,819 s 12,087,-111 

s 13,107 s 12,719 
24,204 24,221 
4,466 3,283 

134,622 131,283 

10,145 9,046 
396 21 
109 0 

s 187,049 s 180.573 
$ 13,208,978 s 12,268,667 

s 13,279 s 13..399 
573 618 

1,776 1,013 
-10 710 

20,203 0 
1,558 0 

s 37,-129 s 15,7-10 

Si 2.235,3-19 s 2,075,679 

10,936,200 10,177,2-18 

s 13, 171 ,5-19 5 12,252,927 

s 13,208,978 s 11,268,667 



Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance 

(E."Cpressed in 71iousands) 

for the Year For the Year 
Ended Ended 

June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 
Operating Revenues 

Contributions: 
Member Contributions $ 126,232 $ 117,173 
Employer Contributions 282,626 264,670 

Political Subdivisions Contributions 49,952 56,310 
Total Contributions $ 458,810 $ 438,153 

Investment Income: 
Loan Revenue $ 5,344 $ 2,008 
Interest 536,795 438,518 
Dividends 87,962 91,460 
Income from Foreign Investments 55,080 38,089 
Net Discount (Premium) Amortization 45,157 69,108 
Currency Gain (Los:>) on Sale of 

Foreign Investments (22,303) 618 
Net Gain on Sale 
of Investments 222,390 589,883 

Total Tnvestmem Income $ 930,425 5 1,229,684 
Total Operatin,~ Revenues $ 1,389,235 s 1,667,837 

Operating Expenses 

Annuity Benefits: 
Retirement Benefits $ 336,907 $ 301,058 
Survivor Benefits 20,688 18,131 
Disability Benefits 10,422 9,065 
Cost of Living 72,371 66,910 

Death Benefits 3,019 3,049 
Refunds 20,914 17,637 

Administrative Exeenses 6,292 0 
Total Operatmg Expenses $ 470,613 $ 415,850 

Net Income $ 918,622 $ 1,251,987 

Fund Balance, ]11/11 7 $ 12,252,927 $ 11,000,940 

Fund Balance, /11ne 30 $ 13,171.549 s 12,252,927 

See accompanying Notes tn the F111anc:1al Statemems. 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows 

(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cas/i Flows from Operating Activities~ 
Cash Received from Member Contnbulions 

Cdsh Received from Employer Contributions 

Cd sh Rc(.c1ved from Pohllcal Subd1v1sion Contribullons 

Cash PaymC'nl'i tor Annuity Benehts 

Cash Payments for Death Benefits 

Cash Payments for Refunds to Members 

C1sh Payments for Adm1mslraltve Expenses 
Other Operating Activ1hes 

Nel Cash Flinus PrOU1ded by (U~ed for) Opt!mhng l\ch'vihes 

Cash flows from lnvestmg Activities: 
lnlefC'<,t on JnvPstmenls 
Dividends on lnveslmenls 

Loan Revenue 
lncomc lrom Foreign lnvro;tmenls 

ProceC'ds from Sale'> and Mc1lunlles of Investments 
Purchase o( lnvcslment'i 
Nd Ca~Ji Flm.u!- Prau1dt!d bl{ (Used for) lnveshng Actzv1hes 

Net lncreac;I' (Dl!crea!:-e) 111 Cash 

(11.5h al July 1 
Ca!.h ar /une JO 

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Net Income 
Ad1uslmenls ft> Reconcile Nt't Income to Net Cash Flow!> from Operating Achvrhl.'~ 

lntere,<; I Lncome 

D1v1dend Income 

income from Foreign Investments 

Nel Profit on Sale of lnveslmenls 

Currency (C.un) Loss o n Sale of Foreign Investment-< 

Ncl (Discou nt) Prrnuum Amortization 

Loan Revenue 

Changes 111 RL•c.. e1vahli>o:;: 

Member Conlribulions 

Employer Cont.nbulions 

Poltlica l Subda1s1on Conlnbubons 

Changes in Pa~·abk,c;: 

RC'llreJ Payroll Payable 
W<trrants Payabk 

Arrounlc; Pavable 

Total :\J1u!>fme11/ .. 

Nd Ca'h f.low.~ Pnr..minl by (LJ.;eJ 111) Operatzng Achv1hi!~ 

For the Year 

Ended 

June 30, 1995 

s 125,844 

282,6-B 

48,769 

(440,508) 
(3,838) 

(19,361) 

(6,267) 
(320) 

$ (13,038) 

$ 534,937 

86,649 
-!,970 

53,742 

24,281.626 
(24,943,459) 

5 18,465 

s 5.427 

s 683 

s b,110 

s 918.622 

s (536,795) 

(87,%2) 

(55,080) 

(222,390) 

22,303 
(45, 157) 

(5,344) 

(38R) 

17 

(1, 183) 

(120) 

(45) 
484 

~ (931,obO) 

s (13.038) 

At June 30, 1 tl95, the TCRS had unsettled investment purchases of 520,203,550 and unselllt>d 

1nvc•\lmcnl sales of 5108,009. 
Al rune 30, 199-L the TCRS had no unsettled 1nveslm1~nl purchai.es or unselllC'd investment sales 

Sn accompan\'ing Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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For the Year 

Ended 

June 30, 1994 

s 116,671 

263,683 

56,072 

(393.553) 

(2,221) 

(18,725) 

0 
323 

s 22,250 

s 427,372 

93,963 
2,099 

41,587 

18,165.517 
(18,753,166) 

(22,628) 

5 (378) 

s 1,061 

s 683 

s 1,251,987 

s (438,518) 

(91,460) 

(38,089) 

(589,883) 

(618) 
(69, 108) 

(2,008) 

(502) 
(987) 

(238) 

1,611 

216 

(153) 

s (1,229,737) 

s 22.250 



Tennessee Consolidated Retirement Systeni 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A. Plan Description 

l. TCRS. 
The Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) is a defined benefit, agent multiple­
employer public employee retirement system. Members of the system consist of teachers, gen­
eral employees of the state, higher education employees and employees of participating po­
litical subdivisions. The state of Tennessee is responsible for the retirement benefits of state 
employees, higher education employees and teachers, while participating political subdivi­
sions are responsible for the retirement benefits provided their employees. 

2. Membership. 
Membership in the system is mandatory for state employees, teachers, higher education em­
ployees and employees of participating political subdivisions. At June 30, 1995, the number of 
participating local government employers and the TCRS membership was: 

Cities ................................................................ 123 
Counties .... ............ -.... ................ ...................... 83 
Utility Districts ................................................ 29 
Special School Districts .............................. .... 20 
Joint Ventures ................................ .................. 22 
Regional Libraries ........................................... 12 
Development Agencies ............... ................... 12 
Housing Authorities ................................. ...... 10 
911 Emergency Communication Districts ... 19 
Other ... .................................................... .......... 16 
Total ............ .................................................... .. 346 

3 Benefits. 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefits ............... 62,090 

Terminated members entitled to 
benefits but not yet receiving them .. 10,475 

Current members: 
Vested ..................................... ....... ...... 111,616 
Nonvested ..................................... .... .. . 62, 162 

Total ................ ............. ....... ............... ..... . 246,343 

The TCRS pro\'ides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are 
determined by a formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of ser­
vice. Members become eligible to retire at the age of 60 with five years of service or at any age 
with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to vested members at age 55. 
Disability benefits are aYailable to active members with five years of service who become dis­
abled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is ho service requirement for disability 
that is the result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in performance of 
duty. Members joining the system on or after July 1, 1979 are vested after five years of service. 
Members joining prior to July 1. 1979 are vested after four years of service. Political subdivi­
sion members joining on or after July 1, 1979 are vested upon completion of 10 years of service, 
unless five years vesting is authorized by resolution of the chief goverrung body. Benefit provi­
sions are established and amended by state statute. 

4. Contributions. 
Effective July 1, 1981, the retirement system became noncontributory for most state and higher 
education employees. Political subdivisions may elect contributory or noncontributory retire­
ment for their employees. The contribution rate is five percent of gross salary for teachers and 
contributory employees of political subdivisions. ln addition, the employers contribute a set 
percentage of their payroll deterrruned by an actuarial valuation. State statute provides that 
the contribution rates be adopted by the Board of Trustees of the TCRS. 

5. Plans Other Than TCRS. 
Pursuant to state statute, the state may establish an optional retirement program for any state 
institution of higher educat10n that requests such a program. Any employee exempt from the 
Fair Labor Standards Act and employed by a state-supported institution of lugher education 
that has an ophonal retirement program may elect membership in TCRS or participation in 
the Optional Rettrement Program (ORP). 

(Continued) 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

The ORP has been established as a defined contribution plan. In a defined contribution plan, 
benef 1 ts depend solely on the amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Both the 
Tenne~ee Board of Regents institutions' and the Uruversity of Tennessee System's farulty are eli­
gible to become members of the Optional Retirement Program in lieu of membership in TCRS. 

State statute requires the state-supported institutions to make contribuhons to the Ophonal 
Retirement Program at the rate of 10 percent of gross salary below the social security wage 
base and 11 percent of gross salary above the social security wage base. The contnbutions for 
each employee (and interest allocated to the employee's account) are fully and immediately 
vested. During the year ended June 30, 1995, the state of Tennessee contributed $47.4 million 
(10.1 percent of current covered payroll) to the ORP. The total current covered payroll was 
$471.0 million. 

A second, now closed, group of University of Tennessee faculty also participates in the Op­
tional Retirement Program with certain supplemental benefits provided by the state of Ten­
nessee. Pnor to fiscal year 1978, these supplemental benefits were funded by the university on 
a pay-as-you-go basis. The supplemental benefits have since been assumed by the TCRS and 
are mcluded in the benefit expenses in the financial statements and in the actuarial calcula­
tions for TCRS. The TCRS is responsible for providing supplemental benefits for the difference 
between a calculated hypothetical fixed income annuity and the basic benefit under TCRS. 

B. Summary of Significant Accounti11g Policies and Plan Asset Matters 

1. Reporll11g Entity. 
The TCRS 1s included in the State of Tennessee Financial Reporting Entity. Because of the state's 
fiduciary rec;ponsibility, the TCRS forms an integral part of the Tennessee primary go\'em­
ment and as such has been included as a pension trust fund in the Tennessee Comprel1ensh1e 
Annual Financial Report. 

2. l3(lsts of Accounting and Presentation. 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all applicable 
Goverrunental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, as well as applicable 
pri\'ate sector pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989. The TCRS uses the 
accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents. 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, by definition, includes cash and short-term investments with a 
maturity date within three months of the acqwsition date. The state's policy regarding the 
definihon of Cash and Cash Equivalents includes cash management pools as cash. In addi­
tion, securities in portfolios where the pnmary purpose is to facilitate the placement of funds 
in long-term investments are classified as investments. Cash received by the TCRS that cannot 
be invested immediatelv in secunties is invested in the Pooled Investment Fund adrrurustered 
by the State Treasurer. The Pooled Investment Fund is authonzed by state statute to in\·est 
funds in accordance with policy gwdelmes approved by the State Funding Board. The current 
rec;olution of that board gives the Treasurer authority to invest m collateralized certificates of 
deposit in state depositories, prime commercial paper, prime bankers' acceptances, certain 
repurchase agreements, vanous U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations, limited money market 
mutual funds, and in obligations of the state of Tennessee pursuant to Tennessee Code .Anno­
tated. Section 9+602(b). The Pooled Invesbnent Fund 1s also authonzed to enter into securities 
lending agreements in which U.S. Government secunties may be loaned to brokers for a fee. The 
loaned secunbes are transferred to the borrower by the custodial agent against simultaneous re­
ceipt of collateral securities. The pool's custodial cred1t risk is presented in the Tennessee Com­
prche11siue An1111al Fmancial Report for the year ended June 30, 1995. 

(Continued) 
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Ten nessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Notes to the Financial S tatements,June30, 1995 and Jun e 30, 1994 

4. Method Used to Value Investments. 
Equity securities are reported at cost, subject to adjustment for market declines judged to be 
other than temporary. Fixed-mcome securities are reported at amortized cost with discounts 
or premiums amortized using the effective interest rate method, subject to adjustment for market 
declines judged to be other than temporary. Investment income is recognized as earned. Gains 
and losses on ~ales and exchanges of fixed-income and equity securities are recognized on the 
transaction date. 

5. Receivables. 
Receivables primarily consist of interest which is recorded when earned. The receivables for 
contributions as of June 30, 1995 consist of $36.l million due from other funds witlun the state 
and $5.7 million due from other goYemments. 

6. Fund Balance. 
The Fund Balance consists of two reserves, the Member Reserve and the Employer Reserve. 
The Member Reserve represents the accumulahon of employee contributions plus interest. 
The Employer Reserve represents the accumulation of employer contributions, investment 
income and transfers from the member reserve for retiring members. Benefit payments and 
interest credited to the members' accounts are reductions to the Employer Reserve. 

C. Investments 

State statute authorizes the TCRS to invest in bonds, debentures, preferred stock and common stock, 
and m other good and solvent securities subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees and further 
sub1ect to the following restrictions: 

a. The total sum invested in common and preferred stocks shall not exceed seventy-five per­
cent (75%) of the total of the funds of the retirement system. 

b. The total sum invested in notes and bonds or other fixed income secunues exceed.mg one 
year in maturity shall not exceed seventy-five percent (75%) of the total funds of the retire­
ment system. 

c. Within the restrictions in (a) and (b) above, an amount not to exceed fifteen percent (15°!.J) 
of the total of the funds of the retirement system may be invested m securihes of the same 
kinds, classes, and investment grades as those otherwise eligible for investment in the 
following countries: Japan, the United Kingdom. Germany, Switzerland, France, the Neth­
erlands and Australia. Investments are valued at their book value in determming the com­
pliance with these restrictions. 

d. The total amount of secunties loaned under a securities lending program cannot exceed 
thirty percent (30%) of total assets. 

TCRS maintains a portfolio of short-term investments in order to actively manage all funds waiting to 
be placed in a more permanent investment. These short-term investments may include U.S. Treasuries, 
commercial paper, medium-term corporate notes, promISsory notes and repurchase agreements. 

The TCRS investment securities are categorized on the following page according to the level of credit 
risk associated with the custodial arrangements at that time Category 1 includes investments that are 
insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by the TCRS or its agent in the name of the 
TCRS. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which U1e securities are held 
by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the name of the TCRS. Category 3 includes unin­

sured and unregistered imestments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent, but not m the name of the TCRS 

(Continued) 
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(Expressed i11 11wusands) June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 

Book Value Markel Value Book Value Market Value 

l1roestments - Category 1: 

Short-term Securities: 
Commen1cJ Paper $ i.W.-H4 $ 740,40-1 $ 1,303.526 $ l,3CXl,6-l5 

~fod1um-lerm Corpuralc Noll'S 45,0()1 H,%9 50,000 50,000 

U.S. Government Secunlies 156,626 156.625 191,146 190,416 

Repurchase Agreements 26,200 26,200 78,050 78,050 

Long-term lnveslmenls: 
Domestic Secunhe:. 
Government Bonds 2,673,226 2,886,749 2,803,228 2,854,508 

Corporate Bonds 2,981,834 3,()..19,591 3,043,296 2,977,163 

Corpocale Stocks 3,416,703 4,061,080 2,796,283 3,103,566 

International Securities: 
Government Bonds 60-1,256 643,972 615.971 621,23-l 

Corporate Bonds 31q,sso 349.-:182 192,n9 201,034 

Corporate Stocks 688.125 723.903 627,891 702,046 

American Depository 
Receipts 55,584 70,257 9,152 20,093 

s 11.707,8'\9 s 12,753,232 $ 11.711.322 $ 12,098,755 

lm•estme11ts - Categones 2 fr 3: $ 0 s 0 $ 0 $ 0 

lnvestmetits - Not Categorized: 
Investments hch.1 by broker-dealers 
under secur1bes on loan conlracts: 

Domeslic Sec-uritit>s 
Government Bonds $ %1,436 $ 1.009,421 $ 3-11,481 $ 3.11,681 

Corporale Bonds 36,275 41,.170 86 86 

CorpordtP Stocks 91,689 104,597 4,768 2,819 

lntcm allonal Sccunl1cs 
Government Bonds 29,998 39,436 0 0 
Corporale Bonds 18,701 18,115 0 0 

Corporate Stn1.ch 110,192 117,268 27,166 31,-193 

Margm Deposit on Futures Contracts: 
Domec;bc- Govenunf'nt Bonds 33.-186 3-l,035 2,588 2,504 

Unsettled Investment AcqUl.Sitions: 
DomPsl1\· Se..:unbe1> 
Corporcllc Bonds 19,989 19,906 0 0 

Corporalc Stocks 2H 232 0 u 
Total 1 m1e~t111l!11ts s 13.015,819 $ 1-1, 137, 732 $ 12,087,-111 $ 12.467,338 

The TCRS is authorized to enter into colla teralized securities lendmg agreements whereby TCRS loans 
its debt and eqwty securities for a fee to a select few of the highest quality securities firms and banks. 
Loans must be lim1ted so the total amount on loan does not exceed 30 percent of the book value of 

(Con1111ued) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and Jun e 30, 1994 

TCRS' assets. The loaned securities are initially collateralized at 102 percent of their market value for 
domestic securities and 105 percent for international. Additional collateral is pledged if the aggregate 
market value subsequently falls below 100 percent for domestic securities and 105 percent for interna­
tional. TCRS' custodian bank manages the lending program and maintains the collateral on behalf of 
TCRS. At June 30, 1995, the market value of TCRS securities on loan to brokers was $1,324,990,875, and 
the market value of collateral pledged for the securities on loan was $1,363,498,001. It is standard 
pracbce to value the securities and collateral on June 30 (usmg June 29 closing market prices) and 
therefore the market value of securities on loan differs from that presented rn the above chart which 
uses June 30 closing market pnces. 

The TCRS is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk used in the normal course of 
busrness to generate earnings and reduce its own exposure to fluctuations rn market conditions. The 
TCRS is authorized by statute to engage in forward contracts to exchange different currenoes at a 
specified future date and rate and in domestic stock index futures contracts. These contracts involve 
elements of custodial credit and market risk in excess of amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet as of 
June 30, 1995. The contractual or notional amounts express the extent of the TCRS' involvement in 
these instruments and do not represent exposure to custodial credit loss. The custodial credit risk on 
forward and futures contracts is controlled through limHs and monitoring procedures. 

The allowable currenoes for hedging purposes are hnuted by policy of the Board of Trustees to the 
Pound Sterling, Deutschernarks and Japanese Yen. Forn;ard exchange contracts in effect at June 30, 
1995 are summarized as follows: 

Commitments to Deliver 
Foreign Currency 

80,000,000 
350,000,000 

20,000,000,000 

Pound Sterling 
Deu tschemarks 
Japanese Yen 
Total 

U.S. Currency 
to be 

Received Upon Delivery 
of Foreign Currency 

$ 126,125,500 
250,461,332 
236.455. 103 

$ 613,041,935 

Market Value at 6/30 / 95 
to Purchase Foreign 

Currency for Delivery 

s 127,080,859 
253,478,182 
236.959.100 

$ 617,518,1~1 

The Currency Gain (Loss) on Sale of Foreign Investments line item on the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance includes a net loss on forward contracts in the amount of 
$79,531,705. 

At June 30, 1995, the notional amount of futures contracts was $410,841,325 at a market value of 
$422,946,950. The changes in market value of the outstanding futures contracts are settled daily. The 
Net Gain on Sale of Investments !me item on the Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Changes m 
Fund Balance includes a net gain on futures contracts in the amount of $91,939,897 

The TCRS IS also authorized by investment policy to engage in the issuance of options. Activity is 
limited to selling covered call opbons. The TCRS had no options outstanding at June 30, 1995. 

0. Funding Stahts and Progress 

The amount shown below as "p€nsion benefit obligation" (P.B 0 .) i5 a standardized disclosure rnea­
~ure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and 
step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The 
measure is the actuanal present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users 
assess the funding status of the TCRS on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefit., when due, and make comparisons among public employee retirement 
systems. The measure rs independent of the actuarial fundmg method used to determine contnbutions 
to the system. 

(Continued) 
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The pert$ion benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 1995. 
S1gruncant actuarial assumptions used include: (a) a rate of return on investment of present and future 
assets of eight percent per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of seven percent 
(no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion attributable to the effects of inflation on salanes) 
per year compounded annually, (c) a proiected six percent annual increase in the social security wage 
base, and (d) projected post-retirement benefit increases of three percent of the retiree's initial benefit. 
No actuanal asswnptions were changed during the year_ 

At June 30, 1995, the net assets exceeded the pension benefit obligation by $1.03 billion as follows (in 
milbonc;): 

Pension benefit obligation 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently 

receiving benefits and terminated 
employees not yet receiving benefits 

Current employees: 
Accumulated employee contributions including 

allocated investment earnings 
Employer-financed vested 
Employer-financed nonvested 

Total pe11sion benefit oblignt1on 
Net assets available for benefits at cost or 

amortized cost (market value is $14,293.5) 
Asset!> in excess of pens10n bent'_fit obligation 

E. Contributions Required and Co11tribittions Made 

Slate 

$ 4,111.0 

1,875.4 
4,636_6 

74.4 
$10,697.4 

$ 11,566.8 
$ (869.4) 

Political 
Subdivisions 

$ 560.5 

361.7 
494.S 

27-5 
5 1.444.2 

$ 1,604.7 
$ (160.5) 

Total 

$ 4,671.5 

2,237.1 
5,131.1 

101.9 
$ 12,141.6 

$ 13,171-5 
$ (1,029.9) 

It is the policy of the state to fund pension benefits by actuarially determined contributions which are 
mtended to provide funding for both the normal liability cost and the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability cost, so that sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits when due. The frozen initial 
liability method. a projected benefit cost method, is used to value the plan. Effective June 30, 1995, the 
unfunded accrued liability was reestablished_ The effect of the reestablishment was to reduce the un­
funded accrued liability from $481.7 rrullion to $407.8 million. Effective July 1, 1995, the Board in­
creased the amortization period for $265.0 million of the unfunded accrued liability associated with 
the contributory teachers group from 8 to 20 years. The unfunded accrued liability relating to a closed 
group of state 1udges, attorneys general and county officials is amortized over a 20-year period_ The 
unfunded Liability totaling 541.3 nullion for political subdivisions is being amortized over various pe­
riods depending upon the political subdivision's participation in TCRS. The unfunded accrued liabil­
ity is amortized using the level-dollar basis. The employer contributions include funding for the cost­
of-living provision and amortization of the accrued liability. The assets of the Employer and Member 
Reserves are subtracted from the present value of each member 's expected benefit accrual to arnve at 
the unfunded accrued liability. The unfunded accrued liabtl1ty based on the last h.vo biennial actuarial 
valuahons ts as follows: 

Present Value of Actuarial Liability 
for Active and Renred Accounts 

Less Acluarial Valued Assets: 
Employer Reser\'e 
Member Reserve 

Unfunded Liability 
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June 30, 1995 

$ 14,434,823,163 

11,646,471,385 
2,380,534,702 

s -107,817,076 

June 30, 1993 

$ 12,002,984,552 

9 ,763,269 ,376 
2,041, 954,328 

s 197,760,848 
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Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30,. 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A five percent benefit improvement was effective January L 1994. The June 30, 1994 actuarial update 
calculated the unfunded actuarial accrued liability at $471.8 million. A restated June 30, 1993 actuarial 
valuation assuming the five percent benefit improvement resulted in an increase in the unfunded li­
ability for state employees and teachers of $303.l million. The June 30, 1993 unfunded actuarial ac­
crued liability restated for the five percent benefit improvement totaled $500.9 million. 

For the year ended June 301 1995, contributions totaling $458.8 million were made in accordance with 
contnbutionrequirernents determined through an actuarial valuation performed at June 30, 1993. Sig­
nificant actuarial assumptions used to compute contribubon requirements are the same as those used 
to compute the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation discussed in Note D. The state 
contributed $282.7 million (6.2 percent of current covered payroll) to the plan, and state employees 
and teachers contributed $98.4 million (2.2 percent of current covered payroll). Political subdivisions 
contributed $49.9 million (1.1 percent of current covered payroll) to the plan, and employees of politi­
cal subdivisions contributed $27.8 million (.6 percent of current covered payroll). These contribuhons 
consisted of (a) $394.8 million normal cost (8.6 percent of current covered payroll) and (b) $64.0 million 
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability (1.4 percent of current covered payroll). The total cur­
rent year covered payroll was $4.58 billion. 

F. Historical Trend Information 

Required 10-year historical trend information designed to provide information about the TCRS' progress 
made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented as required supplemen­
tary information immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements. Wormation regardmg 
the pension benefit obligation is available for nine years. 
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T ennessee Con solida ted Retirement System 

R e quire d S u p plementary Information 

Revenues by Source 

fiscal Member Employer Investment Contributions 
Year Contributions Con tributions Income ForORP Tob i 

1986 s 71,6Q2,21 l $ 342,879,458 $ 564,296,889 s 20.117,735 $ 998,986,293 

1987 78,729,737 348,514,509 726,663,408 22,994,584 1, 176,902,238 

1988 83,021,879 373,778,518 573,406,134 19,323,704 [l J 1,049,530,235 

1989 89,906,776 336,292,918 549,550,134 0 975,749,828 

1990 95,957.377 356,747.403 788,715,719 0 1,241,420,499 

1991 100,587.021 285,361,612 752,983,019 0 1,138,931,652 

1992 102,603,249 286,988,169 986,220,366 0 1.375,811,784 

1993 108,059,208 282,906,665 1,137.466,939 0 1,528,432,812 

1994 117,173,260 320,979,877 1,229,683,544 0 1,667,836,681 

1995 126,231.517 332,578,144 930,425,055 0 1,389,234,716 

Expenses by Type 

Fiscal Administrative Contributions 
Year Benefi ts Refunds Expenses to ORP Total 

1986 $ 204,645,238 $ 21,301,916 $ 0 $ 20,117,736 $ 246,064,890 

1987 229,300,596 21,750,626 0 22,994,583 274,045,805 

1988 243,993,945 17,801.882 0 19,323,704 [l ] 281,119,531 

1989 258.320,437 20,664.8Q4 0 0 278.985,331 

1990 278.174,928 20,561,180 0 0 298,736,108 

1991 309.660,795 19,384,713 0 0 329,045,508 

llJ92 334 ,611.059 20,862,169 0 0 355,473,228 

1993 361,225,244 17.141,499 0 0 378,366,743 

1994 398,213,491 17,636,340 0 0 415,849,831 

1995 443,406,956 20,914,496 6,291,841 12) 0 470,613,293 

Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements. 

[11 The state's contributions to the Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) flowed through the TCRS unhl 
Aprtl 1988 Subsequently, these contributions are remitted directly to the ORP by the higher 
education 1mtitutions. 

[2] Effective July 1994, the administrative expenses for TCRS began being paid from the pension 
truc;t fund Previously, TCRS administrative expenses were paid from the state's operating 
budget. 
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Analysis of Funding Progress 
(ltt Millions of Dollars) 

(1) (2) 

Net Assets Pension 
Fiscal Available Benefit 
Year for Benefits Obligation 

1987 $ 5,612.8 $ 5,820.1 

1988 6,381.2 6,376.1 

1989 7,078.0 7,lOi.2 

1990 8,020.6 7,801 .3 

1991 8,830.5 8,453.7 

1992 llJ 9,850.9 9,331.7 

1993 (21 11,000.9 9,763.1 

1994 [3] 12,252.9 10,608.l 

1995 [4] 13.171.5 12,141.6 

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

Required Supplementary Information 

(3) (4) (5) (6) 

Unfunded Unfunded (Assets in 
(Assets in Excess of) P.B.O. 

Percentage Excess of) Annual as percentage of 
Funded P.B.O. Covered Covered Payroll 
(1) I (2) (2) - (1) Payroll (4) I (5) 

96.4% $ 207.3 $ 2,826.9 7.3% 

100.1 (5.1) 3,003.l (0.2) 

99.6 29.2 3,242.2 0.9 

102.8 (219.3) 3,468.8 (6.3) 

104.5 (376.8) 3,648.6 (10.3) 

105.6 (519.2) 3,706.0 (14.0) 

112.7 (1.237.8) 3,923.l (31.6) 

115.S (1.644.8) 4,264.7 (38 6) 

108.S (1,029.9) 4,582.6 (22 5) 

Analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, pension benefit obligation and 
unfunded pension benefit obligation in isolation can be misleading. Expressing the net assets avail­
able for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation provides one indication of the 
TCRS's funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over rune indicates 
whether the system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater the percent­
age, the stronger the system. Trends in unfunded pension benefit obligation and annual covered 
payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded pension benefit obligation as a 
percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids 
analysIS of the TCRS's progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. 
Generally, the smaller tlus percentage, the stronger the system. These analyses are shown only for 
the years available. Additional years will be added as data becomes available. 

[1] In fiscal year 1992, changes in the benefit provisions resulted in an increase of $66.7 million in 
the pension benefit obligation when compared to the pension benefit obligation before the 
provision changes. 

[2] TI1e 1993 funding percentage of 112.7 percent would have been 107.7 percent had the benefit 
provisions adopted during fiscal year 1994 been in effect as of the 1993 valuation date. 

[3] Benefit improvement provisions adopted during fiscal year 1994 caused an increase of $450.6 
million in the pension benefit obligation. The pension benefit obligation, percentage funded, 
unfunded PBO, and unfunded PBO as a percentage of covered payroll reflect liabilities before 
the five percent benefit improvement. 

[ 4J The 1995 PBO includes the five percent benefit improvement effective January 1, 1994. 
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Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 

A ctuarial Balance Sheet as of June 30, 1995 

Assets 

Present assets credrtable to: 
Employer Accumulation Fund 
Members' Fund 
Total Present Assets 

Present value of prospective 
contribunons payable to: 

Employer Accumulahon Fund. 
Normal 
Accrued L1ab1ltt} 
Employer Accumulahon F11nd Totnl 

Members' Fund: 

Total Prospectr;.1e Contribt1 lions 

'Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Present value of prospective benefits 
payable on account of: 

Present retired members and 
contingent annuitants 

Present active members 
Former men1bers 

Total Liabilities 
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Political 
Subdivisions 

$1,323,015,055 
384,817,464 

$1,707,832,519 

$ 331,367,220 
41,288,942 

$ 372,656,162 

216,614,295 

$ 589,270,457 

$ 2,297,102,976 

$ 534,2.26,106 

1,736,596,055 
26,280,815 

$ 2,297,102,976 

State 

$ 10,323,456,330 
1,995,717,238 

$ 12,319, 173,568 

$ 2, 157, 178,470 
366,528, 134 

$ 2,523, 706,604 

1,050,733,090 

$ 3,57 4,439,694 

$ 15,893,613,262 

$ 3, 958,421,592 

11,782,598,930 
152,592,740 

$ 15,893,613,262 

Total 

$ 11,646,471,385 
2,380,534,702 

$14,027,006,08/ 

$ 2,488,545,690 
407,817,07b 

$ 2,896,362,766 

1,267,347,385 

$ 4,163,710,151 

$ 18,190,716,238 

$ 4,494647,698 

13,519, 194,985 
178,873,555 

$ 18,190,716,238 



Deferred Compensation 

Independent Auditor's Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 

JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 

PHONE (615) 741-3697 

The Honorable W. R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensat10n Plan as of 
June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the related statement of changes in assets and liabilities for the year ended 
June 30, 1995. These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility 1s to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audH includes examinmg, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and signihcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the finandal statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the financial 
position of the IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the 
changes in assets and liabilities for the year ended June 30, 1995, m confonruty with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

In accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on complinnce with laws and 
regulations. 

Sincerely, 

~a~:r 
Arthur A. Hayes Jr., CPA 
Director, Division of State Audit 
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lRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

Assets 
Investments Held by Vendors: 

A Etna 
American General 
Calvert Group 
Fidelity Investments 
Great West 
Union Planters 

Total 

Receivables from State Funds for: 
A Etna 
American General 
Calvert Group 
Fidelity Investments 
Great West 
Union Planters 
Total 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Amounts Held in Custodv for Others 

See accompanying Notes to the Fmancial Statements. 
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June 30, 1995 

$ 28,118,178 

998,466 
324,675 

40,132,431 
5,641,763 

14,806,977 
$ 90,022,490 

$ 25,667 
5,256 
1,553 

111,771 
6,936 

26,624 
$ 177,807 
$ 90.200,297 

$ 90,200,297 

June 30, 1994 

$ 26,261,372 
993,998 

330,012 
30,673,490 

5.882,390 
13,833,317 

s 77,974,579 

$ 37,714 
6,067 
2,026 

107,544 
9,877 

27,6'22 
s 190,850 
s 78,165,429 

$ 78,165,429 



Assets 
Investments, at Market 
Receivables from 

State Funds 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Amounts Held in 
Custody for Others 

lRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Balance Balance 

July 1, 1994 Additions Deductions June 30, 1995 

$ 77,974,579 $ 24,267,609 $ 12,219,698 $ 90.022,490 

190,850 177,807 190,850 177,807 
s 78, 165 ,429 $ 24,445,416 s 12,410,548 $ 90,200,297 

$ 78,165,429 $ 24,445,416 $ 12,410,548 s 90,200,297 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

The Deferred Compensation Plan is an integral part of the primary government and has been included 
in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as an agency fund. 

The state offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all state employees, permits them to defer a porbon 
oi their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made 
available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the state, (without being 
restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the clarms of the state's general 
creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the state in an 
amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant. 

It is the opiruon of the sta te's legal counsel that the state has no legal liability for losses W1der the plan, 
but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The state 
believes thatit is unlikely that 1t wtll use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 

The deferred compensation investments are not required to be classified into the risl.. categories 
specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 3, because the inve:;tments 
are in pools or mutual funds where the specific securities related to the plan cannot be identified. 

Treasurer's Report 97 



Flexible Benefits Plan 
Independent Auditor's Report 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 
PHONE (615) 741-3697 

The Honorable W R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Flexible Benefits Plan as of June 30, 1995, and June 
30, 1994, and the related statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the years then 
ended These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fmanctal statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, e\ 1dence 
supporting the amount~ and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting pnnc1ples used and s1gnif1cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Tn our opin ion, the hnanc1al statements referred to above present fairly, in a ll matenal respects, th e finan­
cial position of the Flexible Benefits Plan as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the changes in fund 
balances for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statem ents, taken as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary schedule of cash receipts and disbursements following the notes to the 
fmi\Oc1al statements, ts presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statement<; Such mformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied m the audit of the financial 
statements and, in our opmion, is fairlystated in all matenal respects II\ relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

In accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1q95, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations 

Sincerely, 

~~,~~~ 
Director, Divi~10n of State Audit 
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Assets 

Cash 
Receivable from State Funds 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 

Warrants Payable 

Accounts Payable 
Dependent Care Deposits 
Medical Reimbursement Deposits 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 
Total Liabilities and F1md Balance 

See accompanying Notes to lhe Financial Statements. 

Flexible Benefits Plan 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

June 30, 1995 

$ 6,407,499 

103,234 

$ 6,510.733 

$ 6,256 

88,217 

129,923 

39,638 

$ 264,034 

$ 6,246,699 

$ 6,510,733 

June 30, 1994 

$ 5,101,250 

102,631 

$ 5,203.881 

$ 2,560 

59,350 

131,298 

101.720 

$ 294,928 

$ 4,908,953 

$ 5,203,881 

Flexible Benefits Plan 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Revenues: 

FICA Sa\'ings 
Flexible Benefit Forfeiture 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures: 

Administrative Fees 

Employee Benefit Program 
Total Expenditure 

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses: 
Operating Transfer to State General Fund 

Exce!>s of Revenues Over Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balance, July 1 

F1111d Balance, June 30 

Sec accompanymg Notes to the F111a11cial Statements. 

For the For the 
Year Ended Year Ended 

June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 

$ 2,141,935 $ 2,063,220 

21,406 26,899 

$ 2,163,341 $ 2,090,119 

s 233,904 $ 233,807 

74,610 0 
$ 308,514 s 233,807 

$ 1.854,827 $ 1,856,312 

(517,081) (462,217) 

$ 1,337,746 $ 1,394,095 

$ 4,908,953 $ 3,514,858 

$ 6,246,699 $ 4,908,953 
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Flexible Benefits Plan 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A. Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Reporting En tlly 
The Employee Flexible Benefit Plan is part of the primary government and has been in­
cluded in the Tt·1111essee Comprehensive Annual Fmancinl Report as an expendable trust fund. 

2. Basts of Accounting nnd Presentation 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared m conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles using the modified accrual basis of accounting_ Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when they become both measurable and available and ex­
penditures are recognized at the time the fund liabilities are incurred. 

3. Cash 
Cash deposited in the Employee Flexible Benefit Plan is pooled with the State Treasurer 's 
Pooled Investment Fund. The Pooled Investment Fund, administered by the State Treasurer, 
is authorized by statute to invest funds in accordance with policy guidelines approved by 
the State Funding Board. The current resolunon of that board gives the Treasurer authority 
to invest in coilateralized certificates of deposit in state depositories, prime commercial pa­
per. prime bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, various U.S. Treasury and 
Agency obligations, limited money market mutual funds, and in obligations of the state of 
Tennessee pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Secnon 9-4-602(b). The Pooled Investment 
fW\d is also authorized to enter into securities lending agreements in which US. Govern­
ment securities may be loaned for a fee. The loaned securities are transferred to the bor­
rower by the cus todian against simultaneous receipt of collateral securities. The Pool's cus­
todial crectit risk is presented in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Fmancial Report for the 
year ended 1 une 30, 1995. 

B. Other Accou11ting Disclosures 

1 The sta te offers its employees a cafeteria plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 125. The plan is available on an optional basis to all state employees. Through 
the plan, employees may elect to direct a portion of their salary to pay for certain benefits. 
Benefits which may be purchased through the plan include state group medical insurance, 
sta te group dental insurance, out-of-pocket medical expenses and / or dependent care ex­
penses. Because elections must be filed before the salary or the benefits are received and 
because salary directed to the plan may not be withdrawn by participants for any other 
purpo!>e, salary directed to the plan is exempt from federal income tax and social security 
tax. Elecnons made by employees may not be changed during the calendar plan year except 
in the event of a corresponding change in the participant's family status. Contributions to 
the plan n ot withdrawn by the end of the plan yea r are forfeited to the state and are used for 
fund.mg other employee benefit programs as specified m the state appropriations' bill. 
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Flexible Benefits Plan 

Comparative Schedules of Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

Cash Balance, July 1 

Add Cash Receipts: 
Plan Deposits 
FICA Savings 

Total Cash Receipts 

Deduct Cash Disbursements: 
Plan Withdrawals 
Transfer to General Fund 
Administrative Fees 
Emplovee Benefit Program 

Total Cash Disbursements 

Caslt Balance, f une 30 

July 1, 1994 
through 

June 30, 1995 

$5,101,250 

$3,000,437 
2,141,877 

$5,142,314 

$3,031;347 
517,081 
233,904 
53,733 

$3,836,065 

$6.407,499 

July l, 1993 
through 

June 30, 1994 

$3,750,317 

$2,804,938 
2.062,435 

$4,867,373 

$2,820,416 
462,217 
233,807 

0 
$3,516,440 

$5,101,250 
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Claims A ward Fund 
Independent Auditor"s Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 
PHONE (615) 741-3697 

The Honorable W. R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of theClauns Awa rd Fund as of June 30. 1995, and June 30, 
1994, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund equity and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These fmancial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinjon on these fmanc1al statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits m accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financ1aJ statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting pnnc1ples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opiruon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, mall matenal respects, the financial 
position of the Claims Award Fund as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the yea rs then ended in conformity with generally accepted accountmg principles. 

As discussed in Note B.4 to the financial s tatements, the Claims Award Fund changed its method of valuing 
the actuarially determined clauns liability. 

In accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Sincerely, 

~y9;,~¥ 
Director, Division of State Audit 
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Assets 
Cash 
Accounts Receivable 
Total Assets 

Liabilities a11d Fund Equity 
Liabliities: 

Warrants Payable 
Checks Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Deferred Revenue 
Claims Liability (Notes B.1. and BA.) 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Equity 
Retained Earnings 

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Claims Award Fund 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

June 30, 1995 

$62,371,028 
55,800 

$62.426,828 

$ 146,243 
336,031 
154,038 

0 
55,013.735 

$55,650,047 

$ 6,776,781 

$62,426,828 

June 30, 1994 

$69,314,868 
33,397 

$69,348.265 

$ 389,622 
293,210 
101,446 
152,803 

59,768,197 
$60,705,278 

$ 8,642,987 

$69,348,265 
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Claims Award Fund 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expe nses and Changes in Fund Equity 

Operating Revenues: 
Insurance Premiums 
Interest Income 
Taxes 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Torts 

Death 
Bodily Injury 
Property Damage 

Total Torts 

Workers' Compensation 
Death 
Medical 
Assault Injury 
Temporary Disability 
Permanent Disability 

Total Workers · Compensatwn 

Employee Property Damage 
Professional / Administrative 
Additional Actuarial Liability 

Total Operating Expen;:,es 

Operating Los:; 
Operating Transfers from: 

General Fund 
Highway Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 

Net Loss Before Change m Accountrng Prmaple 

Cumulative Effect of Change in 
Accounting Principle (Note B 4.) 

Net Loss 

Fund Equity, July 1 

F1md Equity, June 30 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

10.t TreasU_rer' s Report 

For the 
Year Ended 

June 30, 1995 

$ 10,374,803 

4,215,936 
4,600 

$ 14,595,339 

$ 1,310,615 
1,846,841 

698,954 
$ 3,856,410 

$ 266,552 
6,428,780 

0 
1,352,292 
3,739,301 

$ 11,786,925 

$ 28,305 
5,915,964 
4,022,165 

$ 25,609,769 

$ (11,014,430) 

$ 371,597 
0 
0 

S{l0,642,833) 

s 8,776,627 

s (1 ,866,206) 

s 8,642,987 

s 6,776,781 

For the 
Year Ended 

] une 30, 1994 

$ 1,349,995 

2,204, 101 
5,400 

$ 3,559,496 

$ 157,500 
2,907,924 

865,090 
$ 3,930,514 

$ 290,470 
6,622,766 

2,829 
1,151,561 
3,378,642 

s 11,4-16,268 

$ 40,572 
5,576,065 
9,096,221 

$ 30,089,640 

$(26,530,144) 

$ 7,800,000 
4,572,700 

545,500 
$(13,611,944) 

s 0 

s (13,611,944) 

5 22.254,931 

s 8,642,987 



Claims Award Fund 

Compat"ative Statements of Cash Flows 

Caslz Flows from Operating Activities: 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1995 

Operating Loss S(l 1,014,430) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net 
Cash Flows Provided in (Used for) Operating Activities: 

Interest Income 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

increase in Accounts Receivable 
Decrease in Warrants Payable 
increase in Checks Payable 
increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Decrease in Deferred Revenue 
increase in Claims Liability (Note B.4.) 

Total Ad1ustments 

Net Cash Flows Used for Operating Activities 

Caslt Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Transfers from: 

(4,215,936) 

(22,403) 
(243,379) 

42,821 
52,592 

(152,803) 
4,022,165 

$ (516,943) 

$(11,531,373) 

General Fund S 371,597 
0 

0 
Highway Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 

Net Cash Flows Provided b11 Noncapital Financing Activities $ 371,597 

Cas/1 Flows from Investing Activities: 
interest on Pooled Investment Fund 

Net Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash 

Cash at July 1 

Cash at fune 30 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

$ 4,215,936 
$ 4,215,936 

$ (6,943,840) 

$ 69,314,868 

$ 62,371,028 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1994 

$ (26,530, 144) 

(2,204, 101) 

(33,397) 
(260,781) 

97,449 
(24,097) 

(1,144,952) 
9,096,221 

$ 5,526,342 

$(21,003,802) 

$ 7,800,000 
4,572,700 

545,500 
$ 12.918,200 

$ 2,204,101 
$ 2,204,101 

s (5,881,501) 

s 75,196,369 

$ 69,314,868 
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Claims Award Fund 

Notes to the Financial S tatements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A . Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Reporting Entity 
The Clauns Award Fund is part of the pnmary government and has been included in the 
Tennessee Comprelienszve Annual Financial Report as an internal service fund. 

2. Bas1s of Account111g and Presentation 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all appli­
cable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as appli­
cable private sector pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989. The Oaims 
Award Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses at the time liabtlities are incurred. 

3. Cash 
Cash deposited in the Claims Award Fund is pooled with the State Treasurer's Pooled In­
vestment Fund. The Pooled Investment Fund, administered by the State Treasurer, is autho­
nzed by statute to invest funds in accordance with policy guidelines approved by the State 
Funding Board. The current resolution of that board gives the Treasurer authonty to invest 
in collateralized certificates of deposit m state depositones, prime commercial paper, prime 
bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, various U.S. Treasury and Agency ob­
ligahons, limited money market mutual funds, and in obligations of the state of Tennessee 
pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 9-4-602(b). The Pooled Investment Fund is 
also authorized to enter into securities lending agreements in which U.S. Government secu­
rities may be loaned for a fee. The loaned securities are transferred to the borrower by the 
custodian against simultaneous receipt of collateral securities. The Pool's custodial credit 
risk as presented m the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended 
June 30, 1995. 

B. Other Accou11ting Disclosures 

1. Risk Management 
It is the policy of the state not to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses for 
general liability. automobile Liability, professional malpractice, and workers' compensation. 
The state management believes it is more economical to manage these risks internally and 
set aside as::.ets for claim settlement in its internal service fund, the Claims Award Fund 
(CAF). 

CAF services clam15 for risk of loss to which the state is exposed mcluding general liability, 
automobile liability, professional malpractice, and workers' compensation. All agencies and 
authorities of the state partic1p<ite in CAF, except for the Board of Professional Responsibil-
1ty, The Dairy Promotion Board, and TN 200. CAF allocates the cost of providing claims 
servicing and elm ms payment by charging a premium to each agency based on a percentage 
of each organization's expected loss cost~ which include both experience and exposures. 
Thi:-- charge considers recent trends m actual claims experience of the state as a whole. An 
a ctuanal val ua lion is performed as of each fJSca I year end to determine the fund liabtl.1 ty and 
premmm allocation. 
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Claims Award Fund 

Notes to the financial Statements1 June 3011995 and June 30, 1994 

CAF liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of 
that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have 
been incurred but not reported Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex 
factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the process used in com­
puting claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are 
reevaluated annually to take into consideration recently settled claims. the frequency of claims, 
and other economic and social factors. At June 30, 1995 the amount of these liabihnes was 
$55,013,735. Olanges in the balances of claims liabilities during fiscal years 1994 and 1995 
were as follows: 

Current Year 
Beginning Claims and Change in Balance al 

of Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Accounting Fiscal 
Liability Estimates Payments Principle Year End 

1993-1994 $ 50,671,976 $ 24,513,575 $ (15,417,354) $ 0 $ 59,768,197 
1994-1995 $ 59,768,197 $ 19,693,805 $ (15,671,640) $ (8,776,627) $ 55,013,735 

At June 30. 1995, CAF held $62.3 million in cash designated for payment of these claims. 

2 The total premium recommended by the actuary for fiscal year 1995 totaled $28,163,600. Of 
this amount, $10,222,000 was from agency premiums, $371,597 from state appropnation, 
$152,803 from deferred re\·enue, and fund equity, along with a change in accounting prin­
ciple, contributed the rema1rung requirement. 

3. During fiscal years 1990 and 1991 a total of $23.6 million was transferred from the Claims 
Award Fund. In an effort to return the funds to the Claims Award Fund, the state appropri­
ated $18,919,600 in fiscal year 1993, $12,918,200 in fiscal year 1994, and $371,597 in fiscal year 
1995. The funds were originally recognized as revenue at the bme the premiums were col­
lected. The transfers during fiscal years 1990 and 1991 were recorded as Operating Transfers 
to the State's General Fund. The return transfers in fiscal years 1993, 1994, and 1995 were 
recorded as Operating Transfers from the State's General Fund, Highway Fund, and Special 
Revenue Fund. 

In addition to the state payback of transferred funds, a reserve was established in 1992 to 
offset the liability of the fund to non-appropriation funding sources, which includes the fed­
eral government. Of the $5,497,455 established as deferred revenue in fiscal year 1992, 
$4,199,700 was recognized as revenue m fiscal year 1993 and $1,144,952 was recogruzed in 
fa.cal year 1994. The remaining $152,803 was recognized in fiscal year 1995. 

4. Change in Accounting Prmcrple 
Beguuw1g July 1, 1994, the state began discounting the required reserves (claims liability) to 
take into considerabon the time value of money. A discount factor of 6% was uhlized. The 
cumulative effect of the change was determined by comparing the undiscounted value of 
the liability to the discounted value at June 30, 1994, $59,768,197 and $50,991,570, respec­
tively. 
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Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund 
Independent Auditor's Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF ST A TE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

December 21, 1995 
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 
PHONE (615) 741-3697 

The Honorable W. R Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Criminal ln1unes Compensation Fund as of June 30, 
1995, and June 30, 1994. and the related statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance~ 
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility 
1s to express an oprn1on on these finandal statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with genera lly accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures tn the financial s tatements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting pnnc1ple:> u~ed and significant estirndtes made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement pre~entation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opm1on. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, mall material respects, the hnancial 
position of the Cnmmal Injuries Compensation Fund as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the changes 
in fund balances for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting pnnc1ples. 

Tn acco rdance with generally accepted government auditing standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our con~Lderation of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Smcerely, 

~a~~:r 
Arthur A. Hayes Jr .. CPA 
Director, Div1s1on of State AudJt 
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Assets 

Cash 

Accounts Receivable 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 

Warrants Payable 

Accounts Payable 

Claims Liability 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

Reserved for Future Benefits 
Reserved for Victims of Drunk Drivers 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

See accompanying Notes to the Financuzl Statements. 

C riminal i n ju ries C ompen s ation F u nd 

Comparative Bala n ce Sheets 

June 30, 1995 

$36,035,884 

578,330 

$36,614,214 

$ 586,102 

0 

9,245,753 

$ 9,831,855 

$25,536,315 

1,246,044 

$26,782,359 

$36,614,214 

June 30, 1994 

$29,939,151 

582,581 

$30,521,732 

$ 593,895 

103,674 

6,522,589 

$ 7,220,158 

$22, 133,057 

1,168,517 

$23,301,574 

$30,521,732 
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Criminal Injuries Com p ensation Fund 

C omparative S tate m ents of Revenues, Expenditures and C hanges in Fund Balance 

Revenues: 
State 

Taxes 
Fines 

Federal 
Interest Income 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Claim Payments 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Fund Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June JO 

See accompanyzng Notes lo the Financial Statements. 
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For the 
Year Ended 

June 30, 1995 

$ 7,129,014 

1,686,340 

1,987.000 
1,650,931 

$ 12,453,285 

$ 8,972,500 

$ 3,480,785 

523.301,574 

$26,782,359 

For the 
Year Ended 

June 30, 1994 

$ 6,460,789 
1,494,699 

6,374,000 
863,907 

$ 15,193,395 

$ 8,971,772 

$ 6,221,623 

$17,079,951 

523,301,574 



Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund 

Notes to the Financial S tatements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A. Significant Accounting Policies 

1. Reporting Entity 
The Crimrnal Injuries Compensahon Fund is part of the primary government and has been 

included in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Fmancial Report as a special revenue fund. 

2 Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
The accompanymg financ1al statements have been prepared in conformi ty with generally 

accepted accounting principles using the modified accrual basis of accounhng. Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when they become both measurable and available and ex­
penditures are recognized at the time the fund liabilities are incurred. 

3. Cash 
Cash deposited in the Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund is pooled with the State 

Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. The Pooled Investment Fund, admirustered by the State 
Treasurer, is authorized by statute to invest funds in accordance with policy guidelines ap­
proved by the State Funding Board. The current resolution of that board gives the Treasurer 
authority to invest in coUaterabzed certificates of deposit in state depositories, prime com­
mercial paper, prime bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, various u.s_ Trea­
sury and Agency obligations, limited money market mutual funds, and m obligations of the 
state of Tennessee pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated. Section 9-4-602(b) The Pooled In­
vestment Fund is also authorized to enter into securities lending agreements in which U.S. 
Government securihes may be loaned for a fee. The loaned securihes are transferred to the 
borrower by the custodian against simultaneous receipt of collateral securities. The Pool's 
custodial credit nsk is presented in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
the year ended June 30, 1995 

B. Otlier Accounting Disclosures 

1. Criminal Injuries Compensation Program 
The Criminal Injuries Compensabon Program (OC) is funded through pnvilege taxes as­

sessed in courts against certam criminal defendants upon conviction, fees levied against pa­
rolees, probationers and employed releases, the proceeds from sales of illegal contraband 
and bond forfeitures in felony cases, and a federal grant. Payments made under the CIC 
program are intended to defray the costs of medical services, loss of earnings, burial costs, 
and other pecuruary losses to either the victim of a crime or to the dependents of deceased 
victims 

2 According to state statute, the CIC program can only compensate victims to the extent furids 
are available within the program. State funds cannot be utilized for claim payments. 

3. Begmning July 1, 1992, the Victims of Drunk Drivers Compensation Fund (VDDC) became a 
part of the Criminal Injuries Compensation Fund. As a requirement of the CIC and VDDC 
combination, a reserve is established annually for an amount equal to tluee times the awards 
paid for VDDC dunng the fiscal year. Chapter 761 of the Public Acts of 1992 discusses the 
fund combinatJon as well as the VDDC reserve requirement. 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Indep end ent Auditor's R ep ort 

December 21. 1995 

The Honorable W. R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller ot the Treasury 
State Capitol Building 
Nashv1Uc, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr. Snodgrass: 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 

PHONE (615) 741-3697 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Chairs of Excellence as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 
1994. and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our respons1b1hty 1s to 
express an opinion on these f manc1al statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require Lhat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
finandal statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Chairs of Excellence as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the results of its operations and 
its cash nows for the year:. then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting prmc1ples. 

ln accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, we have also issued reports dated 
December 21, 1995, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Sincerely, 

Arthur A. Hayes Jr., CPA 
Directo r, Division of State Audit 
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Assets 
Investments 
Short-term Securities (Amortized Cost) 
Domeshc Secunties 
Government Bonds (Amortized Cost) 
Corporate Bonds (Amortized Cost) 
Corporate Stocks (Cost) 
Securities on Loan 
Government Bonds (Amorhzed Cost} 
Corporate Stocks (Cost) 

Intemahonal Securities 
Government Bonds (Amortized Cost) 
Corporate Bonds (Amortized Cost) 
Corporate Stocks (Cost) 
Securities on Loan 
Government Bonds (Amortized Cost) 

Total Investments 

Receivables: 
Due From CoUeges and Universities 
ln\'estment Income Receivable 

Total Receivables 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
L1abihties: 

Due to Colleges and Universities 
Due to the Academic Scholars Fund 
Due to State General Fund 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Endowment Reserve 
Special Reserve 
Restricted Reserve 

Total Fund Balance 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Sel' accompa11ymg Notes to the Fi11ancial Statements. 

Chairs of Excellence 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

j une 30, 1995 

$ 14,306,847 

51,169,373 
38176,206 
22,887,492 

0 
1,829,439 

3,121,786 
8,044,881 

410 659 

0 
$ 139,946,683 

s 200,000 
1,632,942 

$ 1,832,942 
$ 141.779,625 

$ C409,461 
3 646,986 

23,358 
s 5,079,805 

s 93,666,878 
4,078,532 

38,954,410 
s 136,699,820 
$ 141,779,625 

June 30, 1994 

$ 20159,608 

34,448,042 
57,297,216 
16.493,571 

516,799 
0 

3,477,166 
2,279,499 

287,161 

414,203 
$ 135,373,265 

$ 263,000 
1,898,239 

$ 2,161,239 
s 137,534,504 

$ 1,639,660 
3,783,237 

27,325 
$ 5,450.222 

s 91 104,469 
2,900,118 

38,079,695 
5 132.084,282 
s 137.53-1,504 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balance 

Operating Revenues: 
Investment Income 
Contribuhons from Private Sources 
Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Payments to the University of Tennessee 

Payments to the Tennessee Board of Regents 
Administrative Cost 
Total Operating Expenses 

Net Income 

F11nd Balance, July 1 

Fund Balance, June 30 

See accompanymg Notes to the Fmancial Statements 
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For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1995 

s 7,794,730 
2,562,409 

$ 10,357,139 

$ 2,897,401 
2,733,473 

110,727 
$ 5,741,601 

$ 4,615,538 

s 132,084,282 

s 136,699 ,820 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1994 

$ 11,484,501 
1,6-19,467 

$ 13,133,968 

$ 3,302,881 
2,791,415 

106,740 
$ 6,201,036 

$ 6,932,932 

$125.151,350 

$132,084,282 



Chairs of Excellence 

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Operating Income 
Ad1ustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 

Net Cash Flows Used for Operating Activities: 
Investment Income 
Net (Discount) Premium Amortization 
Interest Paid to the Academic Scholars Fund 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Decrease in lnterfund Receivables 
Decrease in lnterfund Payables 

Net Cash Flows Used for Operating Actii•ities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Investment Income Received 
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 
Purchase of Investments 
Interest Paid to the Academic Scholars Fund 

Net Cas11 Flows Provided b11 Investing Activities 

Net Increase/Decrease in Cas/1 

Caslr at July 1 

Caslt at Juue 30 

Noncaslt Investing, Capi tal and Financing Activities: 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1995 

s 4,615,538 

(8,488,656) 

456,987 
236,939 

63,000 

(370,417) 
$ (3,486,609) 

$ 9.283,385 
177,638,511 

(183.198,348) 
(236,939) 

$ 3.486,609 

$ 0 

s 0 

$ 0 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 1994 

s 6,932,932 

(12,150.667) 

405,605 
260,561 

83,000 
(75,882) 

$ (4,544,451 ) 

s 8,360,237 
157,128,895 

(160,684,120) 
(260,561) 

$ 4,544,451 

$ 0 

s 0 

$ 0 

At June 30, 1994 and at June 30, 1995, the Chairs of Excellence Trust had no unsettled investment 
purchases or unsettled investment sales. 

Sr11 arrompanying Notes to tlze Fmanc1al Statements. 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements,June30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

A. Significant Accounting Policies 

Rrporting Entity. 
The Chat rs of Excellence (COE) Trust forms an integral part of the primary government and 
has been included as a non-expendable trust fund m the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

2. Basis of Accountmg and Presentation. 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all appli­
cable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as well as appli­
cable pnvate sector pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989. The COE Trust 
uses the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are recorded when earned and ex­
penses are recorded at the time liabilihes are incurred. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents. 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, by definition, includes cash and short-term investments with a 
maturity date within three months of the acquisition date. The state's policy regard.mg the 
defirution of Cash and Cash Equivalents includes cash management pools as cash. In addi­
tion, securities in portfolios where the primary purpose is to facilitate the placement of funds 
in long-term investments are classified as investments. 

Cash received by the Chairs of Excellence Trust that cannot be im.mec:hately invested m secu­
rihes is invec;ted in the Pooled Investment Fund administered by the State Treasurer. The 
Pooled Investment Fund is authorized by state statute to invest funds in accordance with 
pohcy gwdelines approved by the State Fund.mg Board. The current resolution of that board 
gives the Treasurer authonty to invest in collateralized certificates of deposit in state deposi­
tories, prime commercial paper, prune bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, 
vanous U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations, limited money market mutual funds, and in 
obligahons of the state of Tennessee pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Secbon 9-4-
602(b). The Pooled Investment Fund is also authorized to enter into securities lending agree­
ments m which U.S. Government securihes may be loaned to brokers for a fee. The loaned 
secunhes are transferred to the borrower by the custodian agent against simultaneous re­
ceipt of collateral securities The pool's custodial credit nsk is presented in the Tennessee 
Cumprehcns1ve Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 1995. 

4. Method Used lo Value lnvesfments. 
Equity securities are reported at cost subject to adjustment for market declines judged to be 
other than temporary. Fixed-income securities are reported at amortized cost with discounts 
or premituns amortized using the effective interest rate method, subiect to adjustment for 
market declines iudged to be other than temporary. Investment income is recogruzed as 
earned. Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed income and equity securities are 
recognized on the transaction date. 

5. F11nd Balance. 
The Endowment Re~erve consists of funds provided by contr1buhons from the state, col­
leges and universihes and private sources. rncome earned on the COE Trust is distributed 
between two reserve accounts. Speoal Reserve and Restncted Reserve The Special Reserve 
consist-; of income earned on the fixed investments which was not expended by the schools 
dunng the year it was earned. At the discretion of the COE Trust Board, this reserve may be 
used for future payments when current eammgs do not meet current needs. The Restricted 
Reserve is nonexpendable and consISts of income earned on eqwty mvestments and profit and 
loss from both fixed and equity investmenb.. 1lus income becomes part of the Trust corpus. 

(Continued) 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

B. Investments 

The mvestment policy of the Chairs of Excellence Trust requires that not less than 80 percent of 
the total trust corpus (based on book value) be invested m debt securities. The remaining funds 
may be invested m equity securities including domestic and foreign common stocks, preferred 
stocks and convertible bonds. Income from equity investments, including realized capital gains, 
may be reinvested m addihonal equity investments, however. the total equity investments may 
not exceed 25 percent of the total trust's book value. 

The classification of Short-term Securities includes funds invested in a portfolio of short-term 
investments maintained by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System. These short-term in­

vestments may include U.S. Treasuries, commercial paper, medium-term corporate notes, prom­
issory notes and repurchase agreements. 

The Chairs of Excellence Trust investment securities in the following chart are categorized ac­
cording to the level of custodial credit nsk associated with the custodial arrangemenls at that 
time. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered, or for which secunhes are 
held by the Chairs of Excellence Trust or its agent in the name of the COE Trust. Category 2 
includes urunsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent in the name of the Chairs of Excellence Trust. Category 
3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the name of the Chairs of Excellence Trust. 

Investments - Category 1. 
Short-term Securities 
Commercial Paper 

Long-term Lnvestments: 
Domestic Securities 
Government Bonds 
Corporate Bonds 
Corporate Stock 

International Securities: 
Government Bonds 

Corporate Bonds 
Corporate Stock 

f 11vestmenls - Categories 2 & 3: 

Investments - Not Categori::ed: 
Im estments held by broker-dealers 

under securities on loan contracts· 
Domestic Securities 
Government Bonds 
Corporate Stock 

Intemahonal Securities 
Government Bonds 

Total lnvPsfments 

June 30, 1995 June 30, 1994 
Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value 

$ 14,306,847 s 14,306,847 $ 20,159,608 $ 20,159,608 

51,169,373 53,994,891 34,448,042 34,313,232 
38,176,206 38,880,902 57,297,216 56,593,986 
22,887,492 26,348,913 16,493,571 16,655,821 

3,121.786 3,262,110 3,477,lbb 3,498,251 
8,044,881 8,081,120 2,279.499 2,310,341 

410,659 390,875 287,161 296,500 

s 138,117,244 s 1-15,265,658 $134,442,263 $133,827.739 

$ 0 $ a $ 0 $ 0 

s 0 $ 0 s 516,799 s 
0 

544,375 
1,829,439 2,057,838 0 

0 0 414,203 418,333 
$ 139,946,683 $147,323.4% $135,373,265 $ 134,790,4-17 

(Conrmued) 
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Chairs of Excellence 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

The COE Trust is authorized to enter into collateralized securities lending agreements whereby 
the Trust loans its debt and equity securities for a fee to a select few of the highest quality secun­
ties firms and banks. Loans must be limited so the total amount on loan does not exceed 30 per­
cent of the book value of the Trust assets. The loaned securities are collaterahzed at 102 percent of 
their market value for domest:J.c securities and 105 percent for international. Additional collateral 
is pledged if the aggregate market value subsequently falls below 100 percent for domesb.c secu­
nbes and 105 percent for mternational. The Trust's custodian bank manages the lending program 
and mamtamc; the collateral on behalf of the COE Trust At June 30, 1995, the market value of COE 
securities on loan to brokers was $2,066,822, and the market value of collateral pledged for the 
securities on loan was 52,108,156. It is standard practice to value the securities and collateral on 
June 30 (usmg June 29 closing market prices) and therefore, the market value of securities on loan 
differs from that presented in the abO\'e chart which uses June 30 closing market pnces. 

C. Other Accounting Disclosures 

l . Chairs of Excellence Endowment Trust . 
The Chairs of Excellence Trust is a nonexpendable trust fund authorized by the 94th General 
Assembly to further the cause of education in Tennessee. The Trust is set up into two general 
accounts which equally divide any state appropriations: one for the University of Tennessee 
and one for the Tennessee Board of Regents. As each Chair is designated, a portion of th~ 
appropriation 1s transferred to a sub-account for that ChaiL The awarding school must pro­
vide matching contribuhons, of which at least 50 percent of the funds are from private con­
tributions. 

As of June 30, 1995, 92 Chairs have been established with matching contribt,Itions received 
totaling $49,666,878. This rs an increase of 6 Chairs and $2,562,409 since June 30, 1994. Total 
contnbutions to the COE Trust totaled $93,666,878 as of June 30, 1995. This incJudes 544,000.000 
from the State, $10,321,300 from Colleges and Universities, and $39,345,578 from private 
contributions. 

2. Funds from the Academic Scholars Fund are combined with the Chairs of Excellence Trust 
for investment purposes only. The Academic Scholars Fund general account receives only 
the income earned on its principal and does not receive any COE state contributions or ap­
propriations. These Funds are invested in fixed income securities 
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Bond Refunding 

Independent Auditor's Report 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 

DIVISION OF STATE AUDIT 
SUITE 1500 

JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37243-0264 

PHONE (615) 741-3697 

December 21, 1995 

The Honorable W R. Snodgrass 
Comptroller of the Treasurv 
State Capitol Building 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

Dear Mr Snodgrass: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Bond Refunding Trust as of June 30, 1995, and June 
30, 1994, and the related statement of changes m assets and hab1hhes for the year ended June 30, 1995. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of management. Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these 
financi.sl statement::. based on our audits 

We conducted our audits in accordance \.\ith generally accepted government auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the 
fi.nanciaJ statements are free of materiaJ misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statementc; An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting princ1plec; used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opiruon. 

In our opmion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Bond Refunding Trust as of June 30, 1995, and June 30, 1994, and the changes m assets and 
liab11ities for the year ended June 30, 1995, 1n confomuty with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Ln accordance with generally accepted go\'emment auditing standards, we have also tSsued reports dated 
December 21, 1Q9S, on our consideration of the internal control structure and on compliance with laws and 
regulations 

Smcerelv. 

Arthur A Hayes Jr, CPA 
Director Division of State Audit 
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Bond Refunding 

Compautive Balance Sheets 

Assets 
Cash 
Investments (amortized cost) 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Amounts Held in Custody for Others 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Bond Refunding 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Balance 
June 30, 1994 

Assets 
Cash $ 86,905 
Investments 38,234,256 
Accrued Interest Receivable 1,378,056 
Total Assets $ 39,699,217 

Liabilities 

June 30, 1995 

$ 93,012 
124,538 

0 
$ 217,550 

$ 217,550 

Additions Deductions 

$41,185,062 $41 ,.178,955 
8,777 38.118,495 

0 1,378,056 
$41,193,839 $80,675,506 

June 30, 1994 

$ 86,905 
38,234,256 

1,378,056 
$ 39,699,217 

$ 39,699,217 

Balance 
June 30, 1995 

$ 93,012 
124,538 

0 
5 217,550 

Amounts Held in Custodv for Others $ 39,699,217 $ 0 $39.481,667 $ 217,550 

See accomprznyins Note .. to the Financial Statements. 
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Bond Refunding 

Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 1995 and June 30, 1994 

The Bond Refunding FWld forms an integral part of the primary government and has been included as 
an agency fund in the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Financial Report . 

The State Treasurer is a trustee for the Tennessee Local Development Authonty (the Authomy). ln 
January 1987, the Authority issued refunding bonds of $39,206,000 to refund $36,666,000 of the 1985 
Series A bonds maturing on and after March 1, 1995. ln July 1993, the Authority issued refund.mg 
bonds of S34,250,000 to refund $32,471,000 of the 1987 Series A refunding bonds_ The refunding bonds 
were issued to take advantage of lower interest rates. The proceeds resulting from the advance 
refundings were held by the trustee in an irrevocable trust to provide for the debt service payments 
and call premiums at the redemption dates. In March 1995, the 1985 Senes A bonds were redeemed. In 
1987, an irrevocable trust fund was established to provide for the payment of the remaining outstand­
ing State Loan Program revenue bonds issued in 1985 to refinance loans to Johnson City, Tennessee. 

Cash held by the trustee is pooled with the Pooled Investment Fund administered by the State Trea­
surer. The Pooled Investment Fund is authorized by state statute to invest in accordance with policy 
gwdelines approved by the State Fund.mg Board. The current resolution of the Funding Board gives 
the Treasurer authority to invest tn collateralized certificates of deposit in state depositories, prime 
commercial paper, prime bankers' acceptances, certain repurchase agreements, various US. Treasury 
and Agency obligations, limited money market mutual funds, and in obligations of the state of Tennes­
see pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, Secbon 9-4-602(b). The Pooled Investment Fund is also au­
thorized to enter into securities lending agreements in which U.S. Government Securities may be loaned 
for a fee. The loaned securitie~ are transferred to the borrower by the custodian agent against simulta­
neous receipt of collateral securities. The pool's custodial credJt nsk is presented in the Tennessee Com­
prehenszve Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 1995. 

The investments held by the trustee at year-end are shown below. The trust is restricted by the 
Authority's Bond Resolution to investing in direct general obligations of, or obligahons the pavment 
of the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the Uruted States of America, 
which are non-callable at the option of the issuer. All securities are held in the state's account in the 
Federal ReserYe Bank. 

U.S. Government Securities 

Carrying Amount Market Value 

$124,538 $124,538 
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